Oakleigh Cricket Club Inc. Founded 1879

ABN 63 638 040 569



140th ANNUAL REPORT and BALANCE SHEET

SEASON 2019-2020

Major Sponsor of Victorian Cricket









The Oakleigh Cricket Club warmly thank the following community partners for their generous contribution throughout the 2019/20 season.





Ray White.





























ELITE SCHOOL PHOTOGRAPHY

http://oakleighcc.vic.cricket.com.au/

TABLE OF CONTENTS

2019-2020 OFFICE BEARERS	4
LIFE MEMBERS	5
VALE	6
PRESIDENT'S REPORT	7
SECRETARY'S REPORT	9
NUMBER OF OAKLEIGH CRICKET CLUB MEMBERS FOR SEASON 2019/20	11
COACH'S REPORT	11
COMMUNITY PARTNERS' REPORT	13
CLUB SPONSORS	15
PLAYER SPONSORS	16
FINANCIAL REPORT	17
FIRST ELEVEN	23
SECOND ELEVEN	28
THIRD ELEVEN	34
FOURTH ELEVEN	39
T20 TWILIGHT	43
MICHAEL SPLATT JOINS VSDCA 200 GAME CLUB	44
EULOGY FOR ROB McCARTHY	45
THE RUN-MACHINE WITH THE HEART OF (PURPLE &) GOLD	46
MAJOR AWARDS, NEWTON TROPHY POINTS, HOLTEN TROPHY POINTS	49
SENIOR STATISTICS AND RECORDS	52
JUNIOR COORDINATOR'S REPORT	59
I.S.E.C. LADDERS	60
INDIVIDUAL TROPHY WINNERS	61
CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP FOR JUNIOR PLAYERS - ROLY WILLIAMS TROPHY POINTS	62
JUNIOR RECORDS CHANGED	63
J.G. CRAIG UNDER 15	64
UNDER 17	68
UNDER 15 SUNDAY	71
UNDER 15 FRIDAY	73
UNDER 13 FRIDAY	76
UNDER 11 MODIFIED RULES	78
WOOLWORTHS CRICKET BLAST	82
MID YEAR	83
OAKLEIGH NETBALL CLUB: 2019 SPRING AND 2020 AUTUMN SEASONS	86

2019-2020 OFFICE BEARERS

President Mr. Peter J. Webb

Vice Presidents Messrs. Gary S. Iverson, Trent A. Shields,

Matthew L. Naughtin

Secretary Mrs. Glenda S. Splatt

Assistant Secretary Mr. Bruce D. Dowland

Treasurer Mr. Michael J. Lawson

Assistant Treasurer Mrs. Bettina K. Latham

MyCricket Co-ordinator Mr. Dharmesh Patel

Committee Members Messrs. Ivor F. Donohue, Geoffrey N.W. Latham,

Brendan J. McGuinness, Michael P. Splatt,

Allan B. Stamps, & Ms. Shannon Kirkby.

Auditor Mr. Jacob Attwood CPA

VSDCA Delegates Messrs. Trent A. Shields & Allan B. Stamps

W.A. Scammell S. Cl. Committee Mr. Allan B. Stamps

Club Coach Mr. Clinton L. Bricker

Assistant Coach Mr. Alexander J. Jones

Team Captains Brendan J. McGuinness (First Eleven)

Trent A. Shields (Second Eleven)

Benjamin R. Hogan (Third Eleven)

Ryan A. Chapple (Fourth Eleven)

Chairman of Selectors Mr. Matthew L. Naughtin

Junior Co-ordinator Mr. Gary S. Iverson

Junior Coaches/Managers J.G. Craig - Ryan A. Chapple

Under 17 Sunday - Matthew J. Tyson/Ettore Soldati

Under 15 Friday - James E. Benn/Andrew McFarlane

Under 15 Sunday – Arther Lewis/Gary Iverson

Under 13 Friday - Dylan Grandell/Andrew Allan

Under 11 Modified - Mayur Sachaniya/Greg Ajani

Woolworths Cricket Blast - Michael Splatt

LIFE MEMBERS

1919	*	J.C. (Dad) BETTS	1931	*	William H. INCE
1935	*	F.E. (Ern) BUNNY	1936	*	
1945	*	Edward (Ted) BURROUGHS	1949	*	
1950	*	Fred MARTIN	1951	*	Alf BENNETT
1953	*	Arthur L. (Leigh) BAKER	1953	*	
1955	*	Reginald A. BELL	1955	*	Eric (Dick) DOWLER
1955	*	Gordon C. RAYMANT	1957	*	Gordon C. CARLETON
1957	*	Jack McG. EDWARDS	1959	*	Lionel S. DICKSON
1959	*	Frederick O. WHITE	1960	*	Ronald G. PEACE
1960	*	William H. ROBINSON	1963	*	Robert J. ANDERSON
1963		Rowland C. WILLIAMS	1965	*	Stanley F. (Sam) BLACKBURN
1965	*	Frank V.W. THOMPSON	1966	*	Norman W. BRAY
1966		Raymond G. MOODY	1967	*	Peter T.L. NEWTON
1967	*	Ronald G. REES	1968		Ronald J. MUNYARD
1969	*	Noel A. WEBSTER	1970	*	Charles V. (Val) HOLTEN
1972	*	A.G. (George) WILLIS	1975		Ronald R. PRICE
1976	*	Leslie R. (Ron) STARKEY	1979	*	William L. (Les) JORDAN
1980	*	Joyce M. ALFORD (Mrs)	1980	*	Jean C. PRICE (Mrs)
1982	*	Edna J. HENSTRIDGE (Mrs)	1985	*	Jack E. BRAY
1987		Peter J. WEBB	1988		Mark R. PRICE
1989		Allan B. STAMPS	1990	*	James T. SEAL
1991		Karen JACOBS (Mrs)	1992		Neil D. CROFT
1993		Neil L. McDONALD	1994		Ross D. SIMPSON
1995		Ian M. DUDLEY	1997		William H. KNOTT
1999		Richard E. BLAZE	2000		William J. ROBERTSON
2003		Benjamin P. DREW	2005		John C. DOIG
2006		Craig A. JOHNSON	2007		Paul E. TOLSON
2009		Paul A. RYAN	2010		Benjamin W. PINWILL
2011		Trent A. SHIELDS	2013		Jarrod L. TRAVAGLIA
2014		Matthew L. NAUGHTIN	2016		Glenda S. SPLATT (Mrs)
2017		Andrew C. DONOHUE	2018		Daryl J. MENDES
2019		Daniel N. JUNKEER			

VALE

Rob McCarthy

Former player Rob McCarthy passed away this year. Rob was a talented sportsman and joined Oakleigh's junior program and progressed into the senior elevens and then onto the first eleven.

Rob was a fine middle order batsman and nagging medium pacer. His finest moment for Oakleigh was in a T20 Grand Final versus Plenty Valley where he played a key role with the ball to help Oakleigh to the T20 Premiership.

A eulogy to Rob, written by his great friend Jeremy Devlin, is included later in the report.

Ron Rees

Much loved Life Member Ron Rees passed away earlier this season, aged 89 in Inverloch, his home for many years. Ron played at Oakleigh for 22 seasons, commencing in 1949/50 and finally retiring after the conclusion of the 1970/71 season. He played 9 First Eleven games (becoming the 19th player to debut in Oakleigh's first season in the VSDCA in '49/50) among 217 club games across all grades (17th highest in club history at the conclusion of the 2019/20 season).

He compiled ten half centuries amongst 4,561 runs with a top score of 95 (in the 3rd XI in 1964/65, which was his most prolific year with 424 runs) and captured 50 wickets with a best of 4/1, also taking 111 catches.

Ron captained the third eleven for many years throughout the successful 1960s period for the club and was made a Life Member in 1967. He greatly enjoyed the social activities hosting several fundraising BBQs at his home in Bentleigh East.

Oakleigh Cricket Club family members and loved ones

To all in the Oakleigh Cricket Club family who have lost family members and loved ones during the year, we offer our condolences and our heartfelt support.

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

It is with a great sense of pride that I can report that our club has completed another tremendously successful season, highlighted by the First and Third X1 back to back Premierships.

The club also came second in the VSDCA Ken Fewster Club Championship for the seventh time, which was also a fine achievement. The award was introduced in 2001 /2002. To now have won it seven times, and been runners up a further seven times, is a testament to the club's sustained success.

The Corona Virus ultimately prevented the Grand Finals being played, but as the highest ranked teams entering the Grand Final in their respective grades, the First and Third X1's were declared Premiers. The First X1 Premiership was a magnificent achievement, and a great reward for a committed group of players who had great self-belief and pride in their performance. The Third X1 Premiership was a great reward for a wonderful group of players, who should be tremendously proud of their efforts. The Second and Fourth X1's both had terrific seasons during the home and away fixtures, but ultimately fell short of premiership glory during their finals campaigns. My congratulations and thanks to Senior Coach, Clinton Bricker, Assistant Coach, Alex Jones and our four captains, Brendan McGuinness, Trent Shields, Ben Hogan and Ryan Chapple for their tireless efforts, and commitment to ensuring that all players were provided with the opportunity to develop their talents, and their respective teams performed to their full potential. I would also like to acknowledge the effort of our Chairman of Selectors Matt Naughtin who performed his role superbly.

The Junior Program was again very capably coordinated by Gary Iverson. The junior program is the lifeblood of our club, and it is imperative that it continues to provide young players with the opportunity to participate in our great game, in a caring and enjoyable environment. To highlight the importance of the program, in the First X1 Premiership team this year, five players had graduated from our junior program. My great thanks to all of the coaches, parents and supporters who contribute to the success of the junior program.

The Under 15 Craig Carnival team was again coached by Ryan Chapple, ably assisted by Tom Ison. All the boys played well, and had a wonderful learning experience over the carnival period. Special thanks to Greg Ajani for managing the team, and to Rowland Williams and Gary Iverson for attending to the many administrative tasks required.

I must sincerely thank all of the members of the Oakleigh Cricket Club Board of Management for their tireless efforts in ensuring the club has the appropriate platform in place that is required for achieving sustained success. The board this season consisted of Vice Presidents; Trent Shields, Matt Naughtin and Gary Iverson. Treasurer, Michael Lawson; Administration Secretary Glenda Splatt; Secretary ACT Allan Stamps; Assistant Secretary; Bruce Dowland; and Board members Ivor Donohue, Geoff Latham, Michael Splatt, Brendan McGuinness, and Shannon Kirkby. I would particularly like to thank Glenda, Shannon, Brendan and Michael for joining the Board this year.

As can be seen from the Financial Statements, the club has made a profit for the financial year, and the club's finances are in a very sound position. Our Treasury team of Michael Lawson, Bettina Latham and Rowland Williams do a superb job supervising the club's accounts, and their efforts are much appreciated.

I thank the Social and Player Sponsorship Committees, chaired by Trent Shields for the significant roles they have played in contributing to our financial wellbeing. Special thanks to Connor Byrne, Ben Hogan, Geoff Latham, and James Benn for their sterling efforts on the social front. A number of very successful social events were conducted including the Season Launch, the Trivia Night, the Player Auction and the Community Bowls Night. Unfortunately, the Junior Presentation Nights had to be cancelled due to the Corona Virus pandemic. In lieu of our traditional Presentation Night, the club conducted a virtual Presentation Night live streamed on You Tube which was a tremendous success. I would like to acknowledge the initiative and hard work involved in the organisation and presentation of the event by club stalwarts, Trent Shields, Brendan McGuinness, Geoff Latham and Connor Byrne.

Thursday night Splatty Meal Deals continues to be a weekly highlight. Thanks again to Glenda and Peter for the remarkable commitment you both make to the club. The meals provide a wonderful opportunity for all club members to socialise and bond with each other, whilst enjoying a magnificent meal.

I must also acknowledge the generous contribution to the club's finances made by our two coterie groups, the Lobster Club and the Solid Oaks. This year under the leadership of Neil Croft, the Lobster Club membership has reached record levels, and thanks to another very successful season by the first eleven, significant funds were raised once again. Unfortunately, due to the Virus, members were not able to enjoy the sumptuous Lobster Club Dinner at the end of the season, but this great function will be held when health regulations allow. A huge thank you to Neil for his weekly updates and coordination of the Lobster Club, and to Bettina Latham for managing the finances of the group. The Solid Oaks coterie continues to contribute to funding for capital works programs, and I thank them sincerely for the generous donations.

As I have mentioned in the Community Partners Report, our club is blessed to have a large number of loyal and generous sponsors. Without their significant financial support, the club simply could not operate in the manner it does. I sincerely thank all of our sponsors, and I urge all members to patronise their businesses. Please refer to the Community Partners Report to gain a detailed insight into the range of our club and player sponsors. The club is very fortunate to have positive relationships with our major community partners, in the City of Monash, the Oakleigh Carnegie RSL, the Oakleigh Bowls Club, and the Oakleigh Historical Society. Details of these relationships are also highlighted in the Community Partners Report.

The leadership of the VSDCA and ISEC do a wonderful job in administering the senior and junior competitions the club participates in. To Phil O'Meara, President of the VSDCA, and Tim Boyce, President of ISEC, many thanks to you and your executives, for the enormous amount of work you do for your respective associations, and for cricket in general.

I would like to acknowledge the crucial role the umpiring fraternity plays in our great game. I thank John Doig, Brian Goodman and Neil Murray for their time and effort they put into ensuring our games are umpired in a capable manner. I encourage all members and supporters to consider taking up umpiring, as we look to expand the numbers of umpires on the panel. Thank you once again to our Treasurer Michael Lawson for acting as our Club Umpire this season.

A special mention to our wonderful scorers; Paul Tolson, Shannon Kirkby, Richard Blaze and Ed Cavolo. It is a very demanding job, and all the players and club members appreciate your efforts greatly. Many clubs struggle to find scorers for their various teams, and we are blessed

to have four magnificent scorers. Paul, Shannon and Richard have scored for us for many years, and we are very fortunate that Ed looked after the Fourth X1 this season.

Our affiliated clubs continue to grow and thrive. The mighty Oakleigh Netball Club represents the purple and gold superbly and provides a wonderful recreational and sporting service for a wide range of local netballers. I congratulate all involved on another successful year. A special mention and thank you to the inaugural administrators and founders of the Netball club Julie Harrick and Georgie White, who have handed over the reins to the new management team. Both Julie and Georgie have performed their roles superbly. The Oakleigh Jaguars Basketball Club, the Oakleigh Cricket Club Winter Cricket team, and the Oakleigh Junior Indoor Cricket team all provide opportunities for local sportspeople to participate in a range of activities, which enhance the physical and social wellbeing.

I wish to thank all the countless volunteers who selflessly devote their time and efforts to ensure our great club functions in the way it does. Without your efforts, the successes the club has achieved simply would not be possible.

To Life Member, Ian Dudley, who has produced this magnificent Annual Report, congratulations and many thanks for the countless hours you have devoted to this task. It is very much appreciated. As always, thank you to the one and only Rowland Williams for providing the detailed statistical reports displayed in the Annual Report, and to all the article contributors.

Congratulations to all the award winners for this season, whose exploits are described within the Annual Report. It is an honour and a privilege to be President of the Oakleigh Cricket Club, and I thank you all for your friendship and support.

Go the Oaks

Peter Webb

SECRETARY'S REPORT

It is a pleasure to present on behalf of the Committee, the 140th Annual Report of the Oakleigh Cricket Club Incorporated for the 2019-2020 season.

Oakleigh once again has continued its amazing record in finals appearances in all grades. This season all 4 sides not only saw finals action, but we had back-to-back premiership flags in the 1st and 3rd XIs and finished second in the "Ken Fewster Club Championship". A wonderful achievement which reflects the dedication on and off the field by all members of the Oakleigh Cricket Club.

Our excellent on-field performances started with a new Club Coach – Clinton Bricker – who brought a new voice to our club and proudly represented the playing group. Gary Iverson once again headed up the management of the Junior teams and Michael Splatt took on the convenor role for the Woolworths Blast program for the 4 to 9 year olds. The work and efforts of both are much appreciated. Matthew Naughtin, again faced the often unenviable task of Chairman of Selectors. Matthew and our Captains of each XI are to be congratulated on managing team selection. Ryan Chapple and his coaches once again took responsibility for the JC Craig carnival, which makes a valuable contribution to the advancement of junior players.

Michael Splatt also joined elite company in becoming a member of the VSDCA 200 Club and played in the VSDCA Rep game against the VCCL for the first time. His 200th game for

Oakleigh would have been the first XI Grand Final so we hope to celebrate this milestone with him at the start of next season.

One of the most important and rewarding roles of the board was to nominate Daniel Junkeer for Life Membership. This recommendation was unanimously supported by the members in attendance. Daniel becomes just the 63rd Life Member of the Oakleigh CC in our 140-year history, and his elevation to this lofty honour is a thoroughly deserved recognition for a lifetime of outstanding contributions both on and off the field.

Daniel's nomination was supported by life-long friend and fellow Life Member Daryl Mendes who recounted Daniel's journey in cricket and life and the role Oakleigh CC played in both.

A brief outline of Daniel's outstanding career at Oakleigh CC is as follows:

- Joined OCC in 2002/03, became only the 3rd player in our history to achieve 200 First XI pennant matches, before retiring at the conclusion of the 2016/17 season.
- Daniel finished his extraordinary career with 253 First XI games and 386 dismissals (tenth in VSDCA history), along with nearly 1,600 runs at an average of 11.55.
- Overall, he played 284 games, was a key member of 3 x First XI premiership and 2 x T20 titles and holds the VSDCA record for most dismissals in one innings, 8 (7 catches and 1 stumping) vs Brunswick in 2006/07.
- Club sponsor for 6 years, including now becoming the club major sponsor through some significant work initiated by himself and Jenny through their company Junkeer.

In response a humble Junks spoke with great love for his teammates who he likened more to family than just players in a team and hinted that this connection was what set the club apart.

The Board has recently started two significant projects that will be of huge benefit to the club and exciting in quite different ways. Firstly, the history and a detailed chronicle of the Oakleigh Cricket Club is going to be recorded which will result in a professionally written publication.

Secondly, we are in the early stages of planning for new / improved clubhouse facilities and pavilion which will be outstanding for the club and our future development as we are one of the leading sporting clubs in the City of Monash.

NETBALL AFFILIATION.

The current managers Narelle and Nic report there are currently 93 members

MEETING ATTENDANCES

A special mention to thank Peter Webb, on behalf of the Board and members, with his continued commitment to his role as President and more!

Since February this year we have been restricted due to the Covid-19 situation. The attendance at committee meetings for August 2019 through to February 2020 is as follows Peter Webb 7, Geoff Latham 7, Shannon Kirkby 7, Bruce Dowland 6, Mick Lawson 6, Trent Shields 6, Michael Splatt 6, Allan Stamps 6, Glenda Splatt 6, Brendan McGuinness 6, Matthew Naughtin 5, Ivor Donohue 5, Gary Iverson 4.

With my administration role this year, I would like to thank Peter Webb, Allan Stamps and Trent Shields as they offered enormous support in this first year as Secretary.

All Board members have contributed to the management and success of our great club and also thanks to those members who contribute in many other roles.

Glenda Splatt, Secretary

NUMBER OF OAKLEIGH CRICKET CLUB MEMBERS FOR SEASON 2019/20

Senior Male (including playing Life Memb	ers) 79
Junior Male	76
Woolworths Blast	14
Life Members (non playing)	20
Social members	113
Netball	93

COACH'S REPORT

This year signified a changing of the guard for the Oakleigh Cricket Club, a new coaching group, young and eager to attack season 19/20.

The players formed at our annual players meeting on a Friday night in July, an overwhelming number of players both old and new all eagerly awaiting to hear new coach Clinton Bricker's address. A detailed presentation, the amount of new ideas and pre-season structure created a buzz around the group as they all were keen to sink their teeth into the coming season.

The loss of premiership heroes, James Campbell and Shane Townsend, created opportunities for our ever developing and youthful list, which had been bolstered by some talented Kingston Hawthorn players and players graduating from our much-vaunted junior programs. In the mix this season we also welcomed two cricketers from Stockport Georgians Cricket Club, Jon Keogh and Olly Ormerod, they both were respected cricketers and we enjoyed having them with us.

Our preseason was a strong mix of fitness and cricket-based training, reengaging with LivFunFit in Moorabbin to run our fitness program and Young Gunn Cricket in Moorabbin for our net training. We as a club are very fortunate to have such great facilities local to the club, long may the relationship continue.

With some competition in the squad, to be able to play three practice matches in the country, two in Benalla and one in Bundalaguah allowed us to see a large majority of players get a much-needed game in before the season started. Many thanks to Monash Tigers and Benalla Cricket Club for hosting, as always, the facilities and conditions were first class.

In a season which was dominated by early wet weather, a change in fixture, one day cricket and a global pandemic (who would have thought that!), we were able as a group adapt, change and be ready for any impending challenges both on and off the field. This focus and unwavering desire for the coveted 'blue triangles' is something that many clubs cannot replicate, a standard which has been underpinned by our leaders past and present. Some outstanding performances from the season, young gun Jack Iverson becoming one of the youngest debutants in the 1st eleven at 14 years old. A fine achievement. A first senior hundred scored by another fine young player Tom Reid, brilliant achievement, first of many. Of course, it would be remiss not to mention Michael Splatt who registered a 40-wicket season, getting better with age.

Once again, the Oakleigh Cricket Club, was one of the outstanding performing clubs of the VSDCA. All of our senior teams were playing finals and we finished second in the Ken Fewster Club Championship. An amazing result and one that comes from a club first approach which

acknowledges and creates an environment for all players of all abilities to thrive and improve. Well done.

To end the season with two premierships, a 1st eleven and 3rd eleven, led by Brendan McGuinness and Ben Hogan, was a fantastic achievement. A special mention to Michael Splatt who turned every finals game with his bowling magnificence, decimating all those who dare try take him on. Also, Ben Cuthbertson, who delivered some of the best bowling seen in a 3rd eleven final, 30 overs 7 wickets and too many maidens to count. Well done to them and well done to those involved. Premierships are a wonderful achievement.

Special mentions

Peter Webb, and the OCC board. Thanks for the support you provide everyone at the club.

Peter and Glenda Splatt. Thanks for your Thursday night meals, something all the boys look forward to every week.

Chairman of Selectors, Matthew Naughtin. Probably the most unrewarding job at the club. Thanks for being a fantastic communicator and selector.

Brendan, Trent, Ben and Ryan. For committing to the club by captaining your respective teams, it can be a tough job at times but all four of you handled it terrifically. Well done.

The scorers. Paul Tolson, Shannon Kirkby, Richard Blaze and Ed Cavolo. Thank you for turning up every week, everyone is grateful for your services.

Monash Council. Thanks for the fantastic facilities.

All the OCC supporters, volunteers, partners. Thanks for making us feel so special when we pull the purple and gold. We all love representing the club.

Next season, at this stage, has many uncertainties surrounding it. Oakleigh is positioned better than ever to push forward and create further history.

Go Oaks

Assistant Coach

Alexander Jones





COMMUNITY PARTNERS' REPORT

The club is extremely fortunate to have strong support from many generous and loyal community partners, who play a vital role in securing our present and long-term viability

Our most important community partner continues to be the City of Monash, and we thank them greatly for their provision of the first-class facilities that we enjoy at both D W Nicholl Reserve, for the First and Second X1's and Scammell Reserve for the Third and Fourth X1's. In the near future, our junior facilities at Caloola Reserve will be refurbished which will enhance the development of our young crop of players.

The Oakleigh Historical Society which recently featured an exhibition on the Oakleigh Cricket Club continues to be a source of information regarding the history of our club, and I thank President, Helen Gobbi, and Ian Westman for their efforts. Helen is also helping us to write a book on our long and illustrious history over the next few years.

The club continues to develop our relationship with the Oakleigh Bowling Club. In February the club hosted the annual Oakleigh Community Bowls Night organised by Connor Byrne, where many local businesses and organisations enjoyed a great night of bowls, and took the opportunity to network with each other, in a relaxed and convivial manner. Unfortunately, we were unable to hold our Junior Presentation Night there this season due to the Corona Virus situation.

The Oakleigh and Carnegie RSL, and the cricket club have had a close relationship for many years. The RSL very kindly donated a number of chairs to the cricket club after the completion of their recent renovations. I also would like to thank the RSL for inviting me to lay a wreath on behalf of the Oakleigh Cricket Club at the Remembrance Day Service at the Oakleigh Cenotaph.

Revenue from our community sponsors has again been significant, and is one of our major sources of income.

The Rotary Club of Oakleigh Clayton Huntingdale provided the club with very significant funding, as a primary partner. I thank President David Park, and his Board of Management for their ongoing support of the club. The three Rotary Club involved in the recent merger were very happy to continue the relationship we had formed with the Rotary Club of Oakleigh. I urge club members and supporters to consider joining the Rotary Club of Oakleigh Clayton Huntingdale.

Thanks to the Murrumbeena Community Bank, your financial support of the club is much appreciated, and I urge all members and supporters to use the bank's services. Sue Foley and Dennis Tarrant have been great supporters of the club, and we look forward to a long partnership with the bank.

The club is very fortunate to have such a wonderful facility at the Rosstown Hotel to host our major club functions, and we thank manager, Chris Thomas for his generosity and support.

Allfloors Carpet Gallery has once again continued their ongoing financial support, and we thank Gary, Glenise and Jarrod Travaglia for their magnificent loyalty.

Dean Phelan from Oakleigh Mortgage Choice continued his sponsorship into a 17th season, a remarkable effort from a fantastic Oakleigh person and business, thank you Dean and Mortgage Choice.

Oakleigh Signarama continued to cater for all of our signage requirements, and honour board refurbishments. Signarama's generosity is much appreciated, and their work is always of the highest standard.

Gary Iverson, from the East Bentleigh, Bentleigh and Tooronga Bakers Delight stores, continues to support the club both financially, and through the provision of his store's magnificent products. Many thanks to a great clubman.

Spring Osteo Clinic again provided very generous financial support to the club, in addition to maintaining the health of some of our ageing warriors. Many thanks to Nick Harrison for your ongoing support.

Ray White Real Estate Oakleigh has again provided valuable financial assistance to the club, and I encourage all members to use Ray White's services for your real estate needs.

Kookaburra Sport has been a long term sponsor of Victorian Cricket, and we greatly appreciated the very generous supply of balls at the beginning of the season.

Daniel and Jenny Junkeer, from Junkeer Business Consultants, have supported the club for many years, and we thank them for their generous sponsorship this season. The referral program developed by Junkeer is going to add considerably to our ongoing revenue. The club is very appreciative of the advice we will be receiving from Junkeer, in the compilation of our updated Business Plan.

Local Oakleigh café, Cote Terra, has become the favourite pre-game breakfast venue for many of the players, and we thank them for their generous funding. Cote Terra also hosted an early season dinner for us this season which was a wonderful success.

To Life Members Bill Robertson from Elite School Photography, and Richard Blaze from Blazeart, many thanks to you both for your incredibly generous provision of services and products, that you both have willingly offered for many years. You are both magnificent servants of the club.

This season the club was very fortunate to continue to receive generous support from Eyecare Plus Oakleigh who will look after all of your optical requirements. I can personally attest to their expertise.

Icon Sports continues to be our apparel supplier and sponsor, and we are extremely grateful for their support.

The club was also very fortunate to maintain sponsorship relationships with Sports Podiatry and Physiotherapy, Kew and Oakleigh, and Jetts Fitness Oakleigh.

The club was thrilled to gain several new sponsors this year. Craig Allen, father of new recruit Marcus, through his company Craig Allen and Associates, Accountants and Advisors, very generously become a significant contributor to the club's finances.

Alpha Squad, Go Workplace Training and MPR Plumbing also joined the club as new sponsors, and we are incredibly grateful for your support.

Finally, thanks to former player, Rob Handel from Snap Printing for producing the Annual Reports at such a generous rate.

CLUB SPONSORS

THE ROTARY CLUB OF OAKLEIGH

MURRUMBEENA COMMUNITY BANK

JUNKEER

THE ROSSTOWN HOTEL

ALLFLOORS CARPET GALLERY

MORTGAGE CHOICE, OAKLEIGH

SIGNARAMA, OAKLEIGH

BAKER'S DELIGHT, EAST BENTLEIGH, BENTLEIGH, TOORONGA

SPRING OSTEO CLINIC

RAY WHITE REAL ESTATE, OAKLEIGH

KOOKABURRA SPORTS

COTE TERRA

EYECARE PLUS OAKLEIGH

ICON

CRAIG ALLEN AND ASSOCIATES

GO WORKPLACE TRAINING

MPR PLUMBING

ALPHA SQUAD

ELITE SCHOOL PHOTOGRAPHY

BLAZEART

JETTS OAKLEIGH

SPORTS PODIATRY AND PHYSIOTHERAPY OAKLEIGH

SNAP PRINTING, ROWVILLE

Finally, I would like to acknowledge the work of Michael Splatt, who coordinated the Player Sponsor Program this year, and managed the Club Sponsorship portfolio. Thanks to Bill Robertson from Elite School Photography for taking the player photos, and to Richard Blaze from Blazeart for the signage involved. The Player Sponsor Program makes a significant contribution to our revenue and importantly introduces many new businesses and organisations to the club. The Player Sponsors are listed below, and we thank them for their generous support.

Peter Webb.

PLAYER SPONSORS

Michael Splatt MINDSHOP

EYECARE PLUS

Ben Hogan HEALTHY BODIES PHYSIOTHERAPY

ACCELERATE TENNIS COACHING

COMPLETE AUTOMOTIVE SOLUTIONS

Marcus Allen CRAIG ALLEN & ASSOC (CPA)

MBCM STRATA MANAGERS MOORABBIN

ALLEN DYNAMIC MANAGEMENT

Nick Thurgood IT BOOKKEEPING SOLUTIONS

JLT RENOVATIONS

Brendan McGuiness CLASSIC BAT REPAIRS

Dylan Brambleby FIRST NATIONAL CLAYTON

John O'Keefe ALL FLOORS CARPET GALLERY

Max Cavolo CBC ST KILDA

Gareth Campbell KNIGHT SPORTSGOODS

Tom Reid HOPEWORKS COMMUNITY SOLUTIONS

MAX PERSONNEL

JOBSINC

Tom McIntyre GRANT SAMUEL FUNDS MANAGEMENT

MORTGAGE CHOICE

Andrew Splatt BILL & ELIZABETH PEERS

James Benn JUNKEER BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

HAWTHORN BRICK & BLOCK

Matthew Girolami BERNIE'S FINE FOOD CATERING Rob Howes DAVE MCGUIGAN & KEITH HARDY

Trent Shields KKW INDUSTRIES

WINES ON POATH

Nick Cowan

Reece Williams

Connor Byrne

NAWOL AGRICULTURE

TOPLINE CRICKET

RTRL PROPERTY

Zach Raymond EAST BENTLEIGH HEALTH GROUP

Geoff Latham AJRECRUITMENT
Miles Fabris MT WAVERLEY TAB

Elliot Fabris OAK CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
John Keogh EMPIRE PROPERTY CONCEPTS
Oli Ormerod JACKSON BARRETT & GASS

Dharmesh Patel MEXICO CITY

Anthony Howes

Ryan Chapple

Matt Stamps

JUNKEER BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

OAK CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

OAK CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Alex Jones SAM'S CARPET LAYING

Gary Iverson BAKER'S DELIGHT EAST BENTLEIGH

Ethan Wright MCPHERSON WINES

THE WINE COMPANY

Tom Ison ISON FAMILY

Sam Phelan MORTGAGE CHOICE Andrew Donohue IVOR DONOHUE

Will Iverson BAKER'S DELIGHT EAST BENTLEIGH
Jack Iverson BAKER'S DELIGHT EAST BENTLEIGH

FINANCIAL REPORT - TREASURER'S REPORT

A crazy mixed-up 2019/20 with numerous washouts (covers leaking on 1 occasion)/Country Week game abandoned & heat-outs in the juniors ... meant there was little flow to the season. This coincided with the calamities occurring in the world outside our cricket bubble – seeing no premiership decider being played - finally resulted in 2 senior flags, at least!

Congratulations to our respective captains (and coach Clinton Bricker) for steering all 4 senior teams to the finals, culminating in 2 flags for the Oaks – and off-field - a profit of nearly \$4,000.

Income for the year fell by \$4,000 to \$99,000 and expenses decreased by \$5,000 - to \$95,000 - a breakdown of material items follows.

Wins for the season included a number of new sponsors (special thanks to Craig Allen & Associates); with many new sponsors obtained by Barb Reid, & the \$223 Liquor Licence being refunded by the State Revenue Office, as COVID-19 relief!

Members subscriptions decreased by \$5,000 mainly due to the club fielding 2 less junior teams & (to a lesser extent) more students & juniors playing in the seniors at discounted rates; netting \$21,835 for seniors & \$11,750 for juniors.

Sponsorship revenue continued to contribute significantly to our overall result. OCC was fortunate again to receive sponsorship from our loyal supporters: Murrumbeena Branch of the Bendigo Bank; Rotary Club of Oakleigh; Sign*A*Rama (Oakleigh); Allfloors Carpet Gallery; Ray White Oakleigh; Rosstown Hotel; Mortgage Choice; Junkeer Business Solutions; Spring Osteo Clinic; and ICON Sports. Thanks to all of these organisations, and - especially Trent Shields - for his diligent pursuing of sponsorship funding.

Player Sponsor profits increased slightly on 2018/19, due to the diligent work of the players & Michael Splatt - as co-ordinator.

Profit from Social Activities matched the prior season returns. A summary showing the results of these activities is included with this report.

Thanks go to those who participated in various Social Activities, whether by running the event, purchasing supplies for the Bar/BBQ, or working on the day. Special thanks to the finance team of Roly Williams & Bettina Latham for their guidance & support; the Trivia night team of Connor Byrne, Jim Benn, Geoff Latham etc; & Connor for again running the Thursday night raffles & Michael Splatt for the inaugural Wine Drive.

Many thanks to Neil Croft for organising and recruiting new members to the Lobster Club - which produced a profit of nearly \$8,000 – due to the first eleven winning an admirable 12 games. Bettina Latham was responsible for processing payments, freeing me up for other tasks.

There were 43 members in 2019/20, & the aim is for these supporters to be wined & dined later in 2020.

Merchandise inventory levels rose \$1,600 due to new styles & designs being purchased in bulk.

The \$5,000 decrease in expenses for 2019/20 consisted mainly of the following items:

- A \$2,000 drop in Umpires Fees one benefit of being washed out so many times ...
- Also, a \$2,000 reduction in Ground Hire fees due to the Grand Finals being cancelled

• No VSDCA Function in 2019/20

Hopefully the world will return to normal leading to stable off-field finances.

This, plus continued development of our outstanding junior players, allied to the core of current senior players & recruitment of a professional player, should keep OCC around the top of the VSDCA ladder again!

Michael Lawson Honorary Treasurer

FINANCIAL REPORT

		PROFIT & LOSS S	TATEMENT	
		Season 20		
2018/19		Income		
.010/13		NO. OF THE PARTY O	2019/20	
2.250		Victorian Sub-District Cricket Assoc.		
2,250 640		Prize Money		
550	3 440	Umpires Fees Reimbursed		
530	3,440	Country Week Allowance Membership	-	*
42,720	42 720	Subscriptions	20.022	20 022
42,720	42,720	Social & Fundraising	38,932	38,932
8,450		Refreshments (Food & Drinks)	10.474	
8,227		Lobster Club	10,424	
115		Presentation Nights	7,920 - 66	
4,654		Raffles	723	
4,095	25.311	Social Activities	6,520	25,521
-	/	Sponsorships & Donations	0,320	23,321
5,000		Rotary Club of Oakleigh	5,000	
5,000		Murrumbeena Community - Bendigo Bank	5,000	
2,000		Sign*A*Rama (Oakleigh)	2,000	
1,500		Rosstown Hotel	1,500	
2,000		Allfloors Carpet Gallery	2,000	
1,000		Mortgage Choice Oakleigh	1,200	
		Craig Allen & Associates	1,500	
1,500		Jetts Fitness - Oakleigh	2,500	
1,000		Icon Sports Pty Ltd	1,000	
1,000		Gannon & Turner Associates	2,000	
1,000		Junkeer Business Solutions	2,500	
820		Spring Osteo Clinic	1,070	
1,700		Ray White Oakleigh	2,500	
500		Cote Terra	.,,,,,,	
3,835		Player Sponsors	4,108	
600		Kookaburra Sports Pty Ltd	1,200	
500		Eye Care Plus	500	
		Alpha Squad	500	
		Go Workplace Training	500	
		MPR Plumbing	500	
690	29,645	Miscellaneous Sponsors & Donors	480	33,058
	8-0-17-10-0	Other Receipts	400	22,020
781		Merchandise Sales	231	
1,677		Bank & Term Deposit Interest	1,289	
	2,458	Sundry Income	100	1,620
1111	103,574	**************************************	99,131	-1000
-				
		Reconciliation		
	103,574	Income	99,131	
	THE RESIDENCE OF THE PARTY OF T	Expenses	95,156	
_	2,843	Net Profit/(Loss) for the year	3,975	
) ,	, ,			
1 21	11		4.1.1	
he CVI	wi		Michael tank	

FINANCIAL REPORT

		PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT			
		Season 2019/20			
2018/19		Expenses	2010/20		
2010/13			2019/20		
1.000		Administration			
1,960 100		Affiliation Fees	2,385		
853		Audit Fees	100		
203		Bank Charges	1,034		
58		Computer & Software	120		
270		Consumer Affairs Victoria Fines	59		
160			120		
3,034		Food Registration & Compliance Gas & Electricity	166		
2,200		Honoraria	3,152		
218		Liquor Licence	2,200		
86		Meeting Expenses	-		
262		MyCricket Collection Fees	59		
204		Postage	224		
864		Printing & Stationery	174		
366	10.838	Telephone	800	72.22	
	20,000	Coaching/Professional Player & Expenses	379	10,972	
25,510	25.510	Coaching Fees & Expenses	25 505	25.505	
20,040	a wyw a w	Other Cricket Expenses	25,585	25,585	
17,843		Ground & Pavilion Rent	45.000		
1,427		Junior Development	15,972		
-,		Junior Scholarships	1,255		
8,809		Materials (Including Balls)	50		
-		Blast/Milo Expenses	8,458		
245		Player Insurance	1,280		
174		Afternoon Tea Expenses	370		
2,931		Hire of Training Facilities	2,360		
14,060		Umpires' Fees	12,095		
1,184		Curating & Linemarking Expenses	919		
199	46,872	Blawer for Covers		42,847	
		Other Expenses	-	42,047	
1,468		Advertising/incl. Sponsorship advertising	1,550		
1,924		Trophies & Presentations	1,385		
100		Donations	460		
2,172		Depreciation - Material & Equipment	1,646		
28		Repairs/Maintenance	1,225		
1,560		VSDCA Functions	*,****		
4,974		J.G. Craig Team Expenses	4,777		
-		Training Courses	120		
2,000		Honour Boards & Signwriting	2,000		
2,190		Oaks Day Expenses	1,312		
530		Country Week Expenses	77.77		
565		Miscellaneous	827		
	17,511	Bad Debts	450	15,752	
	100,731			95,156	
			-		
11	11	//			

FINANCIAL REPORT

OAKLEIGH CRICKET CLUB **BALANCE SHEET** 30/4/2020

30/4/2020		
Current Assets	2018/19	2019/20
Balance at Murrumbeena Community Bendigo Bank	7,910	3,754
OCC Debit Card	-	1,000
Stock in Hand - Refreshments	479	392
Stock in Hand - Merchandise	6,729	8,368
Stock in Hand - Cricket Balls	2,206	3,461
Accumulated Income	3,130	
Prepayments		718
Sundry Debtors	330	140
Cash Float	300	300
Total Current Assets	21,084	18,133
Investments		
Ferm Deposit No. 1 - Murrumbeena Bendigo Bank	37,438	32,103
Term Deposit No. 2 - Murrumbeena Bendigo Bank	21,522	36,062
Term Deposit No. 3 - Murrumbeena Bendigo Bank	16,519	16,603
Total Investments	75,479	84,768
Non-Current Assets	A	
Furnishings at WDV	446	
Materials at WDV	3,312	2,112
Total Non-Current Assets	3,758	2,112
TOTAL ASSETS	100,321	105,013
Current Liabilities		
Provision for Lobster Club Dinner	1 702	2 400
Solid Oaks	1,783	2,400
	-	100
TOTAL LIABILITIES	1,783	2,500
NET ASSETS	98,538	102,513
Member's Funds		
Brought Forward 1st May	95,695	98,538
Profit/(Loss) for the year	2,843	3,975
TOTAL MEMBER'S FUNDS	98,538	102,513
Bank Reconciliation		
Balance as per Bank Statement	7,586	3,754
Plus Credits not shown	324	3,734
	7,910	3,754
Less Unpresented Cheques	.,,,,,,	-
Balance as per MYOB	7,910	3,754
De Shill	Michael	1100
	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	- well

FINANCIAL REPORT

Function	E	xpenses	F	Receipts		Profit			
Refreshment Sales	\$	12,784	\$	23,208	\$	10,424			
Vine Drive	\$	2,812	\$	3,470	\$	658			
Lobster Club	\$	2,400	\$	10,320	\$	7,920			
Player Auction	\$	1,450	\$	2,230	\$	780			
Fipping Contest	\$	290	\$	480	\$	190			
Zone Bowling Night	\$	336	\$	330	-5	6			
Thursday Night Raffle	\$	280	\$	1,003	\$	723			
Season Launch	\$	1,609	\$	1,846	\$	237			
Trivia Night	\$	1,619	\$	4,765	\$	3,146			
Craig Presentation Dinner	\$	1,397	\$	1,330	-\$	67			
Latho's Lockin	\$	300	\$	815	\$	515			
Halloween & Beer Pong	\$	1,528	\$	2,529	\$	1,001			
Totals	\$	26,804	\$	52,326	\$	25,522			
J. G. Craig Shield Compe	E	xpenses	F	Receipts 2,650					
Player Contributions Coaching Fee	\$	1,550		Part of the Part o					
Player Contributions Coaching Fee Cricket Balls	\$ \$	1,550 402		Part of the Part o					
Player Contributions Coaching Fee Cricket Balls Jmpire's Fees	\$ \$ \$	1,550 402 750		Part of the Part o					
Player Contributions Coaching Fee Cricket Balls Jmpire's Fees Catering	s s s	1,550 402 750 290		Part of the Part o					
Player Contributions Coaching Fee Cricket Balls Jmpire's Fees Catering Frophies & Presentations	S S S S	1,550 402 750 290 95		Part of the Part o					
Player Contributions Coaching Fee Cricket Balls Jmpire's Fees Catering Frophies & Presentations Presentation Night	E	1,550 402 750 290 95 76		Part of the Part o					
Player Contributions Coaching Fee Cricket Balls Jmpire's Fees Catering Frophies & Presentations	S S S S	1,550 402 750 290 95 76 1,904		Part of the Part o					

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

To the members and committee of the Oakleigh Cricket Club Incorporated.

SCOPE

I have audited the Treasurer's report, being the Statement of Income & Expenditure, Balance Sheet and supporting notes to, and forming part of, the financial report of the Oakleigh Cricket Club for the financial year ended 30th April 2020.

My audit has been conducted to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material aspects, the financial report has been presented fairly, so as to present a view which is consistent with my understanding of the club's financial position and performance, as represented by the results of its operations and cash flows.

AUDIT OPINION

In my opinion, the Financial report of the Oakleigh Cricket Club presents fairly in accordance with the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act, the Assets and Liabilities at 30th April 2020, the Receipts and Payments and the Profit & Loss Statement of the Club for the year then ended.

Jacob Attwood

FIRST ELEVEN REPORT

Season 2019/20 proved to be historic in more ways than one. The 1st XI are 'back-to-back' premiers for the first time in 50 years, while the spread of COVID-19 forced all cricket in Australia to be abandoned immediately in the week leading up to the VSDCA Grand Finals.

This season was one of significant change and growth for the senior squad. It started with the appointment of a new coaching panel in the off-season, welcoming Clinton Bricker (Coach) from Kingston-Hawthorn Hawks CC, and Alex Jones stepping up into a dual role as a playing Assistant Coach. A welcome change from the familiar faces who had previously occupied the coaching positions, Clint & Alex brought an infectious enthusiasm to the role which had a visible impact on the group from the outset.

The 1st XI squad lost key talent & experience over winter, including 'Premiership Heroes' James Campbell (UK), Shane Townsend (WA) and Jeremy Devlin, as well as emerging talent in Daniel Croft & Joshua Knight, leaving us with less depth than we had a season ago. To counter the departures, it was extremely pleasing to welcome gun off-spinner, Dravid 'Tiger' Rao to the club from Plenty Valley CC, and welcome back Elliot Fabris following a season off.

After a robust preseason of strength & fitness training, skill sessions and practice matches in Sale & Benalla, the season was on us in the blink of an eye. The annual realignment saw the South group pitted against a very strong North group, which presented an opportunity for Oakleigh to test itself every week against quality opposition. There were no 'easy' fixtures this season, and every win was going to be hard fought.

Adverse weather and ground conditions wreaked havoc in the first half of the season, resulting in a lot of white ball cricket. Fortunately our one-day form was strong, recording comprehensive victories against St Bernards, Preston, Brunswick and Moorabbin. Each win saw a different player step-up and lead us to victory, including an excellent 72 from Elliot Fabris vs St Bernards, and 68* from Connor Byrne vs Brunswick – both of whom took enormous strides in their development as 1st XI cricketers this season.

A reality check against Brighton followed by a nail-biting last ball victory against Ormond before Xmas left us 7-1 at the break and atop of the North/South Group ladder.

2020 didn't start the way we wanted, with sub-par performances against Plenty Valley & Coburg. Again, individuals stepped-up to lead us to victory, with outstanding performances from Mick Splatt (6/47) v Coburg, and Dravid Rao (3/25) & Geoff Latham (3/16) vs Plenty Valley was enough to secure the points and maintain top spot on the ladder.

We had a late season wobble against Caulfield & Malvern, however we managed to put our best foot forward against Elsternwick in the final round – a workmanlike victory. While not overly convincing, the group regained some confidence and belief in the lead up to finals. Pleasingly, the evenness of the competition saw a few big name casualties – with the much fancied Brunswick, Brighton & Malvern all missing out by less than a game.

The quarter final saw us lose the toss to be sent in by Ormond. We stuck to a simple plan to grind out a competitive 164 on a track more suited to the bowlers, led by Graeme Vimpani's 67.

As it had done for the entire season, our new ball pair of Mick Splatt & Alex Jones destroyed top-order line-ups. Mick Splatt took the first 4 wickets to have Ormond 4/24, and Alex Jones returned 2/26 off 17 overs. Ormond all out for 84, with Jex finishing with 6/20 off 17 fiery overs.

The Semi Final pitted us against St Bernards Old Collegians, who we had accounted for comfortably earlier in the season. The match was almost a carbon copy of the Quarter Final, only this time we won the toss and decided to bat. Again, a workmanlike effort from the batsman, spearheaded by Graeme Vimpani (46) helped us to 9/178 at the close. Although, at 9/133 with 10 overs to bat, things could have been much different...

What followed was an unbroken 45-run stand between Dravid Rao (28*) & Geoff Latham (17*). The 10th wicket partnership belted the St Bernards bowling attack to all corners of DW Nicholl Reserve, with 16 runs coming off the final over. An outstanding effort that had the entire playing group in raptures for the final hour. The team were united in belief, confidence was up, and we'd take momentum in to Day 2. One of the greatest hours of cricket I've ever been a part of.

On Sunday, Mick Splatt had 4 wickets in the first 15 minutes and St Bernards were 4/7 – right on top. However, at 4/100 things were looking tight, yet an inspired 2 over spell from Connor Byrne forced an error and broke the partnership with a sharp caught & bowled. Alex Jones followed up with the wicket of the other set batsman, and at 6/104 at tea we were back on top.

Some tight bowling from Rao & Splatt kept the pressure on as the wickets continued to fall, eventually bowling St Bernards out for 121 in 55 overs. Jex finishing with 5/33 from 16 overs. The Oaks through to a Grand Final, and an opportunity to go back-to-back.

Unfortunately, that opportunity to play never eventuated. In light of COVID-19, Cricket Australia ordered that all competitions cease play immediately. After a week-long deliberation, the VSDCA Executive awarded the premiership to Oakleigh as the highest ranked team. Our 10-3 season against a formidable North/South Group being good enough for top spot.

An unprecedented and somewhat disappointing decision, but one Oakleigh graciously accept.

To both Michael Splatt & Alex Jones – thank you for your support, and congratulations to you both on a fantastic season. To take 42 & 33 wickets respectively (more than half our season total) is simply outstanding, and your efforts with the ball this season were enough to catapult us into a Grand Final. You are both hard working, gifted individuals that are right at the top of your games, and will no doubt finish your careers as two of the greatest players to ever wear the 'purple & gold'.

Great clubs are run by great people, and without an army of dedicated volunteers our club would cease to exist. Personally, I'd like to extend my gratitude to the following:

- ■Peter Webb Thank you. I'm genuinely lost for words. You do the work of 10 men, provide a steady hand & have led this club with distinction for a long time now. Our success is largely due to your extraordinary contribution to our great club.
- Paul Tolson undoubtedly the most decorated scorer in Subbies! Love having you along for the ride Paul, you're an absolute star. Thanks for all your support on game day.
- Trent Shields, Ben Hogan & Ryan Chapple thanks and congratulations on an excellent season. Thanks for your support, leadership & WhatsApp banter.
- ■Matthew Naughtin for your work as Chairman of Selectors. Purple & Gold to the core.
- •Wendy, Peter & Glenda Splatt for the amazing Thursday night meals & afternoon teas.
- •Kenny & Monash City Council for the fantastic facilities & having us ready to go Round 1.
- ■The OCC members, players, parents, wives, partners & sponsors for your ongoing support. We can't do what we do without you!

Finally, this premiership is dedicated to Robert 'Rocket' McCarthy (#339). A friend, team mate & premiership hero who we lost on the eve of the season. Gone too soon & dearly missed.

Another hard fought season, and another successful finish. Premierships are hard to come by, back-to-back premierships even harder, so to win two flags this season is an amazing achievement.

Always remember that history is not a precursor to anything, so we must continue to drive the standards and challenge each other to push ourselves to new heights. Otherwise, we'll have very little to celebrate in the future.

The rewards will always be there for those who are committed to doing the hard work. Enjoy the break, stay safe, and I look forward to our push for a 3-peat in 2020/21!

Brendan McGuinness Club Captain

FIRST ELEVEN MATCH RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 168 Brendan McGuinness 40, Andrew Splatt 26, Michael Splatt 26 defeated Kew 152 Michael Splatt 4/41, Alexander Jones 2/25, Dravid Rao 2/44
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 8/239 (cc) Brendan McGuinness 102*, Gareth Campbell 43, Alex Jones 22, defeated Ivanhoe 153 Alexander Jones 4/23, Jeremy Devlin 2/30, Geoff Latham 2/30
- Rd. 3 Match abandoned by VSDCA due to rain & rescheduled until 30th November Oakleigh 3/114 Elliot Fabris 72 defeated St. Bernards OC 113 Alexander Jones 4/11 Andrew Splatt 2/19, Michael Splatt 2/3
- Rd. 4 Match abandoned by VSDCA due to rain & resceduled until 17th November Oakleigh 4/112 Brendan McGuinness 59*, Connor Byrne 25 defeated Preston 9/108 (cc) Michael Splatt 4/9, Alexander Jones 3/17
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 8/215 (cc) Connor Byrne 68*, Gareth Campbell 30, Andrew Splatt 27, Michael Splatt 22 defeated Brunswick 168 Michael Splatt 2/24, Geoffrey Latham 2/29, Alexander Jones 2/44, Andrew Splatt 2/44
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 9/203 (cc) Elliot Fabris 55, Michael Splatt 37, Gareth Campbell 35, James Benn 22 defeated Moorabbin 83 Dravid Rao 4/27, Alexander Jones 3/10
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 132 Dravid Rao 59, Miles Fabris 27 & 7/110 Brendan McGuinness 70* lost to Brighton 8/202 (dec) Michael Splatt 3/64, Dravid Rao 2/33
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 9/159 Brendan McGuinness 53, Connor Byrne 36, Michael Splatt 28* defeated Ormond 158 Geoffrey Latham 2/25, Dravid Rao 2/41
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh 8/157 (cc) Connor Byrne 52*, Graeme Vimpani 41 defeated Plenty Valley 129 Geoffrey Latham 3/16, Dravid Rao 3/25
- Rd. 10 Oakleigh 153 Robert Howes 54, Satvik Verma 42 defeated Coburg 145 Michael Splatt 6/47, Alexander Jones 3/48
- Rd. 11 Oakleigh 136 Satvik Verma 34, Connor Byrne 29 lost to Caulfield 3/138
- Rd. 12 Oakleigh 93 Brendan McGuinness 29 lost to Malvern 8/155 (cc) Michael Splatt 3/18 Alexander Jones 3/31
- Rd. 13 Oakleigh 6/129 Elliot Fabris 62*, Graeme Vimpani 21 defeated Elsternwick 127 Michael Splatt 4/14, Connor Byrne 2/28, Geoffrey Latham 2/38
- Q/F Oakleigh 164 Grame Vimpani 67, Alexander Jones 23* defeated Ormond 84 Michael Splatt 6/20, Alexander Jones 2/28
- S/F Oakleigh 9/178 (cc) Graeme Vimpani 46, Dravid Rao 28*, Connor Byrne 25 defeated St. Bernard' OC 121 Michael Splatt 5/33, Alexander Jones 3/33
- G/F Match Abandoned by Cricket Australia due to coronavirus. Oakleigh declared premiers.

FIRST ELEVEN AVERAGES

Player	Games	Innings	N.O.	H.S.	Runs	Average	Catch
Brendan McGuinness	13	14	3	102*	413	37.55	6
Connor Byrne	12	12	3	68*	263	29.22	6
Elliot Fabris	12	13	1	72	248	20.67	7
Michael Splatt	14	15	3	37	218	18.17	8
Dravid Rao	15	13	4	59	153	17.00	5
Gareth Campbell	11	12	0	43	170	14.17	4
Graeme Vimpani	7	7	0	67	214	30.57	4
Robert Howes	3	3	0	54	65	21.67	-
Miles Fabris	10	11	3	27	112	14.00	9
Satvik Verma	10	10	0	42	121	12.10	5
Alexander Jones	15	12	2	23*	110	11.00	2
Geoffrey Latham	15	9	6	17*	31	10.33	11
Andrew Splatt	13	14	0	27	127	9.07	9
James Benn	5	4	0	22	28	7.00	-
Jack Iverson	2	2	0	7	7	3.50	1
Jeremy Devlin	2	2	0	2	3	1.50	1
Matthew Price	5	3	0	3	3	1.00	8
Zachary Raymond	1	1	1	3*	3	-	-

BOWLING -	Qualification	- 480 Ralls	(80 Overs)	١
DOWLING -	Qualilloalion	- 400 Dalla	100 Overs	,

	20112110 4001111011 100 20110 (00 01010)						
	Games	Overs	Maid	Wkts	Runs	Average	Best
Michael Splatt	14	161.4	44	42	406	9.67	6/20
Alexander Jones	15	180.4	57	33	373	11.30	4/11
Geoffrey Latham	15	128	26	19	381	20.05	3/16
Dravid Rao	15	136.3	18	18	400	22.22	4/27
Zachary Raymond	1	9	3	1	19	19.00	1/19
Andrew Splatt	13	37.4	3	7	140	20.00	2/19
Jeremy Devlin	2	16.4	4	2	46	23.00	2/30
Connor Byrne	12	40	3	6	159	26.50	2/28
Elliot Fabris	12	12.3	-	2	54	27.00	1/17
STUMPINGS	Miles Fat	oris	3	Matt	hew Price	!	2

Ray White.



FIRST ELEVEN OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCES

BATT	ING (50 Runs or more)		
102*		VS.	Ivanhoe
72	Elliot Fabris	VS.	St. Bernard's OC
70*	Brendan McGuinness	VS.	Brighton
68*	Connor Byrne	VS.	Brunswick
67	Graeme Vimpani	VS.	Ormond (Q/F)
62*	Elliot Fabris	VS.	Elsternwick
59*	Brendan McGuinness	VS.	Preston
59	Dravid Rao	VS.	Brighton
55	Elliot Fabris	VS.	Moorabbin
54	Robert Howes	VS.	Coburg
53	Brendan McGuinness	VS.	Ormond
52*	Connor Byrne	VS.	PlentyValley
BOW	LING (4 Wickets or more)		
6/20	Michael Splatt	VS.	Ormond (Q/F)
6/47	Michael Splatt	VS.	Coburg
5/33	Michael Splatt	VS.	St. Bernard's OC
4/9	Michael Splatt	VS.	Preston
4/11	Alexander Jones	VS.	St. Bernard's OC
4/14	Michael Splatt	VS.	Elsternwick
4/23		VS.	Ivanhoe
4/27	Dravid Rao	VS.	Moorabbin
4/41	Alexander Jones	VS.	Kew
PART	NERSHIPS (50 Runs or more)		
80	Satvik Verma & Robert Howes	VS.	Coburg
77	Dravid Rao & Miles Fabris	VS.	Brighton
66	Connor Byrne & Brendan McGuinness	VS.	Preston
64	Gareth Campbell & Brendan McGuinness	VS.	Ivanhoe
64	Gareth Campbell & Elliot Fabris	VS.	Moorabbin
62	Graeme Vimpani & Elliot Fabris	VS.	St. Bernard's OC
57	Andrew Splatt & Elliot Fabris	VS.	St. Bernard's OC
52	Gareth Campbell & Connor Byrne	VS.	Brunswick
<u>TEAN</u>	1 SCORES (200 Runs or more)		
239	For 8 Wickets	VS.	Ivanhoe
215	For 8 Wickets	VS.	Brunswick



For 9 Wickets

203



Moorabbin

VS.

SECOND ELEVEN REPORT

With the benefit of reflection and time, most of us can objectively review events and decisions and then justify them, excuse them, or admit changes could have been made. From a team sport perspective if you ultimately fall short of winning the premiership this can be at times a sobering experience. However, if you are intrinsically part of a wider collective, a club full of committed and passionate members who represent both those who have come before and those who eagerly watch on then the question of success becomes more complicated than simply winning or losing.

The Oakleigh Second XI were unsuccessful in their quest to win the premiership in season 2019/20, just like in 18/19 and 17/18. 30 wins interspersed with just six losses incorporating two minor premierships and a home ground advantage 3rd place for no addition to the trophy cabinet may seem superficially to be a disappointing outcome. A part of me agrees with the previous statement, but the other part of me, the part that firmly believes in the club being bigger than any individual – fondly recalls: the eight players who made their First XI debuts in the last three seasons after graduating through the twos; the thrilling final round win at Werribee last year that secured a record seventh Ken Fewster Club Championship for the mighty Oaks; the back-to-back flags claimed by the Third and First XIs both strongly pushed to these heights by the role of the Second XI; and importantly the tears, laughter and good times that accompany spending nine months working together with your mates for a common goal.

2019/20 was another season with significant turnover, several players had family commitments or injury early in the year, while several young guns forced their way into the team early on through weight of pre-season performance.

As a result of this tumult an undertaking was made to identify the next group of leaders (enthusiastic mid-20s crew, who effectively ran the club now anyway) and install them in roles of responsibility so they could grow into the void between the tired veterans and the precocious youngsters pushing up from our famed junior program. To that end, I invited several players to consider leadership positions and of those nominated, James Benn (VC) and Rob Howes (DVC) answered the call. Early in the season I also officially extended a formal invitation to John O'Keefe to join the leadership group, and the growth of these players from a leadership and management perspective was one of the great highlights of the season for me.

Coming off a devastating Grand Final defeat is always a challenge, and the early season brought not only an awful battle with the weather but indifferent form from a team accustomed to racking up wins. After seven rounds the 2s were precariously poised at just three wins along with 4 losses, bizarrely we had not yet saluted at our home fortress with the three wins all on the road. There was no great impending doom about the defeats however with the margins very small, Rd 1 we lost by 3 wickets with Kew scrounging the last 18 runs for the eighth wicket, Rd 3, we were beaten by early season form team St Bernards by just 18 runs in a high scoring one-day fixture after our poorest bowling and fielding performance in memory, and Rd 5 we lost by two wickets against last season's premier in the N/E Brunswick. Round 7 we were completely outplayed, potentially spooked by the team who mercilessly crushed our undefeated dream last March, and as the mid-point of the season was upon us, we were in danger of slipping out of contention.

The final match of 2019 we travelled to EE Gunn to face form side Ormond in a must-win match. Fortuitously we won the toss and elected to bat, however after another bright and

promising opening we again slumped to be 5/69. The collective mood had dropped as a chill swept over the ground, deathly quiet from the stands in stark contrast to when we are at our best. A controversial decision whereby the Oaks felt a fielder on the opposition had incorrectly signalled a boundary rather than six brought us back to life, and the remaining batsman and support slowly turned. A typically pugnacious 47-run partnership between Donohue 45, and Thurgood 18 helped us scrape to a defendable 165. However, the energy we had re-found was almost sapped as the 'Monders moved easily to 1/47 after 10 overs, then the entire season turned collectively on its head. The combative swagger returned, we had regained our voice, and our very effective brand of unsociable cricket had returned. From this point we took 5/0 and then 3/1 to go to Xmas at 4-4.

Straight after Xmas we had an honest self-assessment of where we were at as a team, the statistics were damning. Of the 53 innings in the 2nd XI by the twelve players selected for round 9, only twice had we scored over 40, and one of those was by Doc in his only innings. Another significant turning point, were injuries, with the previously indestructible skipper (give me some due I'd somehow scrambled 50 consecutive games together for the first time in my career) along with the dependable Ed Cowan, thrust Jim (The Commodore) into the main role. From here we went on an unbeaten tear for the rest of the season as we walked the tightrope to qualify for finals. Eventually results fell our way and we ended up with a 'home' final, albeit at the unfamiliar surrounds of Scammell Reserve.

Unfortunately we couldn't quite put together a perfect game against a very worthy and hungry opponent in St Bernard's, even with our paltry day one total we almost, almost stole the game and as a global pandemic swept across our local sporting fields, probably would have ended up as premiers. But that's the thing about sport, sometimes there are fairy tales, sometimes nightmares, but always tomorrow! A greater focus on fielding, fitness, and batsmen taking control of strike rates are the key areas to improve once the 20/21 season rolls around.

Congratulations go to James Benn on winning the batting award, and the returning Matt Stamps with the bowling honours, both for the first time in this grade. Matt contributed brilliantly in all facets once he was recalled early in the season, along with Zac Raymond with the ball who led the attack throughout the year. Rob Howes and John O'Keefe will be disappointed with their output, but both improved strongly in the back end of the year and are set for the prime of their careers with excellent attitudes. Jack Iverson had a taste of higher levels and was a welldeserved winner of the DW Nicoll trophy for best young player. With his undoubted talent could he have produced even better results? I believe so. Could he have been afforded more opportunity to perform as well? In hindsight, I believe the answer is also yes. Unfortunately with captaincy the buck stops with you, and eleven blokes every week have their own agenda that you must try to balance to achieve the team outcome you desire, but also provide opportunities for them to reach their potential. I'm very proud of the steps forward most of the players who have played under me have made in my time, and I'm sure they will be better cricketers for the experience wherever they might end up. Special mention to our Georgians guest, Oli Ormerod who was all class throughout the year, and our spiritual dynamo. Nick Thurgood who is a heart and soul type who can also perform, and I hope he does!

Congratulations also to Brendan and Ben on leading their respective sides to back-to-back premierships. Ben in particular in his first year in the role, and after bemoaning his lack of team success before moving to Oakleigh, now four years later he has three premiership medallions. Brendan pulled together a team widely expected to trail off after losing three premiership stars

from last year along with star Jeremy Devlin early this year, led his team to the minor premiership and then to the flag. Also, great credit to Mick Splatt and Alex Jones for Team of the Year worthy seasons, hopefully they are duly recognised at a suitable time.

Kudos to Peter and his board, in particular Allan, Glenda and Gary in the extremely critical roles they play, I again implore anyone wanting to get the most out of themselves or the Oakleigh experience to put up your hand and get involved, you won't regret it, and it makes the successes even sweeter.

And last but not least, thanks to Shannon, Wendy, Bridene for the incredible roles they play on match day supporting us off the field. Would we still be able to play and survive without their help? Sure, but that adds an extra layer of stress and uncertainty and is what separates Oakleigh from its rivals, our people. They and all the other supporters are every bit a part of this club as the players.

Finally, a special thanks to my family, Kristi and Keats primarily, and close friends for allowing me to continue to indulge in my passion to the detriment of their ambitions. I promise it won't last for ever, but it might not be quite over just yet.

Trent Shields Second Eleven Captain





SECOND ELEVEN MATCH RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 142 Connor Byrne 43, James Benn 21, Robert Howes 29 Lost to Kew 7/143 Zachary Raymond 3/21, Anthony Howes 2/35
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 5/270 (cc) James Benn 112, Connor Byrne 51*, Marcus Allen 34*, Nicholas Thurgood 25* defeated Ivanhoe 134 Connor Byrne 4/43, Oliver Ormerod 3/25
- Rd. 3 Match abandoned by VSDCA & rescheduled until 30th November Oakleigh 192 Satvik Verma 46, John O'Keefe 33, William Iverson 27, Zachary Raymond 26, Anthony Howes 23 lost to St. Bernard's OC 8/201 (cc) Matthew Stamps 3/44, Zachary Raymond 2/41
- Rd. 4. Match abandoned by VSDCA & rescheduled until 17th November Oakleigh 7/174 (cc) Elliot Fabris 67, Robert Howes 27, Jack Iverson 27 defeated Preston 9/167 (cc) Zachary Raymond 3/27
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 141 Robert Howes 29, Elliot Fabris 28 lost to Brunswick 8/143 Nicholas Cowan 2/37
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 4/148 Satvik Verma 60, Jack Iverson 30*, Robert Howes 29 defeated Moorabbin 9/147 (cc) Matthew Stamps 2/9, Zachary Raymond 2/23, Oliver Ormerod 2/30, Anthony Hoes 2/41
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 90 Robert Howes 21 & 4/99 Satvik Verma 63 lost to Brighton 146 Connor Byrne 4/33, Nicholas Thurgood 2/11, Zachary Raymond 2/48
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 166 Andrew Donohue 45, Robert Howes 23 defeated Ormond 86 Nicholas Cowan 3/0, Matthew Stamps 3/15, Oliver Ormerod 3/23
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh 4/128 John O'Keefe 49, Robert Howes 37* defeated Plenty Valley 126 Matthew Stamps 4/30, Oliver Ormerod 3/23
- Rd. 10 Oakleigh 286 Jack Iverson 83, Matthew Price 45, John O'Keefe 41, Gareth Campbell 27, Clinton Bricker 23 defeated Coburg 217 Oliver Ormerod 5/84, Zachary Raymond 3/72, Matthew Stamps 2/31
- Rd. 11 Oakleigh 2/132 Gareth Campbell 49*, John O'Keefe 38 defeated Caulfield 9/128 (cc) Zachary Raymond 3/36, Ben Cuthbertson 2/10, Nicholas Thurgood 2/37
- Rd. 12 Oakleigh 2/190 (cc) Andrew Splatt 49, John O'Keefe 45, Elliot Fabris 45*, James Benn 37* defeated Malvern 116 Zach Raymond 4/24, Nick Thurgood 3/15
- Rd. 13 Oakleigh 2/130 Andrew Splatt 53, Gareth Campbell 42*, John O'Keefe 24 defeated Elsternwick 127 Trent Shields 2/9, Andrew Splatt 2/22, Nicholas Thurgood 2/23, Matthew Stamps 2/28
- Q/F Oakleigh 134 Andrew Donohue 66, Robert Howes 30 lost to St. Bernard's OC 6/138 Trent Shields 3/21

SECOND ELEVEN AVERAGES

				cations - 8 I			
Player	Games	Innings	N.O.	H.S.	Runs	Average	Catch
James Benn	9	8	2	112	203	33.83	2
Robert Howes	11	12	2	37*	256	25.60	5
John O'Keefe	13	14	0	49	325	23.21	5
Gareth Campbell	3	3	2	49*	118	118.00	-
Connor Byrne	3	4	3	51*	105	105.00	3
Elliot Fabris	3	3	1	67	140	70.00	2
Andrew Donohue	6	2	0	66	111	55.50	5
Andrew Splatt	2	2	0	53	102	51.00	5
Satvik Verma	4	5	0	63	184	36.80	3
Jack Iverson	9	6	1	83	158	31.60	2
Matthew Stamps	9	4	3	14*	29	29.00	4
Clinton Bricker	2	1	0	23	23	23.00	-
Nicholas Cowan	9	7	3	18*	54	13.50	2
Matthew Price	8	6	1	45	67	13.40	11
Anthony Howes	6	4	0	23	48	12.00	3
Marcus Allen	6	6	0	34	61	10.17	1
William Iverson	6	6	0	27	61	10.17	2 3
Nicholas Thurgood	14	12	3	25*	91	10.11	
Samuel Phelan	4	4	0	11	29	7.25	1
Zachary Raymond	13	7	1	26	40	6.67	6
Oliver Ormerod	13	6	1	15	32	6.40	2
Trent Shields	10	1	0	3	3	3.00	2
Ben Cuthbertson	1	-	-	-	-	-	1
Miles Fabris	1	-	-	-	-	-	2
Daniel Junkeer	1	-	-	-	-	-	3
Graeme Vimpani	1	-	-	-	-	-	-
Ethan Wright	1	-	-	-	-	-	-
	BOWLIN	G - Qualific	ation - 48	0 Balls (80	Overs)		
Player	Games	Overs	Maid	Wkts	Runs	Average	Best
Matthew Stamps	9	104	34	18	243	13.50	4/30
Zachary Raymond	13	144.3	29	25	422	16.88	4/24
Oliver Ormerod	13	134.1	29	21	398	18.95	5/84
Ben Cuthbertson	1	9	2	2	 10	5.00	2/10
Connor Byrne	3	28	3	9	101	11.22	4/32
Trent Shields	10	61.3	17	11	144	13.09	3/21
Nicholas Cowan	9	45.1	13	8	132	16.50	3/0
Elliot Fabris	3	14.1	2	2	37	18.50	1/2
Nicholas Thurgood	14	79	18	12	230	19.17	3/15
Andrew Splatt	2	7.3	0	2	43	21.50	2/22
Anthony Howes	6	63.4	20	7	167	23.86	2/32
Marcus Allen	6	2	0	0	9	-	0/9
Jack Iverson	9	4	1	0	17	-	0/6
STUMPINGS	Daniel Ju	nkeer	2	Matthew	Price	2	

SECOND ELEVEN OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCES

BATTING (50 Runs or more)	
112 James Benn vs.	Ivanhoe
83 Jack Iverson vs.	Coburg
67 Elliot Fabris vs.	Preston
66 Andrew Donohue vs.	St. Bernard's OC
63 Satvik Verma vs.	Brighton
60 Satvik Verma vs.	Moorabbin
53 Andrew Splatt vs.	Elsternwick
51* Connor Byrne vs.	Ivanhoe
VS.	
BOWLING (4 Wickets or more)	
5/84 Oliver Ormerod vs.	Coburg
4/24 Zachary Raymond vs.	Malvern
4/30 Matthew Stamps vs.	Plenty Valley
4/33 Connor Byrne vs.	Brighton
4/43 Connor Byrne vs.	Ivanhoe
PARTNERSHIPS (50 Runs or more)	
85 Andrew Splatt & John O'Keefe vs.	Malvern
83 Andrew Splatt & Gareth Campbell vs.	Elsternwick
78* Elliot Fabris & James Benn vs.	Malvern
77* Robert Howes & Gareth Campbell vs.	Caulfield
71 James Benn & Connor Byrne vs.	Ivanhoe
68 John O'Keefe & Robert Howes vs.	Plenty Valley
67 Robert Howes & Satvik Verma vs.	Moorabbin
65 Marcus Allen & James Benn vs.	Ivanhoe
65 Robert Howes & Elliot Fabris vs.	Preston
62 John O'Keefe & Satvik Verma vs.	St. Bernard's OC
62 Robert Howes & Andrew Donohue vs.	St. Bernard's OC
58 Oliver Ormerod & Jack Iverson vs.	Coburg
52* Connor Byrne & Nicholas Thurgood vs.	Ivanhoe
51 Nicholas Thurgood & John O'Keefe vs.	Caulfield
50 William Iverson & Zachary Raymond vs.	St. Bernard's OC
TEAM SCORES (200 Runs or more)	
270 For 5 Wickets vs.	Ivanhoe
286 For 10 Wickets vs.	Coburg





THIRD ELEVEN REPORT

Firstly, it was an absolute privilege to be offered the position of third eleven captain for season 2019/20. After playing under Doc's guidance the past three seasons (2 of which were premierships), the pressure was certainly on from game 1. My intention was to run an extremely tight ship and set very high standards for the group. Unfortunately, that was all brought apart before we even bowled a ball when I arrived at Scammell Reserve only to find one of our new recruits, Kevin Theobald, giving throw downs to the opposition. Despite this setback, we started off with a very solid win against Mt Waverley, with the hardest part learning everyone's name with 6 new Oakleigh players in the side.

Unfortunately, my 35-year-old body didn't last long as I suffered a knee injury before round 2. The great Gary Iverson was kind enough to take the reins. Obviously, Gary had huge shoes to fill, thankfully though the opposition wasn't the strongest. Dharmesh Patel's (55) and Jack Iverson's (79) opening partnership of 142 against Moorabbin was higher than 11 of our total team scores from the prior season. Matt Stamps then tore through their batsmen with an amazing 7/14. We followed this with a couple of good wins against Noble Park and Croydon, the highlights being a dominant 69* from Will Iverson and an incredible 2/1 off 9 overs from Big Ben Cuthbertson - the 1 run being a wide.

This brought us to the match up against our eventual Semi Final opponents in Ormond. We set a very strong 3/170, a great score considering the awkward Scammell pitch. Dharmesh continued his good form with a blistering 64* from a few hundred balls, and our loveable import Jon Keogh hit a very impressive 54. With Ormond 8/109, we took our foot off the pedal and unfortunately let them back into the game. Eventually they passed us 9 down, which was a big wake up call for the group. This was followed up by a big loss against Elsternwick with Doc making 54 chasing their huge total of 6/276. Suddenly, slipping out of the top 6 was a real possibility.

We finished the year off with a dominant display in our T20 against last season's grand finalists, Balwyn. We restricted them to 9/42 in their 20 overs, with Ethan Wright taking an amazing 3/2 off 4 only to be superseded by Ant Howes taking 3/1 off his 4. I have never seen so many rain cards played in my cricketing life after Chrissy, with most Saturday's being washed out. When we eventually got some cricket in, we played some really good cricket. The highlight being an outright against Box Hill where we almost lost chasing their small total of 106 8 wickets down, Reidy played an extremely mature innings with the bat to get us over the line. We proceeded to bowl them out for 38 in the second dig - the second time this season we rolled a team for 38. Ant, Lundy and Thari all dominating with the ball taking 5 wickets for the match each. Sam Phelan also found some form with a 64 run knock to get us over the line against Brighton.

This brought us to the final round, a matchup against the undefeated Endeavour Hills with top spot on the line for the winner. Winning the toss and bowling on what looked to be a road ended up being a masterstroke - if I do say so myself. Although with Endeavour at 2/99 off 15 overs and smacking us all over the field it didn't seem that way. Fortunately, our bowlers changed their lengths and we took the next 8 wickets for a mere 28 runs. Lundy ripping through their batting line-up despite his 1:30 arrival and lack of warm up. We comfortably chased them 5 down which took us to the top of the table, little did we know how important that win would end up being!

Our quarter final matchup was against Mt Waverley, the same team we played in the quarters last season. It was Big Ben Cuthbertson's time to shine, ripping their top order apart to have Mount 7/38. They scraped their way to 105 before Benny finished off the tail, ending the day with the ridiculous figures of 7/30 of 29.2 overs in his first ever senior final. We made light work of the chase, winning 4 down led by coach Clinton Bricker's brilliant 54. It was a very dominant display by the team given our lack of 2 day cricket throughout the season (this was only our 4th 2 dayer). We then played Ormond in the semi who won the toss and batted much to our enjoyment, however at 1/66 things weren't looking too great. In came Ant Howes to run through their batting order on his way to 5/18 off 17. We eventually bowled them out for 96 and comfortably chased it 2 down. Sam Phelan hitting an unbeaten 50* in the process. Another very impressive win by the team.

Unfortunately, as we all know, the grand final was abandoned. I have no doubt we would have been extremely difficult to beat had it gone ahead. It's a shame we didn't get to sing the song together once more, but everyone should be extremely proud of how they performed throughout the season, and you all thoroughly deserved the premiership. A big thanks to all 31 players (including 4 Iverson's) who represented the third eleven through season 2019/20. I'd also like to thank the committee for their brilliant work in seamlessly running this great club, especially our esteemed president Peter Webb, the selection committee (sorry for all the arguments Norto), and a special thanks to Doc, GI and Clint who all provided great insights and assistance in my first year as captain. Not to mention all the help from the self-appointed VC, Jon Keogh! The biggest thanks of all though goes to Richard Blaze. What a privilege it is to have a full time scorer and team manager in the third eleven - not many other clubs have that honour. Thanks Rich for all your hard work and guidance throughout the season!

I thought I'd finish by listing some of my personal highlights for the season. Along with assisting opposition players with throw downs, Kevin Theobald constantly yelling out "shot Will!" every time Jack hit a boundary. Dharmesh explaining that if the gully fielder wasn't there to catch him, the ball would have gone for 4. Super coach Clint dropping an absolute pudding in the semifinal after calling 5 blokes out of the catch. Jon Keogh being the target of a vicious drink spiking incident before our round 13 match. Ant Howes eating a sandwich on the field as I blasted the team about their lack of professionalism in the warm up. Ethan Wright backtracking and apologising for sledging a batsman after he bit back at him. Reece Williams running down the pitch and telling a batsman to "use the &%\$@ing thing in your hands!" only to be hit for the biggest 6 of the season next ball. Lundy bowling 4 yorkers after we collectively set a field for short pitched bowling. Big Ben sprinting onto the field as nightwatchman, only to not face a single ball in the evening. And finally, Sam Phelan telling everyone he had the safest hands at the club before proceeding to drop 4 catches in the quarter final. Thanks for a great season all! Go the mighty Oaks.

Ben Hogan Third Eleven Captain



ELITE SCHOOL PHOTOGRAPHY

THIRD ELEVEN MATCH RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 7/144 John O'Keefe 39, Dharmesh Patel 20 defeated Mount Waverley 102 Kevin Theobald 3/13, Oliver Ormerod 2/16
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 5/239 (dec) Jack Iverson 79, Dharmesh Patel 55, Kevin Theobald 32*. Ethan Wright 22* defeated Moorabbin 38 Matthew Stamps 7/14, Benjamin Cuthbertson 2/6 & 2/118 Benjamin Cuthbertson 2/29
- Rd. 3 Oakleigh drew with Caulfield Match abandoned by VSDCA due to rain.
- Rd. 4. Oakleigh 7/71 defeated Noble Park 67 Matthew Stamps 3/20,, Ben Cuthbertson 2/1, Ethan Wright 2/5, Ben Hogan 2/17
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 2/139 William Iverson 69*, Dharmesh Patel 21, Adnan Sahibzada 20* defeated Croydon 138 Ben Hogan 3/17, Ben Cuthbertson 3/42, Ethan Wright 2/23
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 3/170 (cc) Dharmesh Patel 64* Jon Keogh 53, lost to Ormond 9/171 Benjamin Hogan 4/33, Tharindu Goniya 2/22
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 206 Andrew Donohue 54, Thomas Reid 24, Jon Keogh 22, Dharmesh Patel 21 lost to Elsternwick 6/272 (cc) Benjamin Hogan 4/55, Anthony Howes 2/64
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 2/44 defeated Balwyn 9/42 (cc) Anthony Howes 3/1, Ethan Wright 3/2
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh drew with Bayswater Match abandoned wicket unfit for play
- Rd. 10 Oakleigh 9/108 (dec) Andrew Donohue 35, Thomas Reid 25, Anthony Howes 21 & 1/39 Anthony Howes 22* defeated Box Hill 106 Aaron Lund 3/9, Ben Cuthbertson 2/12, Tharindu Goniya Malimegue 2/24 & 38 Anthony Howes 4/11, Tharindu Goniya Malimegue 3/3, Aaron Lund 2/9
- Rd. 11 Oakleigh 4/168 Samuel Phelan 64, Matthew Naughtin 39*, Dharmesh Patel 29 defeated Brighton 8/164 (cc) Benjamin Hogan 3/22, Anthony Howes 2/19
- Rd. 12 Oakleigh drew with Malvern Match abandoned wicket unfit for play.
- Rd. 13 Oakleigh 5/128 Anthony Howes 26*, Dharmesh Patel 21, Samuel Phelan 20 defeated Endeavour Hills 127 Aaron Lund 4/18, Ethan Wright 3/7
 - Oakleigh 4/107 Clinton Bricker 54, Samuel Phelan 33 defeated Mount Waverley
- Q/F 105 Benjamin Cuthbertson 7/30.
- S/F Oakleigh 2/99 Samuel Phelan 50* defeated Ormond 96 Anthony Howes 5/18, Tharindu Goniya Malimegue 2/10, Aaron Lund 2/21
- G/F Match Abandoned by Cricket Australia due to coronavirus
 Oakleigh declared premiers by Victorian Sub-District Cricket Association.

THIRD ELEVEN AVERAGES

					_	150 Runs	_
Player	Games	Innings	N.O.	H.S.	Runs	Average	Catch
Dharmesh Patel	12	12	3	64*	282	31.33	17
Samuel Phelan	5	7	1	64	174	29.00	5
Anthony Howes	7	5	3	26*	93	46.50	5
John O'Keefe	1	1	0	39	39	39.00	-
	7						7
Andrew Donohue		4	1	54	105	35.00	/
Kevin Theobald	2	2	1	32*	35	35.00	-
Jack Iverson	3	3	0	79	97	32.33	-
Clinton Bricker	3	3	0	54	90	30.00	2
Thomas Reid	6	6	3	25	80	26.67	-
Ethan Wright	10	6	3	22*	70	23.33	3
William Iverson	6	5	1	69*	76	19.00	-
Adnan Sahibzada	5	5	1	20*	62	15.50	1
Jon Keogh	12	11	1	53	130	13.00	4
Benjamin Cuthbertson	11	3	1	16	25	12.50	4
•			-				4
Abhilash Mittal	4	4	0	8	17	4.25	-
Oliver Ormerod	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	1
Marcus Allen	2	1	0	1	1	1.00	-
Justin Forbes	3	1	0	0	0	0.00	-
Matthew Naughtin	1	1	1	39*	39	-	-
Benjamin Hogan	11	1	1	13*	13	-	3
Matthew Stamps	4	1	1	11*	11	_	2
Aaron Lund	5	1	1	0*	0	_	4
Max Cavolo	1			_	-	_	_
	-	-	-	-	-	_	-
Tharindu Goniya Malimegue	6	-	-	-	-	-	-
Charith Hathurusibghe	1	-	-	-	-	-	-
Thomas Ison	1	-	-	-	-	-	-
Gary Iverson	2	-	-	-	-	-	1
Samuel Iveron	1	-	-	-	-	-	-
Thomas McIntyre	2	-	-	-	-	-	-
Matthew Tyson	5	-	-	-	-	-	-
Reece Williams	2	_	_	_	_	_	3
rtooco viillamo	_						Ü
BO	WIING - (Qualificatio	n - 360 F	Salls (60 O	vers)		
Player	Games	Overs	Maid	Wkts	Runs	Average	Best
Anthony Howes	7	96	39	17	169	9.94	5/18
,							
Benjamin Cuthbertson	11	123.5	46	21	274	13.05	7/30
Benjamin Hogan	11	115	36	20	292	14.60	4/33
Olivia ii Oiraa a ii a d	4				4.0	0.00	0/40
Oliver Ormerod	1	7	2	2	16	8.00	2/16
Tharindu Goniya Malimegue	6	45.4	12	11	92	8.36	3/3
Kevin Theobald	2	15	3	3	26	8.67	3/13
Aaron Lund	5	54.1	17	13	116	8.92	4/18
Ethan Wright	10	41.4	16	11	99	9.00	3/2
Matthew Stamps	4	53	19	10	105	10.50	7/14
Gary Iverson	2	18	10	1	15	15.00	1/3
Matthew Naughtin	1	4	0	1	19	19.00	1/19
Thomas Reid	7	7	2	1	19	19.00	1/7
December 14711	,	, 4 7	_	1	10	10.00	1//

BATTING - Qualifications - 6 Innings & 150 Runs

48.00

91.00

1/26

1/18

0/8

Reece Williams

Matthew Tyson Andrew Donohue

Jack Iverson	3	4	2	0	8	-	0/8
Max Cavolo	1	3	0	0	11	-	0/11
Adnan Sahibzada	5	2	0	0	11	-	0/11
Thomas Ison	1	3	0	0	16	-	0/16
Justin Forbes	3	15	1	0	66	_	_

THIRD ELEVEN OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCES

79	Jack Iverson	VS.	Moorabbin
69*	William Iverson	VS.	Croydon
64*	Dharmesh Patel	VS.	Ormond
64	Samuel Phelan	VS.	Brighton
55	Dharmesh Patel	VS.	Moorabbin
54	Clinton Bricker	VS.	Mount Waverley
54	Andrew Donohue	VS.	Elsternwick
53	Jon Keogh	VS.	Ormond
50*	Samuel Phelan	VS.	Ormond

BOWLING (4 Wickets or more)

7/14	Matthew Stamps	VS.	Moorabbin
7/30	Benjamin Cuthbertson	VS.	Mount Waverley
5/18	Anthony Howes	VS.	Ormond
4/11	Anthony Howes	VS.	Box Hill
4/18	Aaron Lund	VS.	Endevour Hills
4/33	Benjamin Hogan	VS.	Ormond
4/55	Benjamin Hogan	VS.	Elsternwick

PARTNERSHIPS (50 Runs or more)

1 / 11 / 1	TILITO III O (OO ITAIIO OI IIIOIO)		
142	Dharmesh Patel & Jack Iverson	VS.	Moorabbin
122	Jon Keogh & Dharmesh Patel	VS.	Ormond
93*	William Iverson & Adnan Sahibzada	VS.	Croydon
71	Samuel Phelan & Matthew Naughtin	VS.	Brighton
70	Dharmesh Patel & Samuel Phelan	VS.	Brighton
65	Thomas Reid & Andrew Donohue	VS.	Elsternwick
64*	Dharmesh Patel & Samuel Phelan	VS.	Ormond
62*	Ethan Wright & Kevin Theobald	VS.	Moorabbin
52	Samuel Phelan & Clinton Bricker	VS.	Mount Waverley

TEAM SCORES (200 Runs or more)

239	For 5 Wickets	VS.	Moorabbin
206	For 10 Wickets	VS.	Elsternwick





FOURTH ELEVEN REPORT

To be asked by Peter Webb at the start of the season to take over the captaincy from long time captain and great of the club Daryl Mendes was a true honor. I knew it would be a difficult job (Daryl made it look very easy by the way), but I felt I and the team were up to the challenge.

With probably the most changes to the team in many years, losing players like Daryl, Dharmesh Patel to the 3's, Kobi Wallis not playing and young gun Jack Iverson also playing in the higher grades, we had lost a lot of experience. So it was up to the new players and also the young boys to push up and play the Oakleigh way.

The season began well with some good wins, but with the weather playing a major part in missing a few two day games it was quite disjointed and hard for some to get a good rhythm early. As the season progressed everyone started to put their mark on games with good bowling, supported by great fielding and strong showings with the bat.

After the Christmas break the weather played a part again in hindering good consistent cricket. Needing to win in the last round to make finals the boys knuckled down for a tough win over Endeavour Hills and showed just what they were capable of and how strong they had become over the season.

Finishing third on the ladder put us in good stead for the finals, but alas we couldn't find the same resolve from the weeks leading into the finals. Being sent in on a juicy wicket we were unable to post a defendable total and were defeated by a very capable Malvern team.

To all of the players who played a part in the season for the fourth eleven in 2019/20, you are to be commended for your application and commitment to improve not only as individuals, but as very valuable team mates to the rest of the team and the club as a whole.

I would like to acknowledge the efforts of the younger first year players Max Cavolo, Ashwin Mehta and Luke Ajani you all played a very important role through the year and showed what you are capable of in the future. To the new players to the club a big thank you and well done for your first season with Oakleigh, Reece Williams, Charith Hathurusinghe and Marcus Allen. Finally to the players who have been with the Oaks for a time now, you really stepped up in the absence of older players, Tom Ison, Ben Salmon and Hesh Inamaluwa great job on your personal seasons and all that you did in the big moments for the team throughout the year.

To finish I would like to thank and acknowledge the help and support of Justin Forbes and Reece Williams for this season, having you in the side made everything run a lot more smoothly. Also to Brendan McGuinness, Trent Shields, Ben Hogan, Mathew Norton and Clint Bricker for all of the wonderful hours spent in selection. Finally I would like to thank Peter Webb for showing his belief and support in myself for such an important job.

Go the Oaks,

Ryan Chapple Fourth Eleven Captain.



ELITE SCHOOL PHOTOGRAPHY

FOURTH ELEVEN MATCH RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 5/185 Ryan Chapple 84*, Thomas Reid 29 defeated Mt. Waverley 8/182 (cc) Reece Williams 3/32
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 1/250 (dec) Thomas Reid 117*, Ryan Chapple 101* defeated Moorabbin 77 Tharindu Goniya Malimegue 4/25, Heshan Inamaluwa 3/4, Reece Williams 2/15
- Rd. 3 Oakleigh drew with Caulfield Match abandoned by VSDCA due to rain.
- Rd. 4 Match abandoned by VSDCA & rescheduled until 16th November
 Oakleigh 1/73 Thomas Reid 37 defeated Noble Park 72 Reece Williams 3/15
 Tharindu Goniya Malimegue 4/10,
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 183 Ryan Chapple 28, David LaBrooy 24, Gayan De Silva 24, Brian Grace 23, Matthew Girolami 21 defeated Croydon 5/126 (cc) Justin Forbes 3/17
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 7/255 (cc) David LaBrooy 101, Ryan Chapple 36, Charith Hathurusinghe 31, Ashwin Mehta 20 lost to Ormond 8/25/ Heshan Inamaluwa 3/46, Max Cavolo 2/66
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 5/211 Ryan Chapple 89, Charith Hathurusinghe 35, Thomas McIntyre 23*, Dharmesh Patel 21 defeated Elsternwick 8/156 (cc) Luke Ajani 5/15
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 3/63 Ryan Chapple 25 defeated Balwyn 62 Luke Ajani 3/9, Tharindu Goniya Malimegue 2/3, Matthew Tyson 2/13
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh 100 Abilash Mittal 22 lost to Bayswater 9/140 (cc) Tharindu Goniya Malimeque 3/16, Reece Williams 3/23
- Rd. 10 Oakleigh 183 Justin Forbes 72, Thomas Ison 25 lost to Box Hill 7/208 Heshan Inamaluwa 2/22, Justin Forbes 2/40, Reece Williams 2/54
- Rd. 11 Oakleigh 2/74 Ryan Chapple 29* defeated Brighton 72 Marcus Allen 3/10, Heshan Inamaluwa 2/4, Matthew Tyson 2/17
- Rd. 12 Oakleigh drew with Malvern Match abandoned wicket unfit for play.
- Rd. 13 Oakleigh 8/128 (cc) Marcus Allen 33, Thomas Ison 23* defeated Endeavour Hills 116 Justin Forbes 2/12, Max Cavolo 2/16, Heshan Inamawala 2/19
- Q/F Oakleigh 70 Marcus Allen 24 lost to Malvern 129 Marcus Allen 4/30, Dylan Brambleby 2/23





FOURTH ELEVEN OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCES

<u>BATTIN</u>	BATTING (50 Runs or more)						
117*	Thomas Reid	VS.	Moorabbin				
101*	Ryan Chapple	VS.	Moorabbin				
101	David LaBrooy	VS.	Ormond				
89	Ryan Chapple	VS.	Elsternwick				
84*	Ryan Chapple	VS.	Mount Waverley				
72	Justin Forbes	VS.	Box Hill				
BOWLI	NG (4 Wickets or more)						
5/21	Luke Ajani	VS.	Elsternwick				
4/10	Tharindu Goniya Malimegue	VS.	Noble Park				
4/25	Tharindu Goniya Malimegue	VS.	Moorabbin				
4/30	Marcus Allen	VS.	Malvern				
PARTNERSHIPS (50 Runs or more)							
225*	Thomas Reid & Ryan Chapple	VS.	Moorabbin				
99	Thomas Reid & Ryan Chapple	VS.	Mount Waverley				
93	Charith Hathurusinghe & David LaBrooy	VS.	Ormond				
62	Reece Williams & Marcus Allen	VS.	Endevour Hills				
59	Thomas Reid & Reece Williams	VS.	Noble Park				
TEAM :	SCORES (200 Runs or more)						
258	For 8 Wickets	VS.	Ormond				
250	For 1 Wicket	VS.	Moorabbin				
211	For 5 Wickets	VS.	Elsternwick				

FOURTH ELEVEN AVERAGES

		G - Qualific	cations -	6 Innings	& 150 Ru	ıns	
Player	Games	Innings	N.O.	H.S.	Runs	Average	Catch
Ryan Chapple	11	10	3	101*	417	59.57	3
Thomas Reid	3	3	1	117*	183	91.50	-
David LaBrooy	2	2	0	101	125	62.50	-
Marcus Allen	4	3	1	33	65	32.50	2
Brian Grace	1	1	0	23	23	23.00	-
Gayan De Silva	2	2	0	24	41	20.50	-
Heshan Inamaluwa	12	4	3	18*	19	19.00	2
Thomas Ison	8	6	2	25	72	18.00	2
Justin Forbes	7	5	0	72	87	17.40	4
Abilash Mittal	2	2	0	22	34	17.00	2
Charith Hathurusinghe	11	7	1	35*	89	14.83	10
Matthew Girolami	7	4	0	21	57	14.25	1
Ashwin Mehta	6	5	0	20	64	12.80	1
Thomas McIntyre	10	8	3	23*	59	11.80	4
Matthew Naughtin	1	1	0	11	11	11.00	-
Reece Williams	10	9	1	22	85	10.63	4
Tharindu Goniya Malimegue	5	2	0	12	18	9.00	-
Dylan Brambleby	5	3	0	15	25	8.33	3
Benjamin Salmon	11	7	1	14	29	4.83	2
Max Cavolo	10	3	0	5	7	2.33	-
Matthew Tyson	7	1	0	0	0	0.00	1
Daniel Junkeer	1	1	1	6*	6	-	1
Luke Ajani	5	2	2	2*	3	-	1
Samuel Iverson	1	-	-	-	-	-	-
Amit Mehta	1	-	-	-	-	-	-
Daryl Mendes	1	-	-	-	-	-	-

BOWLING - Qualification - 360 Balls (60 Overs)

				000 D ano	(55 5 15.1	-)	
Player	Games	Overs	Maid	Wkts	Runs	Average	Best
Reece Williams	10	90.1	25	17	237	13.94	3/15
Heshan Inamaluwa	12	76	14	17	250	14.71	3/4
Justin Forbes	7	68	17	9	172	19.11	3/14
Matthew Tyson	7	62.3	24	5	146	29.20	2/13
Tharindu Goniya Malimegue	5	37.4	11	14	80	5.71	4/10
Luke Ajani	5	28	10	9	58	6.44	5/21
Marcus Allen	4	50	17	9	91	10.11	4/30
Dylan Brambleby	5	11	5	2	23	11.50	2/23
Thomas Reid	3	8	1	2	39	19.50	1/10
Max Cavolo	10	51.5	5	9	212	23.56	2/16
David LaBrooy	2	5.5	0	1	30	30.00	1/30
Thomas Ison	8	9	0	1	31	31.00	1/29
Ashwin Mehta	6	20	2	2	70	35.00	1/16
Daryl Mendes	1	4	0	0	10	-	0/10
Amit Mehta	1	5	0	0	14	-	0/14
Gayan De Silva	2	3	0	0	22	-	0/22
Brian Grace	1	7	1	0	22	-	0/22
Thomas McIntyre	10	8.3	1	0	43	-	0/13
STUMPINGS	(Charith Ha	thurusing	ghe	4		





T20 TWILIGHT MATCH RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 6/115 (cc) Arjun Dhull 37, Andrew Splatt 30 defeated Brighton 80 Oliver Ormerod 3/5, Dravid Rao 3/12, Nicholas Thurgood 2/14
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 93 Michael Splatt 22 lost to Caulfield 6/114 (cc) Oliver Ormerod 3/17

T20 TWILIGHT AVERAGES

			BATTING				
Player	Games	Innings	Not Outs	High Score	Runs	Average	Catches
Jemes Benn	2	1	0	3	5	5.00	-
Connor Byrne	2	2	1	11*	22	22.00	2
Arjun Dhull	1	1	0	37	37	37.00	-
Elliot Fabris	1	1	0	10	10	10.00	-
Jack Iverson	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	-
Geoffrey Latham	1	1	0	6	6	6.00	-
John O'Keefe	1	1	0	3	3	3.00	-
Oliver Ormerod	2	1	1	2*	2	-	1
Samuel Jones	1	1	0	12	12	12.00	-
Matthew Price	2	2	0	2	3	1.50	1
Dravid Rao	2	2	1	11*	17	17.00	-
Andrew Splatt	1	1	0	30	30	30.00	-
Michael Splatt	2	2	0	22	37	18.50	1
Nicholas Thurgood	2	1	0	6	6	6.00	-
			BOWLING	.			
Player	Games	Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Average	Best
Connor Byrne	2	2	-	0	14	-	0/14
Arjun Dhull	_ 1	2	_	0	15	-	0/15
Geoffrey Latham	1	4	1	0	22	-	0/22
Oliver Ormerod	2	7	1	6	22	3.67	3/5
Dravid Rao	2	8	-	4	32	8.00	3/12
7l D l	_	0		•	4.4		0/4.4

3/12
0/14
1/4
1/30
2/14

STUMPINGS Matthew Price 1





MICHAEL SPLATT JOINS VSDCA 200 GAME CLUB

Congratulations to Oakleigh all-rounder Michael Splatt who plays his 200th 1st XI match in this weekend's North/South Semi Final against St.Bernards.

Michael joins an illustrious group of Oakleigh players to achieve this milestone counting the incomparable Val Holten, legendary Ron Munyard, champion Daniel Junkeer, record-breaking Ben Pinwill and multiple premiership winner, the prolific Hamish Morrison.

Considering the incredible talent and contribution of that group, Splatt more than holds his own in this prestigious company with already two VSDCA Team of the Year caps (and as leading wicket taker in the competition in 19/20 you'd be brave to bet against a third), four club championship awards, an MVP trophy, a Jack Sheehan Medal, multiple bowling averages and four premiership medallions with a fifth medal as 12th man in the 04/05 triumph as a youngster, along with a five-wicket haul in a Second XI flag for good measure.



Jex, as he is affectionately known amongst his Oakleigh brethren has been a model of consistency since debuting in the top grade in the 2006/07 season. From the following year when he established his place in the Firsts, he has never played less than 14 matches in any season, possessing an eye-catching style of power and grace he has stroked almost 3,000 runs at a tick over 20 with eleven half centuries, and with his robust right arm pace taking an impressive 328 wickets at just 16, with seven 5-wicket hauls, including a career best of 8/9 against Moorabbin in 17/18. His all-round abilities are complimented by an amazing presence in the field which is illustrated by his 28 run-outs and 86 catches, mostly from the slip cordon.



His longevity at the club has encompassed all seven of Oakleigh's record Club Championship victories and began in the U16s and lower XIs as a technically correct top-order batsman and leg spin bowler. His 80 matches across the other grades included batting and bowling averages of 22 and a further 55 catches and 1 stumping.

In addition to his on-field records, Michael has served on the Oakleigh CC Board of Management and coordinated the Social Committee, while also managing and facilitating the Woolworths Blast Program.

All connected with the VSDCA congratulate Michael as he celebrates this very special milestone in front of his extremely proud family, friends and teammates.

Written by Trent Shields for the VSDCA Web site http://www.vsdca.vic.cricket.com.au/home.aspx?

EULOGY FOR ROB McCARTHY

I first met Rob whilst we were in primary school and our mums played netball together at Oakleigh recreation centre. All I really remember is Rob's cheeky smile and that Sally was a gun centre, but I had no idea how good our friendship was to become.

I then joined the Oakleigh Cricket Club & Oakleigh Dragons Football Club when we were 12 years old and this is where I would become lifelong friends with Robert "Rocket" McCarthy. Rob was the sort of kid that would be the most polite, well-spoken and well-mannered boy around anyone's parents and other adults but as soon as they were gone he would instantly become this little cheeky devil who took pleasure in annoying you and being as inappropriate as he could.

As young teenage boys Rob and I had the most important things a kid at this age could have in common. This was the following: 1. Playing cricket; 2. Playing football; 3. Barracking for Richmond; and 4. Trying to attract girls. But whilst we played cricket and footy every weekend, it just wasn't enough for us and the McCarthy backyard became one of the greatest sporting arenas that the suburb of Oakleigh has ever seen.

After winning 3 junior undefeated premierships in a row, Rocket, Sam Riley and I eventually graduated to the senior teams as 16-year old's at Oakleigh Cricket Club and at this stage we were inseparable. Rocket was a quality top order batsman who was ultra-competitive and tough to get out. He then bowled these little in-swinging mediums which were always on the spot and so tough for any batsmen to hit. I'll never forget watching his first senior hundred against noble park where he pointed to the sky to salute his dad in his celebration. He would have been so proud of you Rocket.

A season or 2 later we then played a Twenty20 Grand Final against Plenty Valley. Whilst I tried to bowl as fast as I could and went for 7 an over without taking a wicket, Rocket beat them with accuracy and variations and took the prized wicket of their West Indian first class batsmen as well as 2 other top order batsmen. He ended up with figures of 4 for 20 off 4 overs and we won the game. Unfortunately for Rocket he didn't get 'man of the match' but we went back to the club to celebrate and he proceeded to inhale as many Jim Beam cans as he could. For those of you who have never drunk with Rocket, I can tell you he was one of the worst drinkers I've ever seen, and this led to almost certain disaster later on. He was absolutely hammered and was telling anyone who would listen that he was robbed of 'man of the match'.

Even with all his well-meaning inappropriateness, Rocket will mostly be remembered for having a heart of gold and endeavouring to help people anyway he could. He had a caring soul and always had that ability to make people laugh no matter the circumstance. His flaring nostrils videos every Sunday on Facebook to try to reduce the stigma of talking about mental health were an inspiration to many people and this showed what an unbelievable human being he was.

Rocket was the best friend I could ever have, and I feel privileged to have been such a part of his life. He was the most loyal, caring, selfless, strong and resilient human being I've ever met. He's left such an impact on so many people and has left an enormous legacy behind. He's not in any pain now – hopefully he's resting up there with his Dad and cheering the Tiges home together.

By Jeremy Devlin

THE RUN-MACHINE WITH THE HEART OF (PURPLE &) GOLD

With an email from the VSDCA executive on Friday, 20th March a curious anomaly in the history of the Oakleigh Cricket Club was finally redressed. For a club so accustomed to success in recent times counting nineteen senior premierships since 2003/04 it would appear inconceivable that one of its favourite sons could remain barren in grand final victories achieved.

Dharmesh emigrated to Australia in 2000, nominally to study a Masters in Information Technology at Swinburne University, but cricket – his true love and passion would become as much of a focus as his budding career over the years that followed. Like many of us Dharmesh flirted with a few clubs before finding his home, amongst them Elgar Park CC and Trinity Willison CC before the Eastern Cricket Association scheduled a fortuitous bye in the 2008/09 season and D succumbed to the mystical siren's call from Warrawee Park one fateful day. It was there while watching Michael Splatt plunder his highest First XI score that he met Life Member and fervent Oakleigh CC spruiker John Doig.

Doigy invited him down to training that week with the promise of a match the following week, which duly occurred on the 1st November, 2008 when Dharmesh set the tone for what was to come over the ensuing 12 years, top scoring with 39 and taking 1/16 from eight overs in a 5-wicket victory over Mt Waverley. Other well-known Oakleigh names in that first match included Life Members Daryl Mendes and Doig, dual-First XI premiership wicket keeper, Miles Fabris, the great Jody Bruerton and our dearly departed Rob McCarthy.



In his early seasons Dharmesh played as an all-rounder, his cagey medium pacers netting 43 wickets, and batting in various positions in the order. After a solid, but unspectacular debut season in purple & gold Dharmesh blossomed in season two, striking the first of many half centuries in the first round versus Ormond, eventually compiling over 400 runs for the year. At this time, he also gave up the long run up and took the gloves, over time becoming a more than capable wicket keeper.

The next year was even more prolific, another three 50s and two 40s seeing him elevated to the Third XI for the finals series. A solid 35* in a rain affected Semi Final win saw Dharmesh retain his position for the Grand Final, however this meant he missed joining his beloved teammates in the Fourth XI decider.

Unfortunately for Dharmesh, 3rd XI skipper Andrew Mitchell and his team, they were ultimately bested in a see-sawing battle as Croydon claimed victory by 2 wickets. Meanwhile, the 4th XI were claiming their first and to date sole premiership at nearby Mt Waverley with a completely dominant performance. Dharmesh's replacement in the side as opener and wicketkeeper, Guy Driscoll top scoring with 75 and taking three catches. The winning side captained by Mark Wylie also featured future First XI stars, Matt Stamps, John O'Keefe and Geoff Latham, Matt taking 8/29 to oust Guy for man-of-the -match honours.

This heartbreak served as motivation to D, who started to place more emphasis on his physical fitness with a view to improving his mental prowess. Furthermore as a keen student of the game, he started subscribing to some key learnings to be a successful top order batsman, such as a willingness to place a high value on your wicket, the ability to bat for long periods of time, and the trust to play your own game.

Coupled with his hunger for hard work, Dharmesh possesses a gritty determination along with the rare but highly prized capacity to remain positive in times of adversity and remain unflustered by sledging from the opposition or his own team.



Slowly but surely, improvement started to come and Dharmesh celebrated his maiden century in round two of 2011/12 in a big innings victory over Ormond. During this time, his leadership capability came to the fore, and he showed an excellent understanding of his role to play in junior development, often sacrificing his own ambition to nurture a young batsman at the other end. His aptitude in communicating clearly and concisely to players of all ages has seen him take on the role of stand-in captain on numerous occasions with great aplomb and an admirable win/loss record. However, a lack of personal and team success in finals continued to drive him as the years rolled by.

A famous watershed moment where he was forced to retire on the cusp of a century due to cramps was the missing piece in the puzzle that elevated Dharmesh's game to a whole new level. In the 2018/19 season with a newfound confidence in both his ability and importantly stamina, D with a new and highly talented partner at the top of the order, (young Jack Iverson with 407 runs at 68) seemed to take umbrage at opposition bowlers attempting to dismiss and then even curtail him, and plundered an extraordinary 904 runs for the season in just 15 matches. It would be glib to compare his season average of 100.44 to the incomparable Sir Donald Bradman, but perhaps only because the Don only averaged 99.94.

A remarkable five centuries, a ninety and a seventy-seven punctuated this season from heaven for Dharmesh, but all the personal accolades including the coveted Ted Plant Medal for best player in the 4th XI, along with the Peter Newton (Best player in 2/3/4 XI) and Sam Blackburn (MVP) trophies could not make up for once again stumbling at the semi-final at the hands of a seemingly unstoppable Bayswater.

In addition to these accomplishments, Dharmesh along with Kishan Sudeep set a new 4th XI VSDCA partnership record for any wicket with their 271-run unbroken stand against Elsternwick in a one day match, and Dharmesh's total of 904 runs surpassed the previous best by David Love of Plenty Valley who bludgeoned 688 in 2015/16.



While Dharmesh's on-field record is one filled with multiple highlights his importance to the very fabric of the Oakleigh Cricket Club runs far deeper. From his leadership particularly of the young

impressionable players, through to helping drive the club culture in the lower XIs, simple tasks that are often taken for granted such as putting down the covers to ensure 24 players get a game in, mixing cordial for drinks (on the few occasions he isn't actually on the ground) and putting out or packing up boundary cones, and with his friendly and easy-going manner, he has become a truly excellent club man. There is also no doubt the love is reciprocated with Dharmesh purchasing an apartment only a couple of hundred metres away from D.W.Nicoll Reserve, not willing to bear the thought of being too far apart from his beloved. He has also volunteered in many off-field roles, namely in regards to administration and IT requirements, along with introducing several recruits over the years namely Jatin Shah (who also became Admin officer), Meher Jall (who came with Jatin from Trinity Willison), both of whom played in the '10/11 4th XI flag), Yogesh Malu and two-time batting award winner Rahil Gandhi.

And so, another unfulfilled season, but this time a difference with long time teammates and friends Daryl Mendes and Jatin Shah hanging up the boots, Dharmesh made the decision to put his hand up for selection in the Third XI. The step up in quality was no obstacle for D as he returned a meritorious 282 runs at 31 – with two fifties, enough to claim the batting award and complete nineteen dismissals behind the stumps. However, by far the most satisfying outcome, at least for Dharmesh and his army of friends and admirers (even though due to the Covid-19 situation it was achieved in very unusual circumstances) was the aforementioned email from association CEO Ken Hilton outlining that Oakleigh were declared premiers in the Third XI and finally handing that most elusive premiership medal to a most deserving Oakleigh hero.

Trent Shields

*Up until the end of the 2019/20 season, Dharmesh had played 192 games by our count only missing 2 games in his twelve seasons, making 5,149 runs at the serious average of 33.2 including eight centuries and 29 half centuries. He has also taken 43 wickets at 14.1 with a best bowling return of 5/22 and made 203 dismissals.





MAJOR CLUB AWARDS

ALLAN STAMPS AWARD

"Recognition of Outstanding Club Service" THE IVERSON AND LATHAM FAMILIES

This season past, the club hosted two young men from our sister club in England the Stockport Georgians.

Oli Ormerod stayed throughout the season with Gary and Christine Iverson, and their three boys, Will, Jack and Samuel. Jon Keogh stayed with Bettina and Geoff Latham. Both these families did a superb job looking after our two guests for the six months they were in Australia, and the boys, their parents and the Oakleigh Cricket Club would like to thank and congratulate the Iverson's' and the Latham's' for their incredible generosity, and care.

Both families are very worthy winners of the Allan Stamps Award for Outstanding Club Service.

LIONEL DICKSON MEMORIAL TROPHY

"Recognition of Outstanding Service to Financial and Social Activities" MICHAEL SPLATT AND CONNOR BYRNE

Michael was elected to the club's Board of Management this season and proved himself to be a very capable administrator. Michael coordinated the lucrative Player Sponsor program, and ran the successful Wine Drive. Michael also was the coordinator of the Woolworths Junior Blast Program. Michael has made a very significant contribution to financial and social activities.

Connor is a very popular and committed clubman who once again has made an outstanding contribution to financial and social activities. Connor was the key organiser of the successful Trivia Night, and the annual Community Bowls Night. He also ran the Thursday Night Raffle throughout the season.

Both Michael and Connor are very worthy winners of this year's Lionel Dickson Memorial Trophy, congratulations to both of you.

VAL HOLTEN TROPHY

"Club Championship for First Eleven Players"

MICHAEL SPLATT

Michael is now a five-time winner of the Val Holten Trophy. An outstanding all rounder for a long period of time, Michael had a fantastic season, and took his bowling to an even higher level, taking the most wickets in the competition.

The First X1 Premiership was his fifth(a club record), which is a testament to his ability and longevity. Michael has now played 199 First X1 games for the club, an outstanding achievement.

PETER NEWTON TROPHY

"Senior Players Championship Aggregate"

ANTHONY HOWES

Anthony is a fine all-round cricketer who after finishing runner up to a rampaging Dharmesh Patel last season, went one better this season to win the Peter Newton Trophy. Anthony is always in the game, be it with the bat, ball or in the field, and we congratulate him on another outstanding season. Well done Anthony.

SAM BLACKBURN TROPHY

"For Most Valuable Player as voted by Team officials"

MICHAEL SPLATT

Michael is a superb player, who snatched the Sam Blackburn Trophy from the clutches of early leader Connor Byrne. Michael, in tandem with Alex Jones, forms the best opening bowler combination in the competition. Combined with his batting and fielding, surely will be rewarded with selection in the VSDCA team of the year.

Michael also was selected during the season to play for the VSDCA against Victorian Country Cricket League. Michael is a very deserving winner of the Sam Blackburn Trophy.

GREG CHAPPELL T20 AWARD

"For the best player in the T20 Competition"

OLIVER ORMEROD

Oliver was our best bowler in both T20 games in which Oakleigh competed

D.W. NICOLL MEMORIAL TROPHY "Most Promising Young Player"

JACK IVERSON

Jack is an extremely talented young player who made his First X1 debut during the season, while still being eligible to play Under 15 Junior Cricket. Jack also captained this season's J.G. CRAIG Under 15 Carnival team. Jack will, in time, become a very capable all-round senior cricketer, and we wish him the best of luck if he decides to graduate to Premier Cricket in the coming season.

The club will follow Jack's progress intently as his career unfolds. Congratulations Jack, a very worthy winner of this season's D.W Nicholl Memorial Trophy.

ROWLAND WILLIAMS AWARD

"Outstanding Player in the J. G. Craig Under 15 Competition"

THOMAS REID

Thomas is a fine young player who had a very good Craig Carnival.

VAL HOLTEN TROPHY POINTS FOR FIRST ELEVEN PLAYERS ONLY

Points	Player	Points	Player
120.3	Michael Splatt	26.2	Miles Fabris
75.3	Brendan McGuinness	21.1	Satvik Verma
71.5	Alexander Jones	21.0	Gareth Campbell
59.8	Dravid Rao	14.3	Matthew Price
58.8	Connor Byrne	11.5	Robert Howes
50.8	Elliot Fabris	4.8	James Benn
50.1	Geoffrey Latham,	4.3	Jeremy Devlin
36.7	Andrew Splatt	3.3	Zachary Raymond
30.4	Graeme Vimpani	1.7	Jack Iverson



ELITE SCHOOL PHOTOGRAPHY

PETER NEWTON TROPHY POINTS FOR 2ND, 3RD & 4TH ELEVEN PLAYERS

Points	·	Points	Player
77.1	HOWES, Anthony	27.0	FABRIS, Elliot
67.7	CHAPPLE, Ryan	25.0	KEOGH, Jon
65.5	STAMPS, Matthew	24.5	LaBROOY, David
62.2	PATEL, Dharmesh	23.7	IVERSON, William
60.0	RAYMOND, Zachary	23.2	SPLATT, Andrew
53.5	CUTHBERTSON, Benjamin	22.7	PRICE, Matthew
49.9	ORMEROD, Oliver	21.8	AJANI, Luke
47.3	GONIYA MALIMEGUE, Tharindu	20.8	SHIELDS, Trent
46.6	DONOHUE, Andrew	20.3	BRICKER, Clinton
45.4	O'KEEFE, John	19.2	CAVOLO, Max
44.8	REID, Thomas	14.9	McINTYRE, Thomas
43.5	WILLIAMS, Reece	12.7	ISON, Thomas
42.8	HOGAN, Benjamin	12.5	BRAMBLEBY, Dylan
41.3	PHELAN, Samuel	11.6	JUNKEER, Daniel
38.5	IVERSON. Jack	11.0	TYSON, Matthew
36.3	BENN, James	10.9	MEHTA, Ashwin
35.0	BYRNE, Connor	9.0	THEOBALD, Kevin
32.6	HOWES, Robert	8.2	SAHIBZADA, Adnan
32.2	FORBES, Justin	8.0	NAUGHTIN, Matthew
31.5	WRIGHT, Ethan	7.9	SALMON, Benjamin
31.4	VERMA, Satvik	7.1	MITTAL, Abhilash
31.2	ALLEN, Marcus	6.7	GIROLAMI, Matthew
28.5	LUND, Aaron	4.3	ANSELMI, David
24.4	COWAN, Nicholas	4.1	De SILVA, Gayan
15.8	CAMPBELL, Gareth	2.5	IVERSON, Gary
39.1	THURGOOD, Nicholas	2.3	GRACE, Brian
36.9	INAMALUWA, Heshan	2.0	FABRIS, Miles
27.9	HATHURUSINGHE, Charith		

SAM BLACKBURN TROPHY VOTES

MOST VALUABLE PLAYER AS VOTED BY TEAM OFFICIALS

		•	•				
18	M Splatt	8	RJ Williams	5	L Ajani	2	G Latham
17	C Byrne	8	A Howes	5	G Campbell	2	J Benn
15	A Jones	7	B Hogan	5	M Allen	2	H Inamaluwa
14	E Fabris	7	D Rao	4	W Iverson	2	A Mehta
13	M Stamps	7	T Aponso	4	A Donohue	2	C Hathurusinghe
13	Z Raymond	6	J Iverson	4	M Tyson	2	T Ison
12	B McGuiness	6	J O'Keefe	3	J Keogh	2	T Shields
11	J Forbes	6	T Reid	3	R Howes	2	M Cavolo
10	S Verma	6	A Splatt	3	S Phelan	1	K Theobold
9	B Cuthbertson	6	E Wright	3	D Labrooy	1	A Mittal
9	R Chapple	5	D Patel	3	A Lund	1	M Naughtin
8	O Ormerod						

GREG CHAPPELL T20 AWARD

Player	Points	Player	Points	Player	Points
Oliver Ormerod	12.7	Nicholas Thurgood	4.1	James Benn	0.5
Dravid Rao	9.2	Arjun Dhull	3.7	John O'Keefe	0.3
Anfrew Splatt	6.7	Elliot Fabris	3.0	Jack Iverson	0.2
Connor Byrne	5.2	Geoffrey Latham	0.6	Zachary Raymond	0.0
Matthew Price	4.3	-			

SENIOR STATISTICS AND RECORDS

COMBINED AVERAGES OF ALL SENIOR TEAMS

BATTING - Qualification - 150 Runs							
Player	Innings	Not Outs	Runs	Average			
Ryan Chapple	10	3	417	59.57			
Thomas Reid	9	4	263	52.60			
Andrew Donohue	6	1	216	43.20			
Brendan McGuinness	14	3	413	37.55			
Connor Byrne	18	7	390	35.45			
Dharmesh Patel	12	3	282	31.33			
Graeme Vimpani	7	0	214	30.57			
Elliot Fabris	17	2	398	26.53			
Robert Howes	15	2	321	24.69			
Jack Iverson	12	1	264	24.00			
John O'Keefe	16	0	367	22.94			
Gareth Campbell	15	2	288	22.15			
Satvik Verma	15	0	305	20.33			
Samuel Phelan	11	1	203	20.30			
James Benn	14	2	236	19.67			
Michael Splatt	17	3	255	18.21			
Dravid Rao	15	5	170	17.00			
Andrew Splatt	17	0	259	15.24			
David Labrooy	2	0	125	62.50			
Clinton Bricker	4	0	113	28.25			
Anthony Howes	9	3	141	23.50			
Marcus Allen	10	1	127	14.11			
Miles Fabris	11	3	112	14.00			
William Iverson	11	1	137	13.70			
Jon Keogh	11	1	130	13.00			
Alexander Jones	12	2	110	11.00			





COMBINED AVERAGES OF ALL SENIOR TEAMS

BOWLING - Qualification - 10 Wickets

	DOWLING	- Qualificatio	II - IO WICKELS		
Player	Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Average
Tharindu Goniya	83.2	23	25	172	6.88
Aaron Lund	54.1	17	13	116	8.92
Ethan Wright	41.4	16	11	99	9.00
Michael Splatt	167.4	44	43	448	10.42
Alexander Jones	180.4	57	33	373	11.30
Ben Cuthbertson	132.5	48	23	284	12.35
Matthew Stamps	157	53	28	348	12.43
Trent Shields	61.3	17	11	144	13.09
Benjamin Hogan	115	36	20	292	14.60
Anthony Howes	159.5	59	24	336	14.00
Heshan Inamaluwa	76	14	17	250	14.71
Oliver Ormerod	148.1	32	29	436	15.03
Reece Williams	107.1	29	18	285	15.83
Zachary Raymond	155.3	32	26	455	17.50
Nicholas Thurgood	84	18	14	252	18.00
Connor Byrne	70	6	15	274	18.27
Andrew Splatt	46.1	3	10	187	18.70
Dravid Rao	144.3	18	22	432	19.64
Geoffrey Latham	132	27	19	403	21.21
Luke Ajani	28	10	9	58	6.44
Kevin Theobald	15	3	3	26	8.67
Marcus Allen	52	17	9	100	11.11
Dylan Brambleby	11	5	2	23	11.50
Gary Iverson	18	10	1	15	15.00
Nicholas Cowan	45.1	13	8	132	16.50
Matthew Naughtin	4	-	1	19	19.00
Thomas Reid	15	3	3	58	19.33
Elliot Fabris	26.4	2	4	91	22.75
Jeremy Devlin	16.4	4	2	46	23.00
Max Cavolo	54.4	5	9	223	24.78
Justin Forbes	83	18	9	238	26.44
David LaBrooy	5.5	-	1	30	30.00
Ashwin Mehta	20	2	2	70	35.00
Matthew Tyson	93.3	27	6	237	39.50
Thomas Ison	12	-	1	47	47.00





COMBINED FIELDING DETAILS OF ALL SENIOR TEAMS

Qualification - 5 Dismissals

Di	Qualification -		T . 4 . 1
Player	Catches	Stumpings	Total
Matthew Price	18	5	23
Dharmesh Patel	17	-	17
Miles Fabris	11	3	14
Charith Hathurusinghe	10	4	14
Andrew Splatt	14	-	14
Andrew Donohue	12	-	12
Connor Byrne	11	-	11
Geoffrey Latham	11	-	11
Elliot Fabris	9	-	9
Michael Splatt	9	-	9
Anthony Howes	8	-	8
Satvik Verma	8	-	8
Reece Williams	7	-	7
Daniel Junkeer	4	2	6
Brendan McGuinness	6		6
Samuel Phelan	6	_	6
Zachary Raymond	6	_	6
Matthew Stamps	6	_	6
Ben Cuthbertson	5	<u>-</u>	5
Robert Howes	5 5	-	5 5
		-	
John O'Keefe	5	-	5
Dravid Rao	5	- 	5
Gareth Campbell	4	-	4
Justin Forbes	4	-	4
Jon Keogh	4	-	4
Aaron Lund	4	-	4
Thomas McIntyre	4	-	4
Oliver Ormerod	4	_	4
Graeme Vimpani	4	_	4
Marcus Allen	3	_	3
Dylan Brambleby	3	_	3
Ryan Chapple	3		3
Benjamin Hogan	3	-	3
Jack Iverson		<u>-</u>	
	3 3	-	3 3
Nicholas Thurgood		-	
Ethan Wright	3	-	3
James Benn	2	-	2
Clinton Bricker	2	-	2
Nicholas Cowan	2	-	2
Heshan Inamawala	2	-	2
Thomas Ison	2	-	2
William Iverson	2	-	2
Alexander Jones	2	-	2
Abilash Mittal	2	-	2
Benjamin Salmon	2	-	2
Trent Shields	2	-	2
Luke Ajani	1	-	1
Jeremy Devlin	1	-	1
Matthew Girolami	1	-	1
Gary Iverson	1	-	1
Ashwin Mehta	1	-	1
Adnan Sahibzada	1	_	1
Matthew Tyson	1	_ _	1
Matthow Tyour	ı		1

PERFORMANCE MILESTONES ACHIEVED

Service

20 Years Michael Splatt10 Years David LaBrooy

150 Games

Games

300 Games Andrew Splatt vs. Brighton on 7th December 2019
 200 Games Elliot Fabris vs. Moorabbin on 235r November 2019
 Ryan Chapple vs. Balwyn on 21st December 2019

Tom Cashman vs. Monash University Knight on 6th July 2019

100 Games Cooper Fisher vs. MPCL Challenges on 20th July 2019

Rahul Surendran vs. Mulgrave on 19th January 2020 Samuel Iverson vs. Mulgrave on 19th January 2020 Nicholas Thurgood vs. Elsternwick on 29th February 2020

Anthony Howes vs. Ormond on 14th March 2020

50 Games Gary Iverson vs. Moorabbin on 19th October 2019

Connor Byrne vs. St. Bernard's OC on 30th November 2019 Lambros Argiriou vs. Murrumbeena on 17th January 2020

Thomas Ison vs. Box Hill on 18th January 2020 Graeme Vimpani vs. Ormond on 7th March 2020

Gareth Campbell vs. St. Bernard's OC on 14th March 2020

Runs

5.000 Runs Dharmesh Patel vs. Ormond on 1st December 2019

3,000 Runs Jack Iverson vs. Coburg on 18th January 20202,000 Runs Robert Howes vs. Bombers on 3rd August 2019

Brian Grace vs. Croydon on 23rd November 2019

1,000 Runs Gareth Campbell vs. Sunrise on 15th June 2019

Max Cavolo vs. Balwyn on 17th November 2019

Samuel Iverson vs. Moorabbin on 22nd December 2019

Wickets

400 Wickets Michael Splatt vs, Ormond on 21st December 2019

350 Wickets Matthew Stamps vs. Elsternwick on 29th February 2020

300 Wickets Alexander Jones vs.lvanhoe on 26th October 2019

200 Wickets Geoffrey Latham vs. Elsternwick on 29th February 2020

150 Wickets Anthony Howes vs, Box Hill on 25th January 2020

100 Wickets Nicholas Thurgood vs. Malvern on 22nd February 2020

Dismissals (Catches & Stumpings)

200 Dismissals Dharmesh Patel vs. Mount Waverley on 8th February 2020

100 Dismissals Matthew Price vs. Coburg on 25th January 2020

50 Dismissals Anthony Howes vs. Ivanhoe on 26th October 2019

William Iverson vs. Mazenod on 27th October 2019 Geoffrey Latham vs. Ormond on 8th March 2020

SENIOR RECORDS BROKEN

<u> </u>						Previous					
	1st ELEVENThe 129 by Plenty Valley is their lowest score vs. Oakleigh8/1662006/071162010/11										
The 4	3rd ELEVENThe 42 by Balwyn is their lowest score vs. Oakleigh862016/17The 38 by Box Hill is their Lowest score vs. Oakleigh712016/17										
The 2 Chap	ple	ket	t Partnership of 225* by Thomas Reid & Ryan		166 74	2012/13 2015/16					
T20 The 8	T20 The 80 by Brighton is their lowest score vs. Oakleigh 2/85 2015/16										
BEST Wkt	1.1										
1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 10th	62 25 80 66 42 34 34 21 77 45	*	Graeme Vimpani & Elliot Fabris Satvik Verma & Brendan McGuinness Satvik Verma & Robert Howes Connor Byrne & Brendan McGuinness Michael Splatt & Connor Byrne Miles Fabris & Brendan McGuinness James Benn & Connor Byrne Brendan McGuinness & Miles Fabris Dravid Rao & Miles Fabris Dravid Rao & Geoffrey Latham	VS.	Preston Coburg Preston Brunswid Ivanhoe Brunswid Brighton Brighton	ck					
1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 10th	85 83 78 62 71 52 50 20 58 36	*	Andrew Splatt & John O'Keefe Andrew Splatt & Gareth Campbell Elliot Fabris & James Benn Robert Howes & Andrew Donohue James Benn & Connor Byrne Connor Byrne & Nicholas Thurgood William Iverson & Zachary Raymond Nicholas Cowan & Andrew Donohue Oliver Ormerod & Jack Iverson Jack Iverson & Nicholas Cowan	VS.	Ivanhoe Ivanhoe	ard's OC ard's OC					
1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 10th	142 122 93 71 65 62 25 20 25 21	*	Anthony Howes & Thomas Reid Ben Cuthbertson & Back Durson 3rd ELEVEN 3rd ELEVEN Milliam Iverson & Jack Iverson John Keogh & Dharmesh Patel William Iverson & Adnan Sahibzada Samuel Ohelan & Matthew Naughtin Thomas Reid & Andrew Donohue Kevin Theobald & Ethan Wright Anthony Howes & Ethan Wright Ethan Wright & Ben Cuthberson Anthony Howes & Thomas Reid Ben Cuthbertson & Benjamin Hogan	VS. VS. VS. VS. VS. VS. VS. VS. VS.	Moorabb Ormond Croydon Brighton Elsternw Moorabb Elsternw Elsternw Box Hill Elsternw	rick oin rick rick					

4th ELEVEN

			4III ELEVEIN			
1st	59		Thomas Reid & Reece Williams	VS.	Noble Park	
2nd	225	*	Thomas Reid & Ryan Chapple	VS.	Moorabbin	
3rd	62		Reece Williams & Marcus Allen	VS.	Endevour Hills	
4th	25		Dylan brambleby & Marcus Allen	VS.	Malvern	
5th	93		Charith Hathurusinghe & David LaBrooy	VS.	Ormond	
6th	42		Gayan DeSilva & David LaBrooy	VS.	Ormond	
7th	26		David LaBrooy & Thomas McIntyre	VS.	Ormond	
8th	42		Matthew Giralami & Justin Forbes	VS.	Box Hill	
9th	21		Justin Forbes & Heshan Inamaluwa	VS.	Box Hill	
10th	12		Charith Hathurusinghe & Heshan Inamawala	VS.	Malvern	
			_			
			SENIOR T20 ELEVEN			
1st	59		Andrew Splatt & Michael Splatt	VS.	Brighton	
2nd	6		John O'Keefe & Michael Splatt	VS.	Brighton	
3rd	27		Connor Byrne & Michael Splatt	VS.	Caulfield	
4th	9		James Benn & Michael Splatt	VS.	Brighton	
5th	5		Michael Splatt & Connor Byrne	VS.	Brighton	
6th	5		Matthew Price & Connor Byrne	VS.	Brighton	
7th	16	*	Connor Byrne & Dravid Rao	VS.	Brighton	
8th	15		Dravid Rao & Nicholas Thurgood	VS.	Caulfield	
9th	6		Nicholas Thurgood & Geoffrey Latham	VS.	Caulfield	
10th	5		Geoffrey Latham & Oliver Ormerod	VS.	Caulfield	

K. G. FEWSTER CHAMPIONSHIP AWARD

1	129.0	WERRIBEE	15	79.2	ELSTERNWICK
2	127.6	OAKLEIGH	16	78.4	ENDEAVOUR HILLS
3	117.6	WILLIAMSTOWN	17	78.0	PLENTY VALLEY
4	114.8	YARRAVILLE	18	77.4	BOX HILL
5	108.0	BRUNSWICK	19	76.2	MELTON
6	106.8	CAULFIELD	20	70.2	CROYDON
7	103.8	MALVERN	21	69.8	MOUNT WAVERLEY
8	101.4	ST. BERNARD'S OC	22	66.0	IVANHOE
9	100.2	ALTONA	23	63.0	PRESTON
10	99.6	BAYSWATER	24	60.0	COBURG
11	99.6	KEW	25	59.4	MOORABBIN
12	89.2	BRIGHTON	26	59.4	TAYLORS LAKES
13	88.2	ORMOND	27	55.2	NOBLE PARK
14	84.6	HOPPERS CROSSING	28	53.4	BALWYN





V.S.D.C.A. LADDERS - After Final Round

1st Elev	ven		2nd E	2nd Eleven			
Team	Points	%	Team	Points	%		
OAKLEIGH	60	1.2199	Malvern	60	1.3933		
Caulfield	57	1.7233	Brighton	60	1.2815		
St. Bernards OC	48	0.9442	OAKLEIGH	54	1.6141		
Kew	45	1.2320	St. Bernards OC	54	1.5279		
Moorabbin	42	1.1343	Brunswick	54	1.0745		
Ormond	42	1.0258	Kew	51	1.2999		
Brunswick	40	0.9179	Elsternwick	39	1.0134		
Brighton	39	1.1172	Caulfield	36	0.9181		
Malvern	39	0.9906	Ivanhoe	36	0.7096		
Ivanhoe	30	0.8168	Plenty Valley	30	0.8586		
Elsternwick	30	0.7727	Ormond	28	0.9878		
Plenty Valley	27	0.8787	Preston	27	1.2752		
Preston	24	0.8519	Coburg	15	0.5218		
Coburg	21	0.7330	Moorabbin	6	0.2731		

even		4th E	4th Eleven				
Points	%	Team	Points	%			
61	1.9994	Bayswater	63	1.8242			
60	1.5318	Caulfield	57	1.3049			
54	1.6154	OAKLEIGH	54	1.7784			
54	1.5658	Malvern	54	1.3623			
51	1.2732	Box Hill	51	1.2590			
48	0.9408	Endeavour Hills	50	1.0499			
45	1.2262	Croydon	48	1.9042			
42	0.9622	Mount Waverley	46	1.1474			
30	0.6488	Ormond	39	0.8581			
27	0.8876	Brighton	27	0.8613			
24	0.5307	Elsternwick	27	0.8003			
22	0.8421	Moorabbin	21	0.5738			
21	0.6338	Balwyn	15	0.3433			
15	0.7070	Noble Park	6	0.3122			
	Points 61 60 54 51 48 45 42 30 27 24 22 21	Points % 61 1.9994 60 1.5318 54 1.6154 54 1.5658 51 1.2732 48 0.9408 45 1.2262 42 0.9622 30 0.6488 27 0.8876 24 0.5307 22 0.8421 21 0.6338	Points % Team 61 1.9994 Bayswater 60 1.5318 Caulfield 54 1.6154 OAKLEIGH 54 1.5658 Malvern 51 1.2732 Box Hill 48 0.9408 Endeavour Hills 45 1.2262 Croydon 42 0.9622 Mount Waverley 30 0.6488 Ormond 27 0.8876 Brighton 24 0.5307 Elsternwick 22 0.8421 Moorabbin 21 0.6338 Balwyn	Points % Team Points 61 1.9994 Bayswater 63 60 1.5318 Caulfield 57 54 1.6154 OAKLEIGH 54 54 1.5658 Malvern 54 51 1.2732 Box Hill 51 48 0.9408 Endeavour Hills 50 45 1.2262 Croydon 48 42 0.9622 Mount Waverley 46 30 0.6488 Ormond 39 27 0.8876 Brighton 27 24 0.5307 Elsternwick 27 22 0.8421 Moorabbin 21 21 0.6338 Balwyn 15			





JUNIOR COORDINATOR'S REPORT

In 2019/20 the OCC Junior Club fielded 5 teams in various age groups within ISEC (Inner South East Cricket).

Sides entered were: 1 x U11, 1 x U13, 2 x U15 and an U17. We also fielded an U18 T20 team and our JG Craig Shield team once again competed in the VSDCA J.G.Craig program. Additionally OCC had approximately 20 kids participate in our Woolworths Blast program.

Of our 5 junior teams, the U11 team does not play for points, but managed to get through 18 rounds undefeated - a stellar effort! Of our remaining 4 teams, unfortunately finals eluded them all this season.

Congratulations to the 10 players selected to compete in representative teams this season:

- ISEC Rep Teams Harry Cashman, Billy Robinson, Rahul "Razza" Surendran, Xavier Soldati, Ben Salmon
- CV Pathway Teams Jack Iverson, Tom Cashman
- JG Craig Shield Jack Iverson, Luke Ajani, Tom Reid, Max Cavolo, Ashwin Mehta

Congratulations to the 2 players who won ISEC averages or aggregates:

- Luke Ajani U15 Friday Bowling
- Ashwin Mehta U15 Friday Batting

A big thank you to all the Coaches – Mayur Sachaniya, Dylan Grandell, Jimmy Benn/Olly Ormerod/John Keogh, Arther Lewis, Anthony Howes/Matty Tyson.

It was awesome to see senior players in Matty Tyson, Anthony Howes and Jimmy Benn coaching junior teams. Also great to see Dylan Grandell coaching our U13 team. Dylan plays senior cricket at Numurkah but trains with the Oakleigh seniors and thought helping with the juniors was the least he could do to say thanks. What a man!!

Special thanks to Matty Tyson who stepped up to take over the younger U17 Sunday team when the coach had trouble getting there. Thanks to all who helped manage teams, scored, entered results on mycricket, setup up stumps, marked out boundaries, and helped out at training.

Thanks to the parents who have again kept the OCC as the benchmark for morning teas!

Mick Splatt did a fantastic job of running Woolworths Blast (formerly Milo Cricket). After a one year hiatus it was back at the OCC this season on Friday nights.

Thank you to the OCC Board and for their support and guidance this season.

And a final thanks to Roly who is constantly ensuring everything is right – from thigh pads on the outside to MyCricket data accuracy, Thanks Roly you are amazing!

Gary Iverson

Junior Co-ordinator

I.S.E.C. FINAL LADDERS

Under 17		Under 15 Friday				
Team	Points	%	Team	Points	%	
Mazenod	36	1.6926	Glen Waverley	42	1.5704	
Melbourne High School	33	1.3279	Toorak-Prahran Green	36	1.7526	
Mount Waverley	33	1.0579	Murrumbeena	33	1.0600	
Moorabbin	30	0.9985	Toorak-Prahran Blue	33	0.8127	
Murrumbeena	30	0.7321	OAKLEIGH	27	1.0412	
Mulgrave	21	1.1216	Mount Waverley	27	0.6271	
OAKLEIGH	18	0.5663	Prahran	24	0.3813	
Balwyn	15	0.9408	Toorak-Prahran Gold	18	0.7245	
			Malvern	18	0.6792	
Under 13						
Team	Points	%	Under 15 Sund	ay		
Toorak-Prahran	36	1.7467	Team	Points	%	
Mount Waverley	33	1.6536	Mount Waverley	45	1.6680	
East Malvern Tooronga	24	1.4463	Mazenod	39	1.6112	
OAKLEIGH	9	0.2565	Moorabbin	33	1.2250	
			Mulgrave	24	0.8014	
Under 18 T20)		Toorak-Prahran	21	1.3047	
Team	Points	NRR	OAKLEIGH	0	0.3332	
Mazenod	30	1.16				
Toorak-Prahran	24	0.64	Under 11			
Moorabbin	18	-0.70				
Mount Waverley	12	0.23	No Ladder for this grade - Pa	articipati	on Only	
OAKLEIGH	6	-3.79	OAKLEIGH	Unde	efeated	
Under 45 TOO Obellen ve			Hadan 40 TOO Ob a			
Under 15 T20 Challenge	Delete	DD	Under 13 T20 Cha	•	DD	
Team Mazenod	Points 18	RR 4.22	Team Mount Waverley	Points 15	RR 2.72	
Mount Waverley	9	1.36	East Malvern Tooronga	9	-0.42	
OAKLEIGH	6	-2.20	Glen Waverley	9	-0.42 -1.16	
Glen Waverley	3	-2.20 -3.42	OAKLEIGH	3	-1.10 -1.33	
Cleff Waveney	3	-0.42	OARLLION	3	-1.55	
Under 18 T20 Challenge						
Team	Points	RR				
Toorak-Prahran	27	3.85				
Mount Waverley	21	4.40				
OAKLEIGH	21	0.10				
Moorabbin	15	-3.25				
Mazenod						

INDIVIDUAL TROPHY WINNERS

Thomas Reid J.G. Craig Batting Average **Bowling Average** Ronan Shaw Coaches Award Jack Moore MVP Award Thomas Reid

Rowland Williams Award Thomas Reid

Under 17 Batting Average Tom Cashman

Bowling Average Prajay Paramesh Coaches Award Xavier Soldati

Under 15 Friday Ashwin Mehta Batting Average

Bowling Average Luke Ajani

Coaches Award Lambros Argiriou

Under 15 Sunday Batting Average Luke Ajani

> **Bowling Average** Rahul Surendran Coaches Award Samuel Iversom

Charlie Singh Under 13 Batting Average

> **Bowling Average** Keshav Puri Coaches Award Sebastian Trent

Under 11 Modified Batting Award Joel Ajani

> **Bowling Award** Athary Jha

Coaches Award Samuel Duckett

Rowland Williams Trophy Joel Ajani

Andrew Noone Memorial Trophy James Benn

QUALIFICATIONS FOR LEAGUE TROPHIES

Under 17 Under 15

Batting Average - 5 Matches - 150 Runs Batting Average - 5 Matches - 150 Runs

Most Runs - No Minimum Most Runs - No Minimum

Highest Score - 3 Matches in Grade Bowling Average - 5 Matches - 210 Balls

Most Wickets - No Minimum Bowling Average - 5 Matches & 240 Balls

Most Wickets - No Minimum

Best Bowling Figures - 3 Matches in Grade

Under 13 Under 11

Batting Average - 5 Matches - 150 Runs

Most Runs - No Minimum

Bowling Average - 5 Matches - 210 Balls

Most Wickets - No Minimum

Most Runs - No Minimum Most Wickets - No Minimum

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP FOR JUNIOR PLAYERS ROLY WILLIAMS TROPHY POINTS

FOR PARTICIPATION OF ALL JUNIOR TEAMS

Points	Player	Team	Points	Player	Team
98.2	AJANI. Joel	Under 11	12.0	LEWIS, Aden	Under 15 Sunday
78.1	DUCKETT, Samuel	Under 11	11.6	BAVEJA, Kushagra	Under 13
67.9	AJANI, Luke	Under 15 Friday	11.6	DOUGLAS, Harrison	Under 15 Friday
59.2	MEHTA, Ashwin	Under 15 Friday	11.5	NIMORAKIOTAKIS, James	Under 17
50.2	GAUTAM, Yaani	Under 11	11.0	McFARLANE, Lachlan	Under 15 Sunday
47.5	JHA, Atharv	Under 11	10.9	ALLAN, Jack	Under 13
44.9	PARAMESH, Prajay	Under 17	10.3	GETLEY, Max	Under 17
43.6	CASHMAN, Tom	Under 17	9.8	ISON, Thomas	Under 17
39.5	MEHTA, Veer	Under 11	9.1	SALMON, Benjamin	Under 17
31.0	AJANI, Luke	Under 15 Sunday	8.8	PURI, Ryan	Under 11
30.3	GUZZI, Cooper	Under 11	8.6	OORLOFF, Oscar	Under 15 Friday
30.2	IVERSON, Samuel	Under 13	8.5	HASTINGS, Alexander	Under 15 Friday
29.9	D'ROZARIO, Harrison	Under 15 Friday	8.4	IVERSON, Samuel	Under 15 Sunday
29.7	SURENDRAN, Rahul	Under 15 Sunday	8.2	KURIAKOSE, Ron	Under 15 Sunday
28.1	IVERSON, Jack	Under 17	7.9	CALLANDER, Archie	Under 15 Sunday
26.7	SINGH, Charlie	Under 13	6.6	LEOPOLD, Jackson	Under 15 Friday
26.3	ANDERSON, Alexander	Under 11	6.6	LUCAS, Joshua	Under 13
26.0	CASHMAN, Harry	Under 13	6.0	IVERSON, Jack	Under 15 Friday
23.5	IVERSON, William	Under 17	5.2	MISTRY, Pranshu	Under 13
23.4	SACHANIYA, Garv	Under 11	4.8	TRENT, Sebastian	Under 13
23.2	GANDOLFO, Julian	Under 17	4.8	BHARDWAJ, Krish	Under 15 Sunday
23.2	KOCCHAR, Rayaan	Under 13	4.5	WHITE, Thomas	Under 15 Friday
21.2	ROBINSON, Billy	Under 15 Sunday	4.4	BHARDWAJ, Krish	Under 15 Friday
18.9	GOEL, Siddhant	Under 13	4.0	CHAUHAN, Vansh	Under 15 Sunday
18.5	PURI, Keshav	Under 13	4.0	PIPALIYA, Kush	Under 15 Sunday
18.1	SOLDATI, Xavier	Under 17	3.3	D'ROZARIO, Harrison	Under 15 Sunday
17.6	GILL, Navraj	Under 15 Friday	2.9	GANTELAS, Liam	Under 13
17.3	CAVOLO, Max	Under 15 Sunday	2.7	CAVOLO, Max	Under 15 Friday
15.6	SHIRAJ, Anwin	Under 11	2.4	De SILVA, Dehein	Under 13
14.4	ARGIRIOU, Lambros	Under 15 Friday	1.5	MANN, Harry	Under 17
13.8	WILSON, Jack	Under 15 Sunday	1.3	GAUTAM, Arnie	Under 15 Friday
12.7	PIPALIYA, Kush	Under 15 Friday	1.2	AJANI, Joel	Under 15 Sunday
12.5	REID, Thomas	Under 15 Sunday	1.1	BARR, Jarvis	Under 13
12.2	FISHER, Cooper,	Under 17	0.0	MEHTA, Manan	Under 15 Sunday
12.1	MAILLARD, Phoenix	Under 17			





JUNIOR RECORDS CHANGED

	Previous	
Under 17 The 9/54 by Oakleigh is their lowest score vs. Melbourne High School The 9/197 by Oakleigh is their highest score vs. Balwyn The 7/155 by Balwyn is their lowest score vs. Oakleigh The 9/66 by Oakleigh is their lowest score vs. Mulgrave The 70 by Oakleigh is their lowest score vs. Mount Waverley	71 55 8/238 8/419 9/72	2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 209/2 2016/17
Under 15 The 9/230 by Glen Waverley is their highest score vs. Oakleigh The 125 by Oakleigh is their lowest score vs. Mulgrave The 7/269 by Mulgrave is their highest score vs. Oakleigh The 5/256 by Oakleigh is their highest score vs. Mount Waverley The 43 by Oakleigh is their Lowest score vs. Mount Waverley The 6/79 by Oakleigh is their lowest score vs. Murrumbeena The 6/67 by Oakleigh is their lowest score vs, Mulgrave The 37 by Oakleigh vs. Mazenod is Oakleigh's lowest U15 score	176 150 7/181 9/183 56 8/88 125 42	2014/15 2016/17 2016/17 2014/15 2011/12 2008/09 2019/20 2007/08
UNDER 13 The 282 by Mount Waverley is their highest score vs. Oakleigh The 6/292 by East Malvern Tooronga is their highest score vs. Oakleigh	9/267 5/214	2015/16 2016/17
UNDER 11 The 7/183 by Oakleigh is their highest score vs. Malvern The 10/149 by Oakleigh is their highest score vs. Glen Waverley The 10/92 by Glen Waverley is their highest score vs. Oakleigh	8/164 5/107 3/88	2015/16 2017/18 2017/18
<u>Craig</u> The 159 by Oakleigh is their highest score vs, Elsternwick	4/145	1970





J. G. CRAIG UNDER 15 REPORT

With a good preseason behind us we picked a great group of boys to represent the Oakleigh Cricket Club in the J.G. Craig carnival for 2019.

Having a good mix of pace and spin bowlers to go with a talented batting line up, we felt confident that we could do well over the carnival.

Setting goals and talking through our games plans when batting or bowling, the boys were ready and raring to go.



I wish to sincerely thank Peter Webb and Tom Ison for their outstanding work in assisting me in the preparation of the team. The support from the parents and friends group was unbelievable, especially Greg and Jennifer Ajani, Eddie Cavolo and Gary Iverson who organised all of the wonderful lunches at home games and everyone who came to training and games and encouraged the boys in their endeavours. It was fantastic how everyone came together and worked so well. The boys were all great, they gelled well together and were all well-mannered. which is testament to the way they have been raised I also wish to acknowledge Darmesh Patel, Peter Webb and Roly Williams for all their hard work and help behind the scenes, Richard Blaze for scoring and Ben Salmon who helped on game days, which made my job so much easier.

On behalf of the President of the Oakleigh Cricket Club, Peter Webb and Committee of Management, we thank you for coming to our Club, embracing our culture, playing the game in the spirit that is intended.

I hope you all enjoy the full report that follows.

Ryan Chapple (Craig Coach)

Round 1 vs. Brighton at Brighton Beach Oval. Tuesday 7th January 2020.

Match Abandoned due to wet weather.

Round 2 vs. Caulfield at D.W. Nicoll Reserve, Oakleigh. Wednesday 8th January 2020.

Match Abandoned due to wet weather.

Round 3 vs. Elsternwick at Elsternwick Park Oval 2. Thursday 9th January 2020.

Choosing to bat on what looked like a good pitch, the boys came up against some very good bowling for their first official game in the carnival. Losing early wickets we were on the back foot, but with Tom Reid (65) leading the fight back with Aidan Catania (38) as a hard hitting counter the boys were able to post a reasonable total of 159.

Unfortunately with the ball we couldn't get any ascendancy over the Elsternwick bats. The bowling had some chances but with too many extras our reasonable total was too hard to defend and we succumbed with two overs remaining. The best of the bowlers were Tom Reid (2/27 off 7) and Jack Iverson (1/21 off 9).

Round 4 vs. Bye. Sunday 12th January 2020.

Round 5 vs. Malvern at D.W. Nicoll Reserve, Oakleigh. Tuesday 14th January 2020.

Winning the toss and choosing to bat the boys started off well with a good opening stand of 49 by Tom Reid (50) and Jack Iverson (19), which was continued on with William McCormack (17)

joining Tom to push the score to 93. The remaining batsmen all fought hard and came through to the end of our innings at 10/130.

Our bowlers started well with some good dot ball bowling and fantastic fielding, which put the pressure on Malvern's chase and we were always in control of the game. Continuing to take regular wickets and minimising runs Malvern were bowled out for 117. The best of the bowlers were Ronan Shaw (3/16 from 9) and Jack Iverson 1/6 off (5.1).

Round 6 vs. Moorabbin at Moorleigh Community Village. Wednesday 15th January 2020.

Looking to continue our winning form the day before, we came up against group leaders in Moorabbin. Choosing to bat first we had a small stumble early and were 3/47, but with some good consolidation from William McCormack (32) and Leroy Jones (20) it helped the team to put up a defendable score. With some lusty late hitting from Tom Purcell (25*) we finished our innings off with 7/137.

Unfortunately we couldn't replicate our performance with the ball from the day before. Never being able to put the bats under enough pressure and being a little sloppy in the field Moorabbin were always comfortable in their chase and passed our total 4 down. The best of the bowlers were Tom Reid (1/11 off 5) and Max Cavolo (1/11 off 3).

Round 7 vs. Ormond at D.W. Nicoll Reserve, Oakleigh. Thursday 16th January 2020.

Coming into the last game of the group stage and unfortunately not being able to make it into the finals the boys came up against a formidable team in Ormond. Having won the toss and electing to bowl first we were put on the back foot early with good positive batting by Ormond. Slowing the runs down late with some wickets we kept Ormond to 8/195. The best of the bowlers were William McCormack (2/12 off 3) and Connor Montgomery (2/27 off 9).

With a good total to try and catch, unfortunately the boys were never in the hunt losing regular wickets and not being able to counter punch with runs. Being bowled out for just 45 was very disappointing to close out the carnival you could see the fatigue on the boys who had worked so very hard over the two weeks.

This was a difficult carnival this year, the boys played very well in most games and could have pushed for wins in more games. One win does not show what this group was capable of at all and with losing two games to weather. The only things that let us down were the momentum shifts with either bat or ball. When we needed something to go our way it just didn't. Cricket is an amazing game and it shows that you can be in control up to a point, but never think that it will all just happen or someone else will do the job because when that happens it can slip away before you know it. Once again well done to all players for the 2020 J.G. Craig carnival you should be very proud of your performances as individuals and as a team.





J. G. CRAIG UNDER 15 MATCH RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh drew with Brighton Play abandoned due to weather
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh drew with Caulfield Play abandoned due to conditions
- Rd. 3 Oakleigh 159 Thomas Reid 65, Aidan Catania 38 lost to Elsternwick 6/164 Thomas Reid 2/27
- Rd. 4. Bye
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 132 Thomas Reid 51 defeated Malvern 116 Ronan Shaw 3/16
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 7/137 (cc) William McCormack 32, Leroy Jones 20 lost to Moorabbin 4/159
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 45 lost to Ormond 8/195 William McCormack 2/12, Connor Montgomery 2/27, Thomas Reid 2/36

J. G. CRAIG UNDER 15 AVERAGES

	BATTING - Qualifications - 3 Inn. & 60 Runs						
Player	Games	Inns.	N.O.	H.S.	Runs	Average	50's
AJANI, Luke	4	3	2	12	26	26.000	-
CATANIIA, Aidan	4	4	1	38	45	15.000	-
CAVOLO, Max	3	2	0	4	6	3.000	-
HARRIS, Tom	4	4	0	16	34	8.500	-
IVERSON, Jack	4	4	0	19	33	8.250	-
JONES, Leroy	3	3	0	20	25	8.333	-
LOVELL, Ethan	3	3	0	8	15	5.000	-
McCORMACK, William	4	4	0	32	60	15.000	-
MEHTA, Ashwin	3	3	1	2	4	2.000	-
MONTGOMERY, Connor	3	2	0	1	1	0.500	-
MOORE, Jack	3	3	0	13	21	7.000	-
PURCELL, Thomas	3	3	1	25*	27	13.500	-
REID, Thomas	4	4	0	65	136	34.000	2
SHAW, Ronan	3	-	-	-	-	-	-
TOTALS	48	42	5	65	433	11.703	2

	BOWLING - Qualification - 15 Overs						FIELDING			
	Overs	Maid	Wkts	Runs	Best	Average	Catch	Stump	Ass Ro	Un Ro
AJANI, Luke	21	2	3	88	1/10	29.33	-	-	-	1
CATANIIA, Aidan	2.4	-	-	17	0/7	-	-	-	2	1
CAVOLO, Max	9	-	2	37	1/11	18.50	-	-	-	-
HARRIS, Tom	-	-	-	-	-	-	4	-	1	-
IVERSON, Jack	23.1	3	2	67	1/6	33.50	2	-	1	-
JONES, Leroy	23	5	2	69	1/25	34.50	1	-	-	-
LOVELL, Ethan	14	-	-	68	0/14	-	1	-	-	-
McCORMACK, William	12	-	3	57	2/12	19.00	1	-	1	-
MEHTA, Ashwin	4	-	-	14	0/7	-	-	-	-	-
MONTGOMERY, Connor	24	3	3	69	2/27	23.00	1	-	-	-
MOORE, Jack	1	-	-	16	0/16	-	2	-	-	-
PURCELL, Thomas	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	1	-
REID, Thomas	21	3	5	86	2/27	17.20	1	-	-	-
SHAW, Ronan	17	3	4	37	3/16	9.25	-	-	-	-
TOTALS	171.5	19	24	625	3/16	26.042	15	0	6	2

J. G. CRAIG UNDER 15 BEST PERFORMANCES BEST PARTNERSHIPS FOR EACH WICKET

Wkt	Score	Players		Opponent
1st	49	Jack Iverson & Thomas Reid	VS.	Malvern
2nd	45	Thomas Reid & William McCormack	VS.	Malvern
3rd	24	Ethan Lovell & William McCormack	VS.	Moorabbin
4th	43	William McCormack & Leroy Jones	VS.	Moorabbin
5th	3	Ashwin Mehta & Jack Moore	VS.	Malvern
6th	22	Ethan Lovell & Thomas Reid	VS.	Elsternwick
7th	20	Tom Harris & Thomas Reid	VS.	Elsternwick
8th	23	Tom Harris & Luke Ajani	VS.	Malvern
9th	61	Thomas Reid & Aiden Catania	VS.	Elsternwick
10th	11	Aiden Catania & Luke Ajani	VS.	Elsternwick

J. G. CRAIG MOST VALUABLE PLAYER (VOTED BY THE PLAYERS)

Player	Points	Player	Points
REID, Thomas	87	AJANI, Luke	17
McCORMACK, William	70	HARRIS, Tom	14
JONES, Leroy	35	IVERSON, Jack	14
MONTGOMERY, Connor	33	PURCELL, Thomas	14
SHAW, Ronan	23	MEHTA, Ashwin	5
CATANIA, Aidan	20	MOORE, Jack	4
LOVELL, Ethan	18	CAVOLO, Max	1

ROWLAND WILLIAMS AWARD - OUTSTANDING PLAYER VOTES

Player	Points	Player	Points
REID, Thomas	33.6	JONES, Leroy	6.5
MCCORMACK, William	14.5	MONTGOMERY, Connor	6.1
AJANI, Luke	11.8	SHAW, Ronan	6.0
CATANIA, Aidan	11.0	MOORE, Jack	4.1
IVERSON, Jack	11.3	CAVOLO, Max	3.6
Tom HARRIS	9.2	LOVELL, Ethan	2.5
PURCELL, Thomas	7.7	MEHTA, Ashwin	1.4





UNDER 17 REPORT

This season I was the new under 17s coach for season 19/20 The boys had a great year playing with each other. All the players were outstanding and fantastic group to coach. I got to know a lot about them and felt they all grew individually as players.

This season the boys won 3 games and lost 6 unfortunately just missing out on a finals spot.

I would like to thank all the Parents involved in helping each week, to allow the boys to get on the field and enjoy their cricket. Special Thanks to Eddie for scoring week in week out, Simon Fisher for your encouragement, Graham Salmon and Ants Nimos for your help.

Thank you to Gary Iverson for giving me the opportunity to coach the boys this season.

Go Oaks!!

The players involved this season:

<u>Will Iverson:</u> took it upon himself to be captain of the team. He showed great leadership! Will made 125 runs for the season, he topped scored with a 51 against Balwyn in round 4. Will was always happy when playing cricket with his mates, always made the right calls for a bowling change if we needed a wicket. From last season Will has improved not only his batting but his leadership as captain also. We did lose Will through the back end of the season due to injury but always came down to support the team.

<u>Jack Iverson:</u> Jack scored 156 runs for the season and took 1 wicket. Jack was a pretty handy player considering he is only 15 years old. This season Jack wanted to challenge himself by playing 17s. Jack improved each week from when he played first game in round 1 to the end of the season. He was our opening batter, he topped scored with a 74 against Balwyn. Jack was always giving his best always encouraged the bowlers when we were fielding.

<u>Julian Gandolfo:</u> Jules was a new player who to Oakleigh from East Malvern. He was an excellent fast bowler. He opened the bowling he took 6 wickets for the season. Unfortunately got an injury halfway during the season. Jules also made some handy runs and was inspirational in a match winning performance against Mulgrave.

<u>Tom Ison:</u> Tom took 2 wickets for the season and made 48 runs. Another player that was carrying an injury and was not able to bowl, Tom became a batter for us. Tom really enjoyed his cricket and his cricket mates. It did not matter if we won or lost, he was always encouraged the boys and was a very good leader.

<u>James Nimos:</u> James has really improved his cricket. He has worked hard on his bowling. He took 5 wickets for the season. His main role for the team was coming on just before tea. He was able to bowl maidens and sneak in a wicket to break a good partnership for us. He did that really well. James trained hard and bowled well at training and always enjoyed his cricket.

<u>Tom Cashman:</u> Tom has worked hard on his cricket in the last 2 years and has matured his batting and bowling. Tom scored 171 runs for the season and he also took 11 wickets for the year. He was our opening bowler and would always take wickets early for the team. He batted in the top- middle order. Tom was a good leader for the group and was always supporting other batters and bowlers throughout the game.

<u>Cooper Fisher:</u> Cooper was our hard-working keeper. He scored 27 runs with the bat for the season, took 3 catches 1 run out. In the last 2 years Cooper has improved a lot on his keeping and worked hard in the offseason playing winter cricket. Cooper is really funny around the group and a good team leader for the boys on game day.

<u>Max Getley</u> Max was a new recruit to Oakleigh he came from Burwood. Max made 38 runs for the season and he took 1 wicket. Max improved his cricket skills every game we played, he just got better and better. Always talking in the field, always supporting our batting, and working on his partnerships.

Ben Salmon: Ben has improved his batting in the last 2 seasons a lot and his understanding of the game. Unfortunately, Ben was not able to bowl this season because of a back injury. Ben scored 41 runs for the season. He was a really good team leader out on the field, and he is very supportive to all of his teammates.

<u>Phoenix Maillard:</u> Phoenix was a new recruit to the Oakleigh Cricket Club; he came from East Malvern. Phoenix scored 41 runs for the year and took 5 wickets. We lost him halfway through the season due to injury his - MPFL ligament. Phoenix showed good leadership with the team and he always did the right thing when he came onto bowl.

<u>Harry Mann:</u> Harry was a new player for the team, he was playing up a age group. He was really good with all the boys making everyone have a laugh. He always tried his best every game he played. He got better and better with his bowling and batting.

<u>Xavier Soldati:</u> Xavier was a player that was playing up an age group. Xavier took 5 wickets for the season and made 56 runs for the year. He really loves his cricket. He improved his game from the first round to the last. Xavier would normally bowl first change and he would take a wicket every time he got given the ball. He was really encouraging when out in the field and always up for the challenge.

<u>Prajay Paramesh:</u> Prajay scored for the season 174 runs and took 8 wickets. He had really improved his game on batting but also bowling his part time leg spin, His top score for the season was 92 against Mulgrave witch put us in a good position to win the game, Prajay was always encouraging his team mates when we were batting and also out In the field.

UNDER 17 RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 4/106 (cc) Jack Iverson 43, William Iverson 38 defeated Moorabbin Red 7/101 (cc) Tom Cashman 2/10, Xavier Soldati 2/13
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 112 Phoenix Maillard 25, Jack Iverson 20, Tom Cashman 20 lost to Mazenod OC 6/154 Tom Cashman 2/17
- Rd. 3 Oakleigh 9/54 (cc) lost to Melbourne High School 3/120 (cc)
- Rd. 4. Oakleigh 9/197 (cc) Jack Iverson 74, William Iverson 51, Prajay Paramesh 25 defeated Balwyn /155 (cc) Phoenix Maillard 2/19, Prajay Paramesh 2/23
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 6/186 (cc) Prajay Paramesh 92, Tom Cashmen 22 defeated Mulgrave (Red) 3/185 (cc) Phoenix Maillard 2/35
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 134 Tom Cashman 75 lost to Murrumbeena Maroon 7/137 Julian Gandolfo 2/21
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 9/66 (cc) lost to Mulgrave (Red) 7/88 (cc) Prajay Paramesh 4/11
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 70 Tom Cashman 24 lost to Mt, Waverley (Birchall) 7/1164 (cc) Tom Cashnan 4/39
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh 8/91 (cc) William Iverson 21* lost to Mazenod 5/140 (cc) James Nimorakiotakis 2/20

UNDER 17 AVERAGES

BATTING - Qualifications - 5 Innings & 100 Runs

Player	Games	Innings	Not Outs	High Score	Runs	Average	Catches
Tom Cashman	9	9	1	75	171	21.38	3
William Iverson	8	7	1	51	125	20.83	5
Jack Iverson	9	8	0	74	156	19.50	4
Prajay Paramesh	9	9	0	92	174	19.33	5
Xavier Soldati	9	6	3	19*	56	18.67	-
Julian Gandolfo	8	5	3	9*	22	11.00	3
Phoenix Maillard	5	4	0	25	41	10.25	-
Thomas Ison	9	7	1	19	48	8.00	1
Benjamin Salmon	9	9	2	16	41	5.86	1
Max Getley	9	8	0	15	38	4.75	3
Cooper Fisher	9	6	0	10	27	4.50	3
James Nimos	9	5	2	6	10	3.33	1
Harry Mann	9	6	1	3	5	1.00	-

BOWLING - Qualification - 20 Overs (120 Balls)

Player	Games	Overs		Wickets	Runs	Average	Best
_	Gaines	Overs	Maidella	WICKELS			
Prajay Paramesh	9	45	2	8	135	16.88	4/11
Tom Cashman	9	66	12	11	212	19.27	4/49
Julian Gandolfo	8	44	9	6	136	22.67	2/21
Xavier Soldati	9	37	5	5	124	24.80	2/13
James Nimos	9	42.4	5	5	153	30.60	2/20
Max Getley	9	21	1	1	69	69.00	1/11
Jack Iverson	9	21	3	1	70	70.00	1/25
Cooper Fisher	9	5	1	1	12	12.00	1/12
Phoenix Maillard	5	17	2	5	88	17.60	2/19
Thomas Ison	9	17	-	2	77	38.50	1/10
Benjamin Salmon	9	2.3	2	0	3	-	0/3
William Iverson	8	1	-	0	10	-	0/10
Harry Mann	9	9	-	0	53	-	0/12
STUMPINGS	Coop	er Fisher	1				

UNDER 17 OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCES

וטאט	UNDER 17 OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCES								
BATT	TING (50 Runs or more)								
92	Prajay Paramesh	VS.	Mulgrave (Red)						
75	Tom Cashman	VS.	Murrumbeena (Maroon)						
74	Jack Iverson	VS.	Balwyn						
51	William Iverson	VS.	Balwyn						
BOW	LING (3 Wickets or more)	vs.							
4/11	Prajay Paramesh	VS.	Mulgrave (Red)						
4/39	Tom Cashman	VS.	Mt. Waveley (Birchall)						
PAR1	TNERSHIPS (50 Runs or more)								
97	William Iverson & Jack Iverson	VS.	Balwyn						
73	Jack Iverson & William Iverson	VS.	Moorabbin Red						
66	Phoenix Maillard & Prajay Paramesh	VS.	Mulgrave (Red)						
60	Jack Iverson & Prajay Paramesh	VS.	Balwyn						
57	Cooper Fisher & Tom Cashman	VS.	Murrumbeena (Maroon)						
TEAN	// SCORES (150 Runs or more)								
197	For 9 Wickets	VS.	Balwyn						
186	For 6 Wickets	VS.	Murrumbeena (Maroon)						

UNDER 15 SUNDAY REPORT

The Under15 Sunday team was a mixture of top and bottom age kids. For the bottom age kids it was their first stint on the turf pitch. There was a lot of anxiety and a thrill for them to play on turf. We had a really good team of players with great individual talents, and unfortunately it was not our year if we measured the success in wins.

As a coach, it was a great pleasure and fulfilment to watch the players develop their skills and confidence throughout the season. Compared to the start of the season I could see lot of improvements in the field, either bowling, batting or fielding. I am sure the players and parents feel the same.

I am really proud of all the players, as they did their best and were very competitive. They were really proud and always wanted to do the best as a team. Individually each player had success at different times of the season in different games, but we couldn't harness that success with consistency. Being a team game that consistency impacted on one of the measure of success in getting some wins on the board. But the effort, spirit of the game, fun and enjoyment was top class.

Finally I like to thank our Team Manager Andrew McFarlane, who did a tremendous job in organising everything and was a great help for me. Added to this we had a great bunch of parents, totally committed to everything we wanted them to do. Very supportive, helpful with all the tasks and very importantly supporting the kids in what they love to do. Thank you very much and hopefully you have enjoyed the same as I did.

I wish the boys all the success in whatever they are doing in winter and hopefully come back for another great summer of cricket.

GO MIGHTY OAKS

Coach - Arther Lewis

UNDER 15 SUNDAY RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 8/56 (cc) Luke Ajani 32* lost to Mazenod 3/111
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 9/69 (cc) Archie Callander 16 lost to Toorak-Prahran Red 114 Thomas Reid 2/12, Max Cavolo 2/13, Rahul Surendran 2/14
- Rd. 3 Oakleigh 8/73 (cc) Samuel Iverson 17 lost to Moorabbin Black 0/84 (cc)
- Rd. 4. Oakleigh 125 Max Cavolo 36 lost to Mulgrave Red 7/369 Aden Lewis 2/27
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 43 & 7/115 Billy Robinson 29, Luke Ajani 23, Rahul Surendran 21* Lost to Mt. Waverley (Foran) 3/47 (dec)
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 98 Samuel Iverson 25 lost to Moorabbin Black 6/222 (cc) Kush Pipaliya 2/21
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 6/67 (cc) lost to Mulgrave (Red) 3/98 (cc) Luke Ajani 2/25
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 7/82 (cc) Thomas Reid 21, Billy Robinson 20* lost to Mt Waverley (Foran) 9/222 (cc) Luke Ajani 3/35
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh 37 lost to Mazenod 217 Rahul Surendran 4/29, Billy Robinson 3/3

UNDER 15 SUNDAY AVERAGES

BATTING - Qualifications - 5 Innings & 100 Runs								
Player	Games	Innings	Not Outs	High Score	Runs	Average	Catches	
Luke Ajani	9	10	1	32*	105	11.67	5	
Thomas Reid	6	5	 1	21*	50	12.50	2	
Billy Robinson	9	10	2	29	82	10.25	3	
Rahul Surendran	9	9	2	21*	67	9.57	7	
Max Cavolo	8	9	1	36	63	7.88	-	
Samuel Iverson	9	7	0	25	44	6.29	2	
Lachlan McFarlane	9	10	0	16	60	6.00	3	
Archibald Callander	7	7	0	16	39	5.57	1	
Aden Lewis	9	9	1	12*	40	5.00	1	
Ron Kuriakose	9	6	2	6	17	4.25	1	
Krish Bhardwaj	2	1	0	3	3	3.00	3	
Harrison D'Rozario	3	3	0	2	3	1.00	-	
Jack Wilson	9	8	3	1*	3	0.60	1	
Vansh Chauhan	5	2	0	0	0	0.00	4	
Manan Mehta	3	1	0	0	0	0.00	-	
Joel Ajani	1	1	1	2*	2	-	-	
Kush Pipaliya	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	

BOWLING - Qualification - 20 Overs (120 Balls)

Player	Games	Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Average	Best
Rahul Surendran	9	36.5	9	8	115	14.38	4/29
Jack Wilson	9	27.4	2	6	105	17.50	1/6
Luke Ajani	9	50	5	9	185	20.56	3/35
Max Cavolo	8	44	2	6	169	28.17	2/13
Aden Lewis	9	20	2	3	100	33.33	2/27
Lachlan McFarlane	9	28	1	1	131	131.00	1/19
Vansh Chauhan	5	3	-	1	14	14.00	1/14
Kush Pipaliya	2	6	-	2	30	15.00	2/21
Thomas Reid	6	12	3	3	57	19.00	2/12
Billy Robinson	9	19	-	5	111	22.20	3/3
Archibald Callander	7	12	-	2	55	27.50	1/6
Krish Bhardwaj	2	5	1	1	29	29.00	1/12
Harrison D'Rozario	3	10	1	1	34	34.00	1/10
Ron Kuriakose	9	17	-	2	90	45.00	1/10
Samuel Iverson	9	11	1	1	48	48.00	1/12
Joel Ajani	1	2	-	0	8	-	0/8





UNDER 15 FRIDAY REPORT

Season 2019/20 got off to a slow start as we struggled to get a coach for the Friday U15 boys who were all keen as mustard to get on the park.

After round 1 Senior Player Jimmy Benn jumped in the driver's seat and together with English imports Olly Ormerod and John Keogh became the coaches for the season

Jimmy set about installing a more senior cricket mentality to the team and soon had them enjoying their teammates and playing as a team.

The unavailability of Caloola Reserve due to upgrades meant the boys played their home games at Mayfield Reserve in Mt Waverley.

The season was short and poor weather gave rise to 3 drawn games which together with a bye meant the 2 wins and 3 losses just kept them out of finals, which the boys could very well have won.

Special mentions performance wise to Luke Ajani who won the competition bowling and smashed 220 plus runs and also to Ashwin Mehta who belted 322 runs, the highlight being a dominate 98 vs Toorak Prahran that ended with Ashwin being caught on the boundary by the only player in the vicinity. Drop the catch or take one step back and it would have been a century for Ashwin.

Thanks to all the parents who helped out, especially Greg Ajani.

Also special thanks to Xavier Soldati who helped get the boys through round 1 then scored for them for the remainder of the season.

UNDER 15 FRIDAY RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 2/161 Harrison D'Rozario 51*, Ashwin Mehta 35* defeated Murrumbeena (Maroon) 3/98 (cc)
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 91 Ashwin Mehta 31 lost to Toorak-Prahran (Red) 6/188.
- Rd. 3 Oakleigh 9/207 (cc) Ashwin Mehta 78*, Luke Ajani 55* drew with Malvern Junior 4/48 Navraj Gill 4/8 play abandoned due to rain.
- Rd. 4. Oakleigh 9/200 (cc) Luke Ajani 50*, Harrison D'Rozario 37, Lambros Argiriou 21* lost to Glen Waverley Gold 9/23 (cc) Luke Ajani 3/30, Harrison Douglas 2/9, Ashwin Mehta 2/29
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 5/256 (cc) Luke Ajani 53*, Ashwin Mehta 51*, Lambros Argiriou 49, Navraj Gill 34, Kush Pipaliya 23, Garrison D'Rozario 20 defeated Mt. Waverley (McNeill) 166 Luke Ajani 3/12, Oscar Oorloff 2/6, Harrison Douglas 2/13
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh had the Bye.
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 8/75 (cc) Luke Ajani 23 lost to Murrumbeena (Maroon) 6/79 (cc) Kush Pipaliya 2/8, Luke Ajani 2/10
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 242 Ashwin Mehta 98, Max Cavolo 27, Jack Iverson 22 drew with Toorak-Prahran (Gold) 2nd day abandoned due to heat rule.
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh 5/87 Harrison D'Rozario 35 lost to Toorak-Prahran (Green) 7/152 (cc) Harrison D'Rozario 3/14

UNDER 15 FRIDAY AVERAGES

BATTING - Qualifications - 5 Innings & 100 Runs								
Player	Games	Innings	Not Outs	High Score	Runs	Average	Catches	
Ashwin Mehta	8	8	3	98	322	64.40	2	
Luke Ajani	8	8	3	55*	224	44.80	2	
Harrison D'Rozario	8	7	2	51*	168	33.60	-	
Navraj Gill	5	5	1	34	76	19.00	3	
Jack Iverson	3	2	0	22	31	15.50	2	
Lambros Argiriou	8	7	1	49	89	14.83	3	
Max Cavolo	2	2	0	27	27	13.50	-	
Alexander Hastings	7	6	2	17	50	12.50	-	
Krish Bhardwaj	5	3	2	5*	9	9.00	-	
Thomas White	8	5	0	16	35	7.00	1	
Jackson Leopold	8	5	2	9*	20	6.67	-	
Kush Pipaliya	8	5	0	23	27	5.40	3	
Harrison Douglas	8	5	0	8	16	3.20	-	
Arnie Gautam	5	2	0	3	3	1.50	1	
Oscar Oorloff	7	5	1	4	6	1.50	1	
	BOWLI	NG - Quali	fication - 20	Overs (120	Balls)			
Player	Games	Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Average	Best	
Luke Ajani	8	40	5	11	120	10.91	3/12	
Kush Pipaliya	8	21	4	4	66	16.50	2/8	
Harrison D'Rozario	8	31	4	4	84	21.00	3/14	
Ashwin Mehta	8	34.5	5	4	123	30.75	2/29	
Jack Iverson	3	4		 1	 12	12.00	1/12	
Harrison Douglas	8	12	_	5	71	14.20	2/9	
Navraj Gill	5	15	2	4	57	14.25	4/8	
Oscar Oorloff	7	12	2	2	58	29.00	2/6	
Krish Bhardwaj	5	7	-	_ 1	40	40.00	1/15	
Alexander Hastings	7	16	1	1	75	75.00	1/11	
Lambros Argiriou	8	14	1	1	82	82.00	1/10	
Leopold Jackson			-					
ECOPOIG GACKSOIT	8	14	-	1	88	88.00	1/28	





UNDER 15 OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCES

BATTIN	NG (30 Runs or more)			
98	Ashwin Mehta	Friday	VS.	Toorak-Prahran (Gold)
78*	Ashwin Mehta	Friday	VS.	Malvern Junior
55*	Luke Ajani	Friday	VS.	Malvern Junior
53*	Luke Ajani	Friday	VS.	Mt. Waverley (McNeill)
51*	Harrison Douglas	Friday	VS.	Murrumbeena (Maroon)
51*	Ashwin Mehta	Friday	VS.	Mt. Waverley (McNeill)
50*	Luke Ajani	Friday	VS.	Glen Waverley (Gold)
49	Lambros Argiriou	Friday	VS.	Mt. Waverley (McNeill)
37*	Harrison D'Rozario	Friday	VS.	Glen Waverley (Gold)
35*	Harrison D'Rozario	Friday	VS.	Toorak-Prahran (Green)
35*	Ashwin Mehta	Friday	VS.	Murrumbeena (Maroon)
34	Navraj Gill	Friday	VS.	Mt. Waverley (McNeill)
32*	Luke Ajani	Sunday	VS.	Mazenod
31	Ashwin Mehta	Friday	VS.	Toorak-Prahran (Red)
5014#				
	NG (3 Wickets or more)			
4/8	Navraj Gill	Friday	VS.	Malvern Junior
4/29	Rahul Surendran	Sunday	VS.	Mazenod
3/3	Billy Robinson	Sunday	VS.	Mazenod
3/12	Luke Ajani	Friday	VS.	Mt. Waverley (McNeill)
3/14	Harrison D'Rozario	Friday	VS.	Toorak-Prahran (Green)
3/30	Luke Ajani	Friday	VS.	Glen Waverley (Gold)
3/35	Luke Ajani	C alas i		
	Larto 7 garn	Sunday	VS.	Mt. Waverley (Foran)
	,	Sunday	VS. VS.	Mt. Waverley (Foran)
	SCORES (150 Runs or more)	·		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
161	SCORES (150 Runs or more) For 2 Wickets	Friday		Murrumbeena (Maroon)
161 207	SCORES (150 Runs or more) For 2 Wickets For 9 Wickets	Friday Friday	VS.	Murrumbeena (Maroon) Malvern Junior
161 207 200	SCORES (150 Runs or more) For 2 Wickets For 9 Wickets For 9 Wickets	Friday Friday Friday	vs. vs.	Murrumbeena (Maroon) Malvern Junior Glen Waverley (Gold)
161 207	SCORES (150 Runs or more) For 2 Wickets For 9 Wickets	Friday Friday	VS. VS. VS.	Murrumbeena (Maroon) Malvern Junior





UNDER 13 FRIDAY REPORT

It was with great pleasure that I took on the coaching role of the Oakleigh U13s for season 2019/20. The boys played with tremendous enthusiasm and determination all season long. With only four teams in the A division and our side being much more inexperienced and younger than the other three teams, the year was always going to be a challenge. Despite knowing the challenge, the young Oakleigh lads continued to improve throughout the season and never gave up. By challenging themselves against a much stronger opposition each week, the boys would develop their skills and cricketing knowledge at a rapid rate each and every week.

We would not be victorious in any game but gave many opposition teams a scare and played the game the right way every time we went onto the field.

Overall I was extremely proud of the way the boys carried themselves at both trainings and on game days. As we all know, cricket is a game that can be played for many years and everyone goes through winning and losing stages of their career. By continuing to improve their game and sticking together, the boys will only get better each season.

There was also many highlights throughout the season. Here is a snapshot of some personal moments that made the year so enjoyable.

The first game of the season saw Seb Trent showcase his athletic ability as he provided the spark and energy for the entire game in the field. Seb would continue this all season being our number one fielder.

Our captain Sammy Iverson smashing the Toorak boys around in round 2, retiring on 37 off just 30 balls. Sammy would clear the boundary multiple times and had the cars in his sights.

The same game saw Pranshu Mistry prove that age and experience would not be a factor as he survived 30 balls for his 12 against opponents double his size. An amazing effort appreciated by all who were there.

Jack Allan was comfortably our best bowler this game, bowling a tight spell going for just 19 and taking one wicket from his 4 overs. Jack faced the battle all year of bowling to the oppositions best batsman but took the challenge in his stride and showed amazing improvement.

The partnership of Josh Lucas and Keshav Puri against East Malvern Tooranga, combining for 28 for the final stand. Keshav would make a fantastic 29 that game from 77 balls, refusing to give away his wicket and let the other team bat. Josh would finish unbeaten on 11, showing the same determination as Keshav and both boys would come off the ground with huge smiles across their face.

The batting performances of Sammy Iverson and Siddhant Goel against the same opposition a few weeks later was another batting highlight. The pair were both unbeaten on 40 and 35 respectively, showing their class throughout.

The next week against Mt.Waverlery, Rayaan "Stinger" Kochlar smashed them around to finish unbeaten on 23 off just 19 balls. Stinger showed amazing improvement from the start of the year to the finish.

Harry Cashman would show his versatility against Toorak-Prahan as our wicket keeper took the ball and showed the boys how its done. Harry finished with 2/8 off 3 overs and had the batsman guessing each delivery.

The final game of the season would be the semi-final against Toorak-Prahan. Our final game also gave our best performance of the year as Charlie Singh made the highest score of the

year, 47 of 99 deliveries. The young opener batted for a long period of time and played a superb patient innings. Sadly the boys would go down in this game but Charlie's innings was a major highlight.

A massive thank you to all the parents who helped out throughout the year. Without you all my job would have been impossible. A special thanks to Gary Iverson for giving me the opportunity to coach and helping me out at trainings when I couldn't make it. Also thanks to Andrew Allan for taking on the manager role and doing a terrific job all season.

I look forward to seeing the boys progress into the future!

Go Oaks!

Dylan Grandell - Coach

UNDER 13 FRIDAY RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 7/57 (cc) lost to Mount Waverlley (Beckett) 2/139 (cc)
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 111 Samuel Iverson 37* lost to Toorak-Prahran Red 294 Charlie Singh 2/14
- Rd. 3 Oakleigh 0/6 drew with Mount Waverley (Beckett) 282 Keshav Puri 2/19 Play abandoned on 2nd day due to rain.
- Rd. 4. Oakleigh 88 lost to Toorak-Prahran (Red) 3/366 (cc)
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 110 Keshav Puri 29 lost to East Malvern Tooronga (Blue) 6/292 (cc) Rayaan Kochhar 2/27
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 8/128 (cc) Samuel Iverson 40, Siddhant Goel 35* drew with East Malvern Tooronga (Blue) 2nd day abandoned due to heat.
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 1/63 (cc) lost to Mount Waverley (Beckett) 4/124 (cc)
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 91 Rayaan Kochhar 24 drew with East Malvern Tooronga (Blue) 2nd day abandoned due to heat rule.
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh 67 lost to Toorak-Prahran (Red) 4/71 Harry Cashman 2/8
- S/F Oakleigh 98 Charlie Singh 47 lost to Toorak-Prahran (Red) 0/100

UNDER 13 FRIDAY AVERAGES

BATTING - Qualifications - 5 Innings & 75 Runs

Player	Games	Innings	Not Outs	High Score	Runs	Average	Catches
Charlie Singh	10	10	6	47	122	30.50	2
Samuel Iverson	9	8	3	40*	132	26.40	1
Siddhant Goel	10	6	3	35	79	26.33	1
Rayaan Kochhar	10	7	2	24	57	11.40	3
Keshav Puri	9	7	0	29	60	8.57	-
Kushagra Baveja	10	9	4	16	36	7.20	-
Pranshu Mistry	9	5	1	12	27	6.75	-
Harry Cashman	10	9	2	14	45	6.43	2
Joshua Lucas	10	8	1	11*	26	3.71	1
Jack Allan	10	7	0	8	24	3.43	1
Dihein De Silva	10	7	1	5*	14	2.33	-
Sebastian Trent	10	8	1	3	8	1.14	1
Liam Gantelas	10	7	0	2	4	0.57	1
Jarvis Barr	1	1	1	1*	1	-	-

BOWLING -	 Qualification 	- 20 Overs
------------------	-----------------------------------	------------

Player	Games	Overs	Maidens	Wickets	Runs	Average	Best
Keshav Puri	9	21.2	2	5	85	17.00	2/19
Samuel Iverson	9	21	-	4	137	34.25	1/14
Harry Cashman	10	20	1	4	140	35.00	2/8
Rayaan Kochhar	10	29	-	4	193	48.25	2/27
Charlie Singh	10	25.3	-	4	197	49.25	2/13
Jack Allan	10	31	-	3	203	67.67	1/19
Siddhant Goel	10	19.2	_	2	95	47.50	1/3
Pranshu Mistry	9	11	-	1	73	73.00	1/52
Joshua Lucas	10	13	-	1	94	94.00	1/33
Liam Gantelas	10	11	-	1	99	99.00	1/37
Sebastian Trent	10	16	-	1	109	109.00	1/35
Dihein De Silva	10	8	-	-	65	-	0/22
Kushagra Baveja	10	17	1	-	125	-	0/9
STUMPINGS	Harry	Cashman	1				

UNDER 13 FRIDAY OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCES

BATT	BATTING (30 Runs or more)									
47	Charlie Singh	VS.	Toorak-Prahran (Red)							
37*	Samuel Iverson	VS.	Toorak-Prahran (Red)							
40	Samuel Iverson	VS.	East Malvern Tooronga (Red)							
35*	Siddhanth Goel	VS.	East Malvern Tooronga (Red)							
TEAM	1 SCORES (120 Runs or more)									
125	For 10 Wickets	VS.	Mugrave (Red)							
128	For 8 Wickets	VS.	East Malvern Tooronga (Red)							

UNDER 11 MODIFIED RULES REPORT

Identifying a coach for this team was easy.

Steaming in from 3 steps wearing jeans and beaming with enthusiasm for the game were all Mayur Sachaniya needed on his resume to get the job! When he had bowled enough to the kids he kept wicket and had a quick bat too! And they all loved it.

Mayur agreed to coach and built a team that would go undefeated for 14 rounds.

You cant miss the enthusiasm these kids had for cricket, it was infectious.

Playing modified U11 rules the team were too good for all opposition and I can say a couple of these boys would have been handy acquisitions to our U13 team.

The majority were first year cricketers and an unofficial ladder compiled by Greg Ajani (or Roly I suspect!) had them a whopping 15 points clear on top with a percentage double that the next highest.

A couple of future stars stood out with Joel Ajani taking 13 wickets and piling on 342 runs including 54 boundaries.

Joel's season was good enough to win the Rowland Williams Trophy as the Junior Club Champion, an award that is usually won by higher age players. A terrific result!!

Similarly Samuel Duckett in his first season of cricket belted 266 runs with 40 boundaries and took 8 wickets.

Watch this space on both these boys.

Atharv Jha put in one of the more extraordinary performances claiming 6/2 from 3 overs with 2 maidens. Wowee son!!

What a great season it was for our boys, and to go through any season in any sport undefeated is quite an achievement to be proud of.

A HUGE Thank You to Mayur for giving up his time to coach the boys, and a huge Thank You to all the parents who embraced their roles and learning throughout the season.

UNDER 11 MODIFIED RULES RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 10/122 Joel Ajani 32* defeated Notting Hill-Brandon Park 8/83 Joel Ajani 2/2,.Veer Mehta 2/5
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 6/170 Joel Ajani 26, Samuel Duckett 20 defeated Malvern Junior (Blue) 14/85, Atharv Jha 3/9, Cooper Guzzo 2/7
- Rd. 3 Oakleigh 8/161 Joel Ajani 43, Samuel Duckett 43 defeated Mulgrave (Blue) 9/84 Joel Ajani 2/4, Samuel Duckett 2/5
- Rd. 4. Oakleigh 8/146 Joel Ajani 25 defeated Notting Hill-Brandon Park (Navy) 6/93 Atharv Jha 2/9, Yaani Gautam 2/14
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh drew with Glen Waverley (Green) Match abandoned due to rain.
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 10/156 defeated East Malvern Tooronga (Green) 17/132 Veer Mehta 2/4
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 2/179 Samuel Ducket 34, Joel Ajani 23, Yaani Gautam 22 defeated Notting Hill-Brandon Park (Navy)10/74 Garv Sachaniya 2/7, Yaani Gautam 2/12
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 6/134 Joel Ajani 36, Yaani Gautam 24 drew with Mt. Waverley (O'Donnell) 1/55 Play Abandoned due to rain.
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh 4/204 Joel Ajani 39, Samuel Duckett 21 defeated Malvern Junior (Red) ; 15/57, Arthrav Jha 6/2, Joel Ajani 2/0, Yaani Gautam 2/3, Samuel Duckett 2/3
- Rd. 10 Oakleigh 7/182 Joel Ajani 33, Samuel Duckett 21, defeated Notting Hill- Brandon Park (White) 15/142 Alexander Anderson 3/15, Joel Ajani 3/16, Yaani Gautam 2/1
- Rd. 11 Oakleigh drew with East Malvern Tooronga (Red) -Match abandoned due to heat
- Rd. 12 Oakleigh 7/183 Samuel Duckett 47, Joel Ajani 46, deeated Malvern Junior (Purple) 10/119 Anwin Shiraj 2/2, Alexander Anderson 2/10, Atharv Jha 2/11
- Rd. 13 Oakleigh drew with Emmanuel South Oakleigh Match abandoned due to rain.
- Rd. 14 Oakleigh 10/149 Joel Ajani 33 defeated Glen Waverley (Green) 10/92 Joel Ajani 2/3

UNDER 11 MODIFIED RULES AVERAGES

BATTING

_, , , , , , , ,					
Player	Games Played	Times Out	Runs Scored	High Score	Average
Joel Ajani	11	4	342	46	85.50
Alexander Anderson	n 9	10	23	7	2.30
Samuel Duckett	11	6	261	47	43.50
Yaani Gautam	8	5	102	24	20.40

Cooper Guzzo	10	9	53	11	5.89
Atharv Jha	8	10	60	14	6.00
Veer Mehta	7	5	70	17	14.00
Ryan Puri	5	7	18	7	2.57
Garv Sachaniya	11	16	29	6	1.81
Anwin Shiraj	4	4	23	13	5.75

BOWLING

Player	Overs	Wickets	Runs	Best	Average	Catch	Stump
Joel Ajani	32.5	13	76	3/16	5.85	2	-
Alexander Anderson	22	8	77	3/15	9.63	-	-
Samuel Duckett	26	8	53	2/3	6.63	5	1
Yaani Gautam	20	10	63	2/1	6.30	6	-
Cooper Guzzo	26.1	6	94	2/7	15.67	1	1
Atharv Jha	18	15	67	6/2	4.47	1	-
Veer Mehta	18.4	9	35	2/4	3.89	1	`
Ryan Puri	9	0	43	0/4	-	-	-
Garv Sachaniya	26	5	96	2/7	19.20	-	-
Anwin Shiraj	10	5	18	2/2	3.60	-	-

UNDER 11 MODIFIED RULES PERFORMANCES

BATTING (20 Runs or more)

<u>DA I</u>	TING (20 Runs of more)		
47	Samuel Duckett	VS.	Malvern Junior (Purple)
46	Joel Ajani	VS.	Malvern Junior (Purple)
43	Joel Ajani	VS.	Mulgrave (Blue)
43	Samuel Duckett	VS.	Mulgrave (Blue)
39	Joel Ajani	VS.	Malvern Junior (Red)
36	Joel Ajani	VS.	Mt. Waverley (O'Donnell)
34	Samuel Duckett	VS.	Notting Hill - Brandon Park
33	Joel Ajani	VS.	Notting Hill - Brandon Park
33	Joel Ajani	VS.	Glen Waverley (Green)
32	Joel Ajani	VS.	Notting Hill - Brandon Park
26	Joel Ajani	VS.	Malvern Junior (Blue)
25	Joel Ajani	VS.	Notting Hill - Brandon Park
24	Yaani Gautam	VS.	Mt. Waverley (O'Donnell)
23	Joel Ajani	VS.	Notting Hill - Brandon Park
22	Yaani Gautam	VS.	Notting Hill - Brandon Park
21	Samuel Duckett	VS.	Malvern Junior (Red)
21	Samuel Duckett	VS.	Notting Hill - Brandon Park
20	Samuel Duckett	VS.	Malvern Junior (Blue)





BOWLING (2 Wickets or more) Athary Jha 6/2 VS. Malvern Junior (Red) 3/9 Athary Jha Malvern Junior (Blue) VS. 3/15 Alexander Anderson Notting Hill - Brandon Park VS. 3/16 Joel Ajani Notting Hill - Brandon Park VS. Malvern Junior (Red) 2/0 Joel Ajani VS. 2/1 Yaani Gautam Notting Hill - Brandon Park VS. 2/2 Notting Hill - Brandon Park Joel Ajani VS. 2/2 Anwin Shiraj Malvern Junior (Purple) VS. 2/3 Yaani Gautam Malvern Junior (Red) VS. 2/3 Samuel Duckett Malvern Junior (Red) VS. 2/3 Glen Waverley (Green) Joel Ajani VS. 2/4 Joel Ajani Mulgrave (Blue) VS. 2/4 Veer Mehta East Malvern Tooronga (Green) VS. 2/5 Veer Mehta Notting Hill - Brandon Park VS. 2/5 Samuel Duckett Mulgrave (Blue) VS. Malvern Junior (Blue) 2/7 Cooper Guzzo VS. 2/7 Notting Hill - Brandon Park Garv Sachaniya VS. 2/9 Athary Jha Notting Hill - Brandon Park VS. 2/10 Alexander Anderson Malvern Junior (Purple) VS. 2/11 Athary Jha Malvern Junior (Purple) VS. 2/12 Yaani Gautam Notting Hill - Brandon Park VS. 2/14 Yaani Gautam Notting Hill - Brandon Park VS. TEAM SCORES (120 Runs or more) For 4 Wickets Malvern Junior (Red) 204 VS. For 7 Wickets 183 Malvern Junior (Purple) VS. 182 For 7 Wickets Notting Hill - Brandon Park VS. For 2 Wickets Notting Hill - Brandon Park 179 VS. 170 For 6 Wickets Malvern Junior (Blue) VS. For 8 Wickets Mulgrave (Blue) 161 VS.



149

146

134

132

122

For 10 Wickets

For 5 Wickets

For 6 Wickets

For 10 Wickets

For 10 Wickets



Glen Waverley Green

Notting Hill - Brandon Park

Notting Hill - Brandon Park

East Malvern Tooronga (Green)

Mt. Waverley (O'Donnell)

VS.

VS.

VS.

VS.

VS.

WOOLWORTHS CRICKET BLAST

After a one-year sabbatical Woolworths Blast @ OCC was relaunched, with a new day - Friday nights, and a new, very green coordinator. 20 kids enrolled, split up with 12 in the Junior Blaster category (4-7 y/o), and 8 in Master Blasters (7-10 y/o).

The weather was rarely perfect, and numbers fluctuated, but the kids had fun, and the improvement over the school holiday break was very apparent.

It was a learning experience for all (starting with myself!) and with two separate sessions needed, it soon became apparent I could not do the job on my own. Toby Allen, the incomparable Jarrod Travaglia and wife Emily, were a great help to me in running the Junior Blasters program. Thanks to Peter Splatt for cooking a couple of BBQs too, and all the parents for their help in collecting balls, cleaning up and their willingness to be involved.

OCC Blast Coordinator.

Mick Splatt









MID YEAR TEAM RESULTS

- Rd. 1 Oakleigh 4/173 (cc) Dharmesh Patel 50*, Robert Howes 50*, Anthony Howes 26* defeated Lyndale 108 Max Getley 2/12, Tom Cashman 2/15, Matthew Tyson 2/17
- Rd. 2 Oakleigh 175 Prajay Paramesh 47, Max Getley 43, Robert Howes 29 defeated Surrey Hills 87 Max Getley 3/24, Gary Iverson 2/7, Matthew Tyson 2/9
- Rd.3 Oakleigh 5/157 (cc) Dharmesh Patel 50*, William Iverson 25, Anthony Howes 22*, Robert Howes 20 lost to Bombers 1/168.
- Rd. 4 Oakleigh 7/193 (cc) Anthony Howes 52*, Gareth Campbell 36, Tim Cashman 30, Robert Howes 26, Dharmesh Patel 22, defeated Monash University Eagles 77, Anthony Howes 4/6, Matthew Tyson 3/18, Gary Iverson 3/33
- Rd. 5 Oakleigh 6/153 (cc) Anthomy Howes 51*, Robert Howes 50*, Gareth Campbell 24 lost to Sunrise Thomas Ison 3/25
- Rd. 6 Oakleigh 2/69 Gareth Campbell 45*, Max Getley 17 drew with Glen Waverley Play abandoned due to heavy rain.
- Rd. 7 Oakleigh 162 Gareth Campbell 51*, Anthony Howes 43, James Benn 20 lost to Monash University Knight 4/164 Anthony Howes 3/18
- Rd. 8 Oakleigh 7/225 (cc) Gareth Campbell 53*, Dharmesh Patel 50*, Max Getley 46, Tom Cashman 31 defeated MPCL Challengers 152 Dharmesh 5/22, Tom Cashman 2/10, Max Getley 2/21
- Rd. 9 Oakleigh 2/145 Robert Howes 52*, Dharmesh Patel 50* defeated Parkfield Bandits Anthony Howes 3/14, Gareth Campbell 3/25, Matthew Tyson 2/12
- S/F Oakleigh 8/139 (cc) Robert Howes 28, Prajay Paramesh 25, Gareth Campbell 24 lost to Bombers 7/190 (cc) Anthony Howes 3/41, Prajay Paramesh 2/24

MID YEAR TEAM AVERAGES

BATTING							
Player	Games	Inns.	N.O.	H.S.	Runs	Average	50's
BENN, James	1	1	0	20	20	20.00	-
CAMPBELL, Gareth	7	7	3	53*	247	61.75	2
CASHMAN, Tom	8	7	3	31	90	22.50	-
FISHER, Cooper	10	8	2	12	37	6.17	-
GETLEY, Max	10	9	1	46	153	19.13	-
HOWES, Anthony	10	9	5	52*	228	57.00	2
HOWES, Gregory	4	-	-	-	-	-	-
HOWES, Robert	7	7	3	50*	255	63.75	3
INGLEFINGER, Simon	1	1	0	0	0	-	-
ISON, Thomas	9	5	1	6	10	2.50	-
IVERSON, Gary	4	2	1	3*	3	3.00	-
IVERSON, William	6	6	0	25	61	10.17	-
PARAMESH, Prajay	9	8	0	47	103	12.88	-
PATEL, Dharmesh	10	10	4	50*	238	39.67	4
REID, Thomas	3	1	0	9	9	9.00	-
TYSON, Matthew	10	3	2	3*	3	3.00	-
WEBB, Tristan	1	1	0	10	10	10.00	-
YOUNG, Gary	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	-

BOWLING										
Player	Overs	Maid	Wkts	Runs	Best	Average	Catch	Stump	Ass Ro	Un Ro
BENN, James	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
CAMPBELL, Gareth	14.1	-	3	64	3/25	21.33	2	-	1	-
CASHMAN, Tom	30.2	7	5	107	2/10	21.40	1	-	-	1
FISHER, Cooper	-	-	-	-	-	-	9	-	2	-
GETLEY, Max	31	-	8	193	3/24	24.13	1	-	-	1
HOWES, Anthony	49.4	6	14	173	4/6	12.36	6	-	1	-
HOWES, Gregory	1	-	-	9	0/9	-	-	-	-	-
HOWES, Robert	-	-	-	-	-	-	4	-	1	-
INGLEFINGER, Simon	3	-	-	23	0/23	-	-	-	-	-
ISON, Thomas	27	2	4	148	3/25	37.00	3	-	-	-
IVERSON, Gary	20	1	7	101	3/33	0.00	1	-	-	-
IVERSON, William	0.3	-	1	0	1/0	-	-	-	1	-
PARAMESH, Prajay	5.4	-	2	25	2/24	12.50	-	-	-	1
PATEL, Dharmesh	12	1	5	66	5/22	13.20	2	-	1	-
REID, Thomas	8	-	1	59	1/7	59.00	1	-	-	-
TYSON, Matthew	49	8	11	180	3/18	16.36	1	-	-	-
WEBB, Tristan	7	`	-	26	0/26	-	-	-	1	-
YOUNG, Gary	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-

MID YEAR TEAM PERFORMANCES

<u>Batti</u>	ng	- (scores of 40 or over)		
53	*	Gareth Campbell	VS.	MPCL Challengers
52	*	Anthony Howes	VS.	Monash University Eagles
52	*	Robert Howes	VS.	Parkfield Bandits
51	*	Anthony Howes	VS.	Sunrise
51	*	Gareth Campbell	VS.	Monash University Knight
50	*	Robert Howes	VS.	Lyndale
50	*	Dharmesh Patel	VS.	Lyndale
50	*	Robert Howes	VS.	Sunrise
50	*	Dharmesh Patel	VS.	Bombers
50	*	Dharmesh Patel	VS.	MPCL Challengers
50	*	Dharmesh Patel	VS.	Parkfield Bandits
47		Prajay Paramesh	VS.	Surey Hills
47		Max Getley	VS.	MPCL Challengers
45	*	Gareth Campbell	VS.	Glen Waverley
43		Max Getley	VS.	Surey Hills
43		Anthony Howes	VS.	Monash University Knight
Bowl	ing	ı - (3 wickets or more)		
5/22		Dharmesh Patel	VS.	MPCL Challengers
4/6		Anthony Howes	VS.	Bombers
3/14		Anthony Howes	VS.	Parkfield Bandits
3/18		Matthew Tyson	VS.	Bombers
3/18		Anthony Howes	VS.	Monash University Knight
3/24		Max Getley	VS.	Surrey Hills
3/25		Thomas Ison	VS.	Sunrise
3/25		Gareth Campbell	VS.	Parkfield Bandits
3/33		Gary Iverson	VS.	Bombers
3/41		Anthony Howes	VS.	Bombers

Team Scores - 150 or better

225	For 7 Wickets	VS.	MPCL Challengers
193	For 7 Wickets	VS.	Monash University Eagles
175	For 10 Wickets	VS.	Surrey Hills
173	For 4 Wickets	VS.	Lyndale
162	For 10 Wickets	VS.	Monash University Knight
157	For 5 Wickets	VS.	Bombers
153	For 6 Wickets	VS.	Sunrise

Partnerships - 40 Runs or better

raiti	iei :	Silips - 40 Kulis of Dellei		
99		Gareth Campbell & Dharmesh Patel	VS.	MPCL Challengers
89	*	Dharmesh Patel & Robert Howes	VS.	MPCL Challengers
88	*	William Iverson & Dharmesh Patel	VS.	Bombers
85	*	Dharmesh Patel & Robert Howes	VS.	Lyndale
76		Tom Cashman & Max Getley	VS.	MPCL Challengers
66	*	Anthony Howes & Tom Cashman	VS.	Monash University Eagles
56	*	Gareth Campbell & Max Getley	VS.	Glen Waverley
51		Anthony Howes & Gareth Campbell	VS.	Monash University Knight
49	*	Robert Howes & Anthony Howes	VS.	Sunrise
44		Robert Howes & Dharmesh Patel	VS.	Monash University Eagles
43		Robert Howes & Prajay Paramesh	VS.	Surrey Hills
42		Prajay Paramesh & Cooper Fisher	VS.	Surrey Hills
42		Gareth Campbell & Robert Howes	vs.	Sunrise





OAKLEIGH NETBALL CLUB: 2019 SPRING AND 2020 AUTUMN SEASONS

Oakleigh netball club currently has 93 players, with 11 teams entered in the Caulfield and District Netball Association, and one team in the Waverley Night Netball Association competitions.

Our club had a very successful year in 2019, 70% of our teams made finals in either the spring or autumn seasons, with two teams becoming back to back Grand Finalists!

The success of our club is due to the effort, passion and drive from our coaching team and support from our 2019 club secretary Julie Harrick and Club Treasurer Georgie White.

Julie and Georgie have been instrumental in forming the Oakleigh Netball club, and creating the inclusive, dynamic and supportive club that it is today. After many years of volunteering their time, they decided it was time to take a break at the end of 2019.

We thank them for all their time, effort, patience and support to all our club members and families throughout their time at the club.

Subsequently, we have formed a small committee for 2020 consisting of the following members:

Coordinator: Nicole Sullivan

Registrations: Narelle Collis

Finance: Andrew Nandan
Uniforms: Elizabeth Sheer
IT: Stuart Moran
Fundraising: Clare Moran

Events: Lynda Wallace

Resources: Kathryn Rotter

There were many highlights throughout 2019, some of these were:

- Winning the Woolworths "you grow girl" campaign, where our club had a Vixens player help at training, and the Woolworths bus attend CDNA with fresh fruit and milkshakes for the players.
- Personal Training for our Under 15 Squad at a local training studio
- Netfit Netball Session for our Under 15 Squad
- Attending the twilight cricket match at Oakleigh Cricket Club

Unfortunately the 2020 season, was cut short due to the COVID 19 epidemic. We managed to fit in a few training sessions, and netball games until restrictions came into effect. Despite this, we have managed to keep our members engaged and fit, through running live fitness sessions weekly, using platforms such as zoom and Instagram.

We are hopeful to resume training sessions in the near future, and currently await notification from relevant organisations as to when competition may commence again.

Below are tables, outlining our teams for both 2019 and 2020, including their age group breakdowns.

2019 Caulfield and District Association Spring and Autumn Seasons						
Team:	Age Group	Results				
Acorns	Under 11	No finals in this age group				
Proteas	Under 11	No finals in this age group				
Silverbells	U/13	Semi Finalists Spring				
Waratahs	U/13	Semi Finalists Autumn				
Fuschias	U/13	Semi Finalists Autumn				
Redgums	U/13					
Banksias	U/15	Runners Up Autumn				
		Runners up Spring				
Holly's	U/15	Premiers Autumn				
		Runners Up Spring				
Acacias	U/15	Semi Finalists Autumn				
Blossoms	U/17	Semi Finalists Autumn				
Daisies	U/25					
2019 Waverley I	Night Netball Asso	ociation Spring and Autumn				
Seasons						
Oakleigh Oaks	U/15					

2020 Caulfield and District Association Autumn Seasons						
Team:	Age Group					
Wattles	U/11					
Bluebells	U/11					
Orchids	U/13					
Waratahs	U/13					
Fuschias	U/13					
Redgums	U/15					
Banksias	U/15					
Holly's	U/15					
Silverbells	U/15					
Acacias	U/17					
Blossoms	U/17					
2020 Waverley	Night Netball Association					
Aı	utumn Season					
Oakleigh Oaks	U/15					

20/02/2020	20 F.L		Anon	-			102		2000		40	
28/02/2020	20-Feb	dep	\$397			TOTAL		HEQUE		ERYDAY		TTY
			0.00		+		A	CCOUNT	A	CCOUNT	C	ASH
Opening Bala	ance 01 May	2019			\$	9,355.77	\$	8,360.50	\$	995.27	\$	-
NCOME					+-	0.00						
	REGISTRAT	ON FEES			\$	1,141.00	\$	1,141.00				
	DONATION	S (BURGER)		\$	300.00	Ś	300.00		-		
	UNIFORM F			1	\$	502.00	\$	502.00				
	TOURNAMENT FEES				\$		7	502.00				
	INTER BANK TRANSFERS				\$	3,550.00			¢	3,550.00		
	TRANSFER				\$	455.15			Ś	455.15		-
	MYNETBAL	Spiritoria			-	24,359.66	ė.	24,359.66	4	433.13		
	TRYBOOKIN					2,725.62	-	2,725.62	-			
	THEODINI			Total	-	42,389.20		37,388.78	ė	5,000.42	\$	
				TOTAL	7	42,303.20	2:	7,300.78	2	3,000.42	2	
PAYMENTS		72.8										
MINICIAIS	CDNA REGI	SPATION A	ND COURT	EEEC	¢	16,367.00	ė.	14,986.00	•	1,381.00		
	NETBALL VI			FEES	\$	10,307.00	Ş.	14,986.00	2	1,381.00		
	CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR	COLUMN TO STREET	and the second second	IDCEC	\$	er 00	4	CF 00				
	NETBALL VICTORIA TRAINING COURSES EQUIPMENT (BALLS, TRAINING, FIRST AID)					65.00	-	65.00	-			-
	UNIFORM (The second second	\$	2,820.31		2,820.31				
	ONIFORIVI	.0313	OCC POLO	-	\$	2,512.30	5	2,512.30				
			DALUNA	AAUD	\$			CE 00				
	ALLIA DDC /T	DODLUES (C	SECOND H		\$	65.00	\$	65.00				
	AWARDS/TROPHIES/CERTIFICATES					320.95			\$	320.95		
	REGISTRATION/PRESENTATION DAY											
	COACHES PAYMENTS/GIFTS					792.25	\$	65.00	\$	727.25		
	OAKLEIGH REC CENTRE COURT HIRE											
	VIXENS TICKETS FOR CLUB DAY				\$							
	TOURNAMI	ENT EXPEN	SES		\$	-						
	BANK FEES				\$	8.00		880	\$	8.00		
	WAVERLEY		GISTRATIO	N	\$	466.92	\$	375.00	\$	91.92		
	WEBSITE AS	-			\$							
	PLAYER WI		REFUNDS		\$	-						
	TRY BOOKI	NG	11		\$	5.50			\$	5.50		
	OTHER				\$	2,790.05	\$	1,100.00		1,690.05		
	RSL OAKLEY	/			\$	200.00			\$	200.00		
	REFUND				\$	299.50	\$	130.00	\$	169.50		
	DISCOUNT	1			\$	11.50			\$	11.50		
	SUNDRY				\$	3,708.49		3,708.49				
	ACCOUNT 1	RANSFER			\$	3,550.00	Printer or	3,550.00				
			/ = 1111	Total	\$	33,982.77	\$2	29,377.10	\$	4,605.67		
	BALANCE A	T 30 APRII	2020		¢	8,406.43	\$	8,011.68	Ś	394.75	\$	
**NB OCC w	A Committee of the Comm			d on erickes			4	0,011.00	4	334.73	*	-